‘) SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED
EEZREKBR QA

S U C C E S S (Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (A B EZE M v 2 BRA )
Stock Code B35k : 00487

p -

Steady Sailing Towards
a Brighter Future

T~ P IR

Annual
Report

202




Contents
B &%

02

04

05

06

07

08

14

40

71

97

Corporate Information

NEIER
Our Vision
HMER

Group Structure

EERE

Operational Highlights
EBME

Financial Highlights
B E

Chairman’s Statement

ERERE

Management Discussion and Analysis

RSl

Corporate Governance Report
TEERARS

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HEBRERRS

Report of Directors
EEGHRS

122

127

137

138

139

141

143

146

318

319

Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management

EEREREEABEBN

Independent Auditors’ Report
B ZBEN IR S

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
é/\-—bA

0 =] ?EJ/A]EI%__
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

rEiBEmAEMEEREE

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

eI R

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REE@mEHER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HERERER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BmERNEE

Five-Year Financial Summary

IFEMHHE

Particulars of Properties

Y ESEAE



02

Corporate Information
REVEF

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (Chairman)

Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman (Deputy Chairman) 88s

Non-executive Director
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann

Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose

Mr. Chong Ming Yu

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Chiu Nam Ying, Agnes

FINANCIAL CONTROLLER
Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Alvin

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman 88s
Ms. Chiu Nam Ying, Agnes

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose (Chairman)
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle

Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann

Mr. Chong Ming Yu

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann (Chairman)
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny

Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle

Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose

Mr. Chong Ming Yu

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (Chairman)
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle

Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann

Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose

Mr. Chong Ming Yu

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (Chairman)
Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman 88s

AUDITORS
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

£
BITES
BERITE (ZE)

BEXSE (B /E) tisies

FERITES
ERIELE

BIFERTES
HBRIEL LT
HRBITRE

NEME
WERL T

7548 85
FERAE
EERTR
EEX S smges
HER T+

BZEEY
BKBITE ()
BRI STE
BRI L
ST E

miNESE
BRELL (ZE)
BB ST
BRI
ks STE

TR ITE

RBLZEEY
WBiEm s (FE)
HEELE
BREZ LT
Tkt
HITEEY
BB TE (F/E)
BEXIE hxsess

1% 24 B

HE st M EBERAR

BEANE G SHHD



Corporate Information (Continued)
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Our

VISION

The Group strives to fortify its business portfolio by leveraging on its experience in
entertainment and tourist-related industries as well as property investment, strengthening its
competitiveness and staying agile by exploring new investment opportunities. We endeavor
to create long-term value for all of our stakeholders through the balanced and diversified
business portfolio, while adhering to a high standard of corporate governance.

REBR N REERENRERBITEURERENEREIERHEFMES LB

BRABHRERBEARFINRBERFE LT -RARNEBIGE RS TIEZEHE
B RAPERNEGEREBE FARRTBKFHNEEER
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Group Structure

SEEZRAE
SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability
and a Hong Kong listed company)
(Stock Code: 00487)
BRIRIXARQHF
(REREZZMAE L ZBRAE]

R—BE# LHRE)

(B3 +L5% 1 00487)

o PROPERTY FLAGSHIP
BUSINESS INVESTMENT P INVESTMENT
P BUSINESS PROJECT

. D mmmEEE 0 REREES
Jade Travel Ltd. Ponte 16 Integrated
(Incorporated in Canada s Hong Kong .o Casino-entertainment
with limited liability) : : Commercial Buildings : : Resort
Jade Travel Ltd. EEEE R AV FE g S
CMEARMALZERAT) | : P “EEN
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Operational Highlights
E S

Revenue was approximately HK$114.8 million and
gross profit was approximately HK$12.4 million for
2022

Loss attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$287.1 million, which was mainly
attributable to the recognition of (i) a substantial
fair value loss on the Group’s overseas listed equity
securities of approximately HK$174.1 million; and (ii)
a fair value loss on the Group's investment properties
as well as a write-down of carrying amount of the
Group’s stock of properties in the aggregate amount
of approximately HK$20.6 million

Revenue of the travel business segment decreased
by approximately 24% to approximately HK$112.1
million while the gross profit margin increased from
3.8% to 8.7%. Profit of approximately HK$3.3
million was recorded in this segment, including a
reversal of impairment loss recognised on intangible
assets of approximately HK$2.8 million

Revenue of the property investment business
amounted to approximately HK$2.6 million; segment
loss was approximately HK$15.9 million which was
mainly due to the recognition of the fair value loss
on investment properties of approximately HK$9.8
million and the write-down of carrying amount of
the Group's stock of properties of approximately
HK$10.8 million

The Group's shared loss of the associates relating to
Ponte 16, the Group’s flagship investment project,
decreased by approximately 13% to approximately
HK$42.1 million. An Adjusted EBITDA* loss of
approximately HK$46.2 million was recorded

Adjusted EBITDA. Earnings Before Interest, Taxation, Depreciation
and Amortisation (and excluded interest income from bank
deposit)

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT
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Financial Highlights
BT EE

RESULTS e

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEFE

2022 2021 2020
S —E— “ETEF
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BEFT  BMTR BETR

Revenue g

Travel i[i§ic3 112,139 147,856 354,170

Property investment MERE 2,639 3,274 9,661

114,778 151,130 363,831

(Loss)/gain on change BAFERERYRZ

in fair value of financial MHREEATES

assets as fair value through  EWFFEEZ (B58)

profit or loss g (174,113) 87,725 131,119
Share of results of associates  FE{LEfE AT E4E (42,133) (48,654) (145,725)
(Loss)/profit for the year  ZSEFE (§518) % F| (287,072) 4,859 (141,936)
(Loss)/profit attributable to 7x2 5] A& R &L

owners of the Company (&548) HH (287,072) 4,859 (141,936)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF HEMBRIR

FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December

K+ZBA=+—H
2022 2021 2020
B % _—ZEFF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T A& T T ST T
Total assets 1,271,157 1,388,830 1,387,114
Total liabilities 551,792 381,185 384,758
Net assets 719,365 1,007,645 1,002,356

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 3R



Chairman’s Statement
TERS

THE GROUP TRUSTS THAT OUR

Perseverance and Resilience

WILL BRING US THROUGH
HEADWINDS AND LAY

AN EVEN STRONGER FOUNDATION
FOR A LONG-TERM AND SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT.

A B

TR ~ BTG
] VMR BE > 2 A ) B8
BT T iR 3 { P
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Dear Valued Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors of Success Universe
Group Limited (the "Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), | would like to present the
annual report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022.

2022 presented significant challenges for businesses
globally. The highly contagious Omicron variant of
COVID-19 triggered another wave of infections, leading
to lockdowns and traffic control measures in several
cities in China, including Hong Kong and Macau. The
entertainment and hospitality industries in these regions
were hit hard due to the suspension of major business
activities and travel restrictions. The global financial
markets also experienced a tough year, with geopolitical
concerns and rising inflation contributing to market
instability.

Despite the challenging year, we were heartened by some
positive developments towards the end of 2022, including
the reopening of border of China in January 2023 and
the award of new 10-year gaming concessions to existing
concessionaries in Macau (the “Macau New Gaming
Concessions”). We believe that China's border reopening
will not only accelerate its economic recovery but also
boost global economic growth. Meanwhile, the Macau
New Gaming Concessions will help to develop the city
into a world-class international tourism destination. The
Group is steadfast in its strategy of improving operational
efficiency of all its businesses and optimising its product
and service offerings to capture the ongoing market
recovery.

Chairman’s Statement
FERS

HNEENRR:
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MBEERASITE MAEMGBEER
RERAERT BREMHTBTIEET
EEEE RN EM— o
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8o
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

EREHRE (&

LEVERAGING THE STRENGTHS TO
UNLOCK OPPORTUNITIES

Over the past three years, Macau implemented strict
epidemic prevention and control measures in line with
the Central Government's policies, and unified all sectors
of the society to safeguard its people's livelihoods. As
the pandemic subsides, Macau's economic and social
development is expected to gradually recover and improve.
On 8 January 2023, the first day of removal of border
restrictions between Mainland China and Macau, over
39,600 inbound tourists visited Macau, representing an
approximately 154% increase from the average daily visitor
arrivals in 2022. While the Macau government is executing
facilitative measures such as electronic visas to promote
Mainland China travel groups to Macau, our flagship
investment project, Ponte 16, will leverage its competitive
strengths in offering high-quality gaming, hospitality, and
entertainment experiences to welcome tourists and guests
and assist the community in restoring vitality to the tourism
and local economy.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

ERAEYE EEHSE
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MEENEBEHZEEN TEEHES
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Macau continues to build a world-class tourism and leisure
centre by promoting diversified development and refining
the whole tourism and entertainment industries. The
enactment of Law 7/2022 in June 2022, which amended
Law 16/2001 “Legal Framework for Operating Games of
Chance in Casinos”, and the successful completion of a
new round of gaming concessions bidding at the end of
the year had laid a strong foundation to the long-term
development of Macau gaming industry. Following the
announcement of the "Master Plan of the Development
of the Guangdong-Macao Intensive Cooperation Zone in
Henggin" in September 2021, Macau has been actively
enhancing its infrastructure network to align with the
Central Government's focus on developing the Greater
Bay Area and expediting interconnectedness within
Macau. It is no doubt that Macau will receive plentiful
new opportunities along with its integration into China's
national development plan. As a world-class integrated
casino-entertainment resort and market leader in the
culturally rich Inner Harbour area of Macau, Ponte 16 is
poised to capture these opportunities and is committed
to continually improving operations while actively
cooperating with neighbouring communities to promote
local tourism.

Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

ETRERE (&

SOLID FOUNDATION FOR A NEW
CHAPTER

The global tourism industry has been on track to
recovery in 2022 amidst diverse challenges, including
global economic uncertainty and ongoing geopolitical
conflicts. According to the United Nations World Tourism
Organization (“UNWTO"), the number of international
tourists recorded in 2022 was doubled to over 900
million tourists as compared with 2021. The UNWTO also
forecasted that international tourists could reach 80%
to 95% of pre-pandemic levels for 2023, with China’s
border reopening would significantly boost tourism
worldwide, especially in the Asia-Pacific. Jade Travel Ltd.
has established trusted business relationships with a
wide variety of online travel portals and agencies as well
as a round-the-clock online service platform, which will
continue to support its market share growth. Besides, the
recent approval granted by the International Air Transport
Association (IATA) to expand our ticketing business in
China will serve as a new growth driver for furthering our
position in being a leading travel agency in North America.

Hong Kong's ability to overcome challenges and
demonstrate resilience over the past decades is a
testament to its strength and potential for continued
growth. The recent ease of entry restrictions for overseas
travellers and the reopening of its border with Mainland
China are positive developments for the city's prospects.
Despite the rising interest rate, Hong Kong's property
market is expected to benefit from the recovery of the
global economy and the increasing demand for business
and financial services. In addition to the property
investment for recurring stable income, the Group is
actively assessing available investment options to diversify
its investment risks and hedge against inflation.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT
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APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt
gratitude to our esteemed shareholders, customers and
business partners for their unwavering support and
trust throughout the challenging year. | am also deeply
appreciative of my fellow board members for their
invaluable guidance and support, and of our entire staff
for their tremendous hard work and dedication. With
the worst behind us, the Group will leverage its expertise
and experience to capitalise on the global and industry
recovery, while remaining conscientious of market changes
and risks. Our ultimate aim is to create great and long-
term value for our shareholders as a return to their trust
and confidence in the Company.

Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny
Chairman

Hong Kong
30 March 2023

Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW

The year 2022 presented significant challenges for
businesses worldwide. At the beginning of the year, the
highly contagious Omicron variant of COVID-19 triggered
another wave of infections globally, which discouraged
cross-border travel to a great extent. Mainland China
was also affected, prompting rigorous traffic control
measures and lockdowns in several cities. Meanwhile, new
COVID-19 outbreaks in Hong Kong and Macau led to the
tightening of quarantine and social distancing measures.
Although China started to ease pandemic-related
measures towards the end of the year, the suspension
of major business activities and travel restrictions
implemented throughout most of the year still put
unprecedented downward pressure on the entertainment
and hospitality industries in Mainland China, Hong Kong,
and Macau.

Global financial markets also experienced a tough year
in 2022 with surging inflation caused by supply chain
disruptions, the ongoing Russia-Ukraine conflict, and the
consecutive interest rate hikes in the United States. These
events have had a negative impact on economic growth
and stock markets and have dampened investor sentiment
in the financial markets throughout the year. Geopolitical
concerns and unpredictable economic data continued to
contribute to market instability and volatility.

Towards the end of 2022, a couple of positive
developments, including the border reopening of China
and the award of new 10-year gaming concessions
to the existing concessionaires in Macau (the “Macau
New Gaming Concessions”), appeared to be a glimmer
of hope. In the fourth quarter of 2022, the Central
Government announced its gradual relaxation of COVID-
19-related control measures and restrictions, followed by
the reopening of its borders in January 2023. It is believed
that China’s border reopening will not only accelerate
the country’s economic recovery but also boost global
economic growth.

BRIt

EE
=

TR TFE 2RERRE M IE-
FY B BRMEN2019E8REFH
Omicron# £ R B 2INF — KK
Foo EIRRERRITE - PEIAMITR
TE SIRZERTERBEERNEAE
HI R B3 T 55— | > B BRI IR
B — 820198 IR BRER > BRI
EZIABB R ERIER - BEREH
REAFRERBBRRRZFEERER
ERFERBOREEFEIEBELTHK
B R BB AR = MV R S
B ERRIFT AR BRI NTE ]

BRERTSN T _FREERY
—F > HERZETE - REEHREE
MRk EBEEENR  BEBRST - B2
EHHEREFLEERRRTRIER
TEERMBHRERS  MHMARK
B BB B e B LATE R B AR BUR R e B
RHGERERTENTE -

BAZZZHR ZIEAFEREH R
BEYY  EhEEREEMBRE > LUKIEM
BIRE AR AR REIT —&BN 1+ S
EREHA (DRPIIBERKERS))
N CE T TFFUFEC-HARENER
Z &M E20198 R m FH R AE R E HIHE K
EERE  HER _ 2 _=F—H5HE
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B
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEEwmKRON (&

OVERVIEW (CONTINUED)

After the approval of Law 7/2022 (the “New Gaming
Law”), which amended Law 16/2001 “Legal Framework
for Operating Games of Chance in Casinos” earlier in the
year, the Macau government announced the award of the
Macau New Gaming Concessions in December 2022. The
award has cleared uncertainties overhanging the prospects
of the gaming industry in Macau. With the committed
further investments of the six gaming concessionaires,
Macau will evolve into a world-class international tourism
destination and thus, its long-term sustainable growth will
be surely facilitated.

The Group is prepared to embrace the opportunities and
challenges brought by the change of economic cycle.
The Group remains steadfast in its strategy of improving
operational efficiency and optimising its product and
service offerings to capture the ongoing market recovery.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction
with the consolidated financial statements and the related
notes included in this annual report.

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue of the
Group was approximately HK$114.8 million, decreased by
approximately 24% from approximately HK$151.1 million
for the last corresponding year. Gross profit increased by
approximately 41% to approximately HK$12.4 million
(2021: approximately HK$8.8 million). The Group's shared
loss of the associates relating to Ponte 16, the flagship
investment project of the Group, for the year ended 31
December 2022 was approximately HK$42.1 million,
decreased by approximately 13% from approximately
HK$48.7 million for the last corresponding year. Loss
attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2022 was approximately HK$287.1 million
(2021: profit of approximately HK$4.9 million), whilst loss
per share was 5.83 HK cents (2021: earnings per share of
0.10 HK cents).

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The loss for the year ended 31 December 2022 was mainly
attributable to the recognition of (i) a substantial fair
value loss on the Group's overseas listed equity securities
of approximately HK$174.1 million; and (ii) a fair value
loss on the Group’s investment properties as well as a
write-down of carrying amount of the Group’s stock of
properties (“Write-down of the Stock of Properties”) in the
aggregate amount of approximately HK$20.6 million.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was paid in 2022 (2021: nil).
The directors of the Company (“Director(s)”) do not
recommend any payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Travel Business

The Group operates one of the largest travel agencies
in Canada, Jade Travel Ltd. (“Jade Travel”), which
provides professional travel solutions to customers
through dedicated segments targeting the wholesale
and retail markets. In 2022, the international tourism
industry began to show signs of recovery as many tourist
destinations in the Western countries eased or even
removed entry restrictions and quarantine measures to
welcome visitors. The government of Canada further
relaxed its border control measures in April 2022 and
subsequently removed all its entry restrictions in October
2022. Consequently, pent-up travel demand from business
travellers and international students had been gradually
unleashed throughout the year. Supported by Jade Travel’s
well-established network with all airlines operating in
Canada and its online platform providing round-the-
clock customer service, the Group was able to meet the
growing demand for air tickets and its sales volume in
2022 recovered to almost pre-pandemic level. In late 2022,
the Group obtained an approval from the International
Air Transport Association (“IATA”) to expand its ticketing
business in China. This enables the Group to explore new
opportunities with travel agencies in Mainland China and
better position itself to shine in the midst of the recovery
of global tourism.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEEwKRO (&

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Travel Business (continued)

In order to enhance its online booking service platform
with stringent cost control and reducing manpower
throughout the years, Jade Travel continues to enlarge
the implementation of its online auto-ticketing system
and online ticketing platform to certain online ticketing
agencies (OTA). As a result, revenue of the travel business
segment for the year ended 31 December 2022 decreased
by approximately 24% to approximately HK$112.1
million (2021: approximately HK$147.9 million) while the
gross profit margin increased from 3.8% to 8.7%. Profit
of approximately HK$3.3 million was recorded in this
segment (2021: loss of approximately HK$1.7 million),
including a reversal of impairment loss on intangible assets
of approximately HK$2.8 million which was recognised for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: an impairment
loss on intangible assets of approximately HK$1.1 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Property Investment Business

In 2022, the property market in Hong Kong faced a
significant slowdown due to the new wave of COVID-19
outbreaks and the hiking interest rate. Investor sentiment
was dampened and demand for commercial property in
Hong Kong was weakened. The market saw declines in
transactions and rental values as well as an increase in
office vacancy rates in all major office leasing markets in
Hong Kong.

Despite the fluctuations in global stock markets and
the hiking interest rate in 2022, Hong Kong's strong
fundamentals and highly developed financial industry also
contribute to the Group’s confidence in the city’s potential
to resume its role as a bustling business hub connecting
Mainland China and abroad. As such, the Group holds
a positive outlook for the long-term prospects of the
commercial property market in Hong Kong and believes
that its investment portfolio will consistently contribute
stable returns.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Property Investment Business (continued)
Revenue of the property investment business for the year
ended 31 December 2022 amounted to approximately
HK$2.6 million (2021: approximately HK$3.3 million).
Segment loss was approximately HK$15.9 million (2021:
segment profit of approximately HK$13.7 million) which
was mainly due to recognition of a fair value loss on
investment properties of approximately HK$9.8 million
(2021: fair value gain on investment properties of
approximately HK$8.1 million) and Write-down of the
Stock of Properties of approximately HK$10.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: reversal of
Write-down of the Stock of Properties of approximately
HK$0.5 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Investment Project — Ponte 16

The outbreak of Omicron variant in 2022 had a significant
impact on Macau's economy. Prompt prevention and
control measures were implemented in both Mainland
China and Macau resulted in a decline in visitor
traffic from Mainland China. In July 2022, the Macau
government took further steps to contain the spread of
COVID-19 by temporarily suspending casinos and non-
essential businesses in the community for two weeks. The
resurgence of the outbreak over the year took a toll on
Macau’s gaming and hospitality industries as well as the
overall economy. The number of visitors to Macau in 2022
decreased by 26.0% year-on-year (“yoy") to approximately
5.7 million, and the Macau’s gross gaming revenue
("GGR") for the year 2022 was approximately MOP42.2
billion, representing a 51.4% decrease compared with
2021 and a new record low. The year 2022 closed with
a monthly GGR of approximately MOP3.5 billion in
December, decreased by 56.3% yoy.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Investment Project — Ponte 16 (continued)

In response to the Omicron outbreak, Ponte 16 remained
unwavering in its commitment to safeguarding the
well-being of the local community, its employees and
guests, and worked closely with the government and
other peers. The collective efforts had paid off, as the
Macau government announced the gradual relaxation
of all COVID-19 measures in the fourth quarter of 2022,
including the reopening of borders with Mainland China
and Hong Kong, and thanks to the high vaccination rate
of over 90% of the Macau population, the local outbreak
was contained in a short period of time. The city, including
Ponte 16, gradually resumed normal by late December
2022 and was poised for the first Chinese New Year
holiday in January 2023 after the reopening of borders.

With the commitment to promoting the cultural,
travel and entertainment industries in Macau, Ponte
16 continued to operate and upgrade the “OLA
BB (“"OLA"), the one-stop platform featuring
travel information and promotions in Macau’s local
community. Leveraging the strong cultural resources
of the Inner Harbour area and its surrounding areas,
Ponte 16 collaborated with local enterprises, including
merchants and hotels, to provide discounts and privileges
to customers via OLA. This created more business
opportunities for those participated merchants, also
encouraged cross-sector spending and jointly promoted
the economy of the Macau Peninsula. Due to the close
proximity and connectivity, the coverage of OLA has been
extended to include enterprises in the Greater Bay Area,
in particular in Zhuhai. Ponte 16 is committed to not only
promoting the economy of the Macau Peninsula and the
surrounding regions but also revitalising the hospitality and
tourism industries. Since the launch of OLA in late 2021,
approximately 90 merchant partners have been recruited,
covering approximately 150 merchant outlets, which has
helped Ponte 16 to strengthen its market presence and
firmly secure itself on the fast track to recovery in 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Investment Project — Ponte 16 (continued)
Following the approval of the New Gaming Law in June
2022, Ponte 16 has maintained close communication
with the Macau government and its business partners to
ensure strict compliance with all legal requirements. As a
responsible member of the gaming industry, Ponte 16 is
committed to contributing to a sustainable and healthy
growth in Macau’s gaming industry and community.

As at 31 December 2022, the casino of Ponte 16 had 109
gaming tables in operation, consisting of 101 mass tables
and 8 high-limit tables. The average occupancy rate of
Sofitel Macau At Ponte 16 was approximately 48% for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: approximately
52%). For the year ended 31 December 2022, an Adjusted
EBITDA* loss of approximately HK$46.2 million was
recorded (2021: approximately HK$57.6 million).

In face of the intricate external environment, Ponte 16 has
unwaveringly continued to make valuable contributions
to the gaming and hospitality industries. As a testament
to its exceptional service, Sofitel Macau At Ponte 16
received 11 awards from reputable organisations in 2022,
including “Green Hotel Awards — Bronze 2020-2022" by
Environmental Protection Bureau, “Enjoyable Travel Awards
— Best City Resort” by Enjoyable Travel, “Journey+ 2022-
2023 The Best Hotel Awards — Best Resort” by Journey+,
“Ctrip pubic praise - Scenic Hotel” by Trip.com Group,
“Best Resort Hotel” and “Most Popular Restaurant”
by 2022 in Travel Award presented by In Travel, “Best
Resort Hotel”, “Best Restaurant” and “Best SPA" by The
11th Annual China Hotel Awards presented by Lifestyle
Magazine and “Best Resort Hotels” and “Best SPA" by
2022 Travel & Leisure Industry Awards presented by Travel
& Leisure Magazine.

* Adjusted EBITDA. Earnings Before Interest, Taxation, Depreciation
and Amortisation (and excluded interest income from bank
deposit)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

The Group continued to hold overseas listed equity
securities during the year to diversify its investment
portfolio. As at 31 December 2022, the Group held the
following significant investment which was classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

Number of Approximate

common stock percentage of

held as at stockholding as at

Name of investment Trading symbol 31 December 2022 31 December 2022
RZEZZ

RZZZZ +-B=+-H

+ZA=+-A BREREZ

RERTE RBNRE FIFEERHA BAaEat

%

Tesla, Inc. (“Tesla") TSLA 96,750 0.003

Number of Approximate

common stock percentage of

heldasat  stockholding as at

Name of investment Trading symbol 31 December 2021 31 December 2021

N —:

RZF--% +ZRA=t+-H

+ZB=+—H EEREZ

REHTE REAE S ERERHUE BAaBDT

%

Tesla TSLA 32,250 0.003
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percentage to

Investment cost Fair value  the Group's total

as at as at assets as at

31 December 2022 31 December 2022 31 December 2022
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Equivalent to Equivalent to
HK$ million HKS$ million
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47 93 7

Approximate

percentage to

Investment cost Fair value the Group’s total

as at as at assets as at

31 December 2021 31 December 2021 31 December 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT (CONTINUED)

Tesla was incorporated in the State of Delaware, the
United States of America with its common stock traded
on The Nasdaq Global Select Market. Tesla is principally
engaged in designing, developing, manufacturing and
selling high-performance fully electric vehicles and energy
generation and storage systems, and offering services
related to its sustainable energy products. As disclosed in
Tesla's audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2022, total revenues of Tesla
was increased by approximately 51% to approximately
UsSD81,462 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$638,621 million) for the year ended 31 December
2022 as compared with that for the last corresponding
year of approximately USD53,823 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$421,353 million), and its net income
attributable to common stockholders for the year ended
31 December 2022 was increased by approximately 1.3
times to approximately USD12,556 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$98,433 million) (2021: approximately
USD5,519 million (equivalent to approximately HK$43,205
million)), which were primarily due to the increase in
automotive sales revenue from increased deliveries and
deployments of its products.

Since the first quarter of 2020, there has been a
worldwide impact from the COVID-19 pandemic.
Government regulations and shifting social behaviours
have, at times, limited or closed non-essential
transportation, government functions, business activities
and person-to-person interactions. Global trade conditions
and consumer trends that originated during the pandemic
continue to persist and may also have long-lasting adverse
impact on Tesla and its industries independently of the
progress of the pandemic.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEEwmKRON (&

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT (CONTINUED)

For example, pandemic-related issues have exacerbated
port congestion and intermittent supplier shutdowns and
delays, resulting in additional expenses to expedite delivery
of critical parts. Similarly, increased demand for personal
electronics has created a shortfall of semiconductors,
which has caused challenges in Tesla’s supply chain and
production. In addition, labour shortages resulting from
the pandemic, including worker absenteeism, has led to
increased difficulty in hiring and retaining manufacturing
and service workers, as well as increased labour costs and
supplier delays. Sustaining Tesla’s production trajectory will
require the ongoing readiness and solvency of its suppliers
and vendors, a stable and motivated production workforce
and government co-operation, including for travel and
visa allowances. The contingencies inherent in the ramp
at new facilities such as Gigafactory Berlin-Brandenburg
and Gigafactory Texas may be exacerbated by these
challenges. Additionally, infection rates and regulations
continue to fluctuate in various regions, which may impact
operations. For example, in 2022, spikes in COVID-19
cases in Shanghai resulted in the temporary shutdown of
Gigafactory Shanghai, as well as parts of Tesla's supply
chain, and impacted its ability to deliver cars.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT (CONTINUED)

Tesla cannot predict the duration or direction of current
global trends or their sustained impact. Ultimately, it
continues to monitor macroeconomic conditions to
remain flexible and to optimise and evolve its business as
appropriate, and attempt to accurately project demand
and infrastructure requirements globally and deploy its
production, workforce and other resources accordingly.
Lastly, rising interest rates may lead to consumers to
increasingly pull back spending, including on its products,
which may harm its demand, business and operating
results. If Tesla experiences unfavourable global market
conditions, or if Tesla cannot or does not maintain
operations at a scope that is commensurate with such
conditions or are later required to or choose to suspend
such operations again, its business, prospects, financial
condition and operating results may be harmed.

A fair value loss of approximately HK$174.1 million was
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
fair value gain of approximately HK$87.7 million). During
the year, Tesla declared a three-for-one split of Tesla’s
common stock effected in the form of a stock dividend in
August 2022.

The significant investment is held for trading. The Group
will review its investment strategy regularly in response to
the changes in the market situation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had net current
assets of approximately HK$24.6 million (31 December
2021: approximately HK$117.6 million) and net assets
of approximately HK$719.4 million (31 December 2021:
approximately HK$1,007.6 million). The Group adopts
a conservative approach towards its treasury policies.
The Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by
monitoring the trade receivables of its customers on an
ongoing basis. To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely
monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that
the liquidity structure of the Group's assets, liabilities
and commitments can meet its funding requirements.
Presently, there is no hedging policy with respect to the
foreign exchange exposure. The Group's transactional
currencies are Hong Kong dollars and Canadian dollars
as substantially all the revenues are in Hong Kong dollars
and Canadian dollars. The Group's transactional foreign
exchange exposure was insignificant.

On 1 December 2008, Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (“Mr.
Yeung”, being the Chairman of the Board, an executive
Director and a controlling shareholder of the Company)
provided a HK$200 million term loan facility to the
Company which is unsecured and charged with interest
at the prime rate quoted for Hong Kong dollars loans
by The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited. The principal amount of the loan facility was
increased up to HK$290 million on 14 April 2009
(the “Revised Mr. Yeung's Loan Facility”) and the final
repayment date of the loan and all other sums owing to
Mr. Yeung under the Revised Mr. Yeung's Loan Facility was
further extended from 31 October 2022 to 31 October
2024 by a supplemental letter of agreement dated 30
September 2021. As at 31 December 2022, the Company
owed HK$216.0 million to Mr. Yeung under the Revised
Mr. Yeung's Loan Facility (31 December 2021: HK$60.0
million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing
(continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s secured bank
facilities were approximately HK$313.2 million (31
December 2021: HK$339.5 million) which bear interest at
Hong Kong interbank offered rate (HIBOR) plus a margin
that was ranged from 1.7% to 2.0% per annum (2021:
1.7% to 1.75% per annum). In addition, the Group had
secured general bank facilities for issuance of standby
letters of credit of (i) CAD2.0 million (31 December 2021:
CAD2.0 million) which carries a commission rate of 1.2%
per annum; and (ii) approximately USDO.1 million (31
December 2021: approximately USDO.1 million). The
proceeds of the facilities were for the Group’s general
operation. As at 31 December 2022, the outstanding
bank loans were HK$312.5 million (31 December 2021:
HK$302.5 million).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had current and non-
current lease liabilities of approximately HK$0.6 million and
HK$0.2 million (31 December 2021: approximately HK$0.6
million and HK$0.3 million) respectively.

As at 31 December 2022, total equity attributable to
owners of the Company was approximately HK$719.4
million (31 December 2021: approximately HK$1,007.6
million). The net gearing ratio, which was measured on the
basis of the interest-bearing borrowings (including lease
liabilities), net of cash and cash equivalents, of the Group
over total equity attributable to owners of the Company,
was approximately 53% as at 31 December 2022 (31
December 2021: approximately 31%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEEwmKRON (&

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Pledge of Assets
As at 31 December 2022, the Group had secured the
following assets:

(a

(b)

the Group pledged all of its investment properties,
one of its stock of properties as well as the leasehold
land and building totally with the carrying amount of
approximately HK$434.9 million (31 December 2021:
approximately HK$461.0 million) to secure against
the loan facilities of approximately HK$313.2 million
and a standby letter of credit of CAD2.0 million,
totally equivalent to approximately HK$324.9 million
(31 December 2021: HK$339.5 million and CAD2.0
million, totally equivalent to approximately HK$351.9
million) granted to the Group;

World Fortune Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, pledged all
(31 December 2021: all) of its shares in Pier 16 —
Property Development Limited (“Pier 16 — Property
Development”, an associate of the Group) to a bank
in respect of the loan facilities granted to Pier 16 —
Property Development (the “Loan Facilities”); and

the Group’s a pledged time deposit of approximately
USDO0.1 million (equivalent to approximately HK$0.6
million) was released during the year (31 December
2021: a pledged time deposit of approximately
USDO0.1 million (equivalent to approximately HK$0.6
million) to a bank for the issuance of a standby letter
of credit of approximately USDO.1 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$0.5 million)).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Contingent Liabilities

The Company gave a corporate guarantee (the
“Guarantee”) to a bank in respect of the Loan Facilities.
The maximum guarantee amount borne by the Company
under the Guarantee was HK$490.0 million.

The outstanding loan under the Loan Facilities as at 31
December 2022 was approximately HK$230.0 million (31
December 2021: approximately HK$230.0 million).

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of
68 employees. Remuneration is determined on the
basis of qualifications, experience, responsibilities and
performance. In addition to the basic remuneration, staff
benefits include medical insurance and retirement benefits.
Share options may also be granted to eligible employees of
the Group as a long-term incentive.

PROSPECTS

The year 2023 has started on a positive note with the
orderly reopening of Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macau. The reopening paves the way for a rapid rebound
in economic activities in the domestic markets and is
expected to impact global growth through increased
domestic demand and international travel. However,
interest rate is expected to remain high for a period of time
and result in a more pronounced economic slowdown.
Moreover, the potential for further escalation of the
Russia-Ukraine conflict is a concern that could affect
global stability. The Group intends to leverage its extensive
experience in the entertainment and tourist-related
industries to capture the rising demand in the tourism
sector. At the same time, the Group will exercise prudence
in capital management to maintain corporate agility and
resilience as it journeys towards a full recovery.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEEwmKRON (&

PROSPECTS (CONTINUED)

Following the resumption of cross-border travel in most
Asian countries, Jade Travel's business is starting to
recover. With a strong brand reputation in both retail
and wholesale businesses in North America, Jade Travel
is well-prepared to capture the growing opportunities.
Jade Travel has received approval from IATA to expand its
wholesale ticketing business in China and plans to further
explore strategic collaborations with leading domestic and
international travel portals. This will help Jade Travel better
serve the recovering tourism market in China and widen its
revenue streams. Jade Travel will also focus on designing
packages and local tours to destinations all over the world,
catering to the diverse interests of retail travellers in the
post-pandemic era.

The property market in Hong Kong is still expected to be
impacted by high interest rate in the short term. However,
the reopening of borders provides a solid ground for the
recovery of commercial property demand, especially in
prime districts. The Group remains confident in Hong
Kong's position as a leading international financial centre
and will continue to closely monitor the commercial
property market. The Group is committed to reviewing
all available options to constantly optimise its investment
portfolio.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

PROSPECTS (CONTINUED)

Macau's casinos have started to show signs of recovery,
with GGR in the first two months of 2023 increased by
55.3% yoy to approximately MOP21.9 billion. Macau's
visitor numbers also surged during the Chinese New Year
holiday and over 451,000 visitors has recorded. The Group
is optimistic about Macau's future due to its positive
recovery momentum, infrastructure developments, and
government policies. The ongoing development of the
Greater Bay Area Initiative, combined with the continuous
growth of Mainland China’s outbound tourism, will
support Macau’s position as a global tourism destination.
The Group believes that the mass market holds the
most potential for sustainable growth and Ponte 16 will
continue to offer a superior accommodation experience
with a distinctive cultural connotation, in addition to
enriching its comprehensive entertainment facilities and
initiatives. As a casino-entertainment resort located in
the exclusive Inner Harbour area of Macau, Ponte 16
will maintain its leading position with the support of its
neighbouring partners.

As the pandemic is fading away, the Group is optimistic
about the future. In 2023, the Group will focus on
strengthening its position in the entertainment and tourist-
related industries while optimising its investment property
portfolio to create a long-term value for its stakeholders.
As the market continues to recover, the Group will
take proactive steps to keep pace with the changing
marketplace and create a sustainable value in the long run.
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Corporate Governance Report
EEER/KRS

Success Universe Group Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is committed
to maintain high corporate governance standard and
procedures to ensure the integrity, transparency and quality
of disclosure in order to enhance the shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the directors of the Company
("Director(s)”), the Company has complied with all
the code provisions set out in Part 2 of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code"”) contained in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of Directors (the “Board”), led by its chairman
("Chairman”), Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny, is responsible
for overseeing the management of the business and
affairs, considering and approving strategic plans and
major corporate matters, as well as reviewing operational
and financial performance. It also establishes the Group's
purpose, values and strategy to align with the corporate
culture. The Board is committed to make decisions in the
best interests of both the Company and its shareholders
(“Shareholders™).
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Board currently consists of six members, including two
executive Directors, namely Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny
(Chairman) and Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman (Deputy Chairman);
a non-executive Director, namely Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle
("NED"); and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann, Mr. Chin Wing Lok,
Ambrose and Mr. Chong Ming Yu (collectively
“INEDs” or each of them “INED"). One of the INEDs,
Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose, is a certified public
accountant (practising) and a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He
has over 36 years of experience in auditing, accounting
and taxation.

All the Directors have entered into service contracts/letters
of appointment without specific term of office with the
Company. Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company
(the “Bye-laws” or "Existing Bye-laws"), all Directors
are subject to retirement and re-election at least once
every three years at the annual general meetings of the
Company ("AGM(s)").
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRET E

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

All Directors, including the NED and all INEDs, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its
efficient and effective functioning. Composing of Directors
with different business and professional background
and a female Board member, the Board is considered
to have an appropriate size and balanced structure
and composition with diverse mix of skills, experience,
expertise and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the requirements of the Group's business. The Directors’
biographical details, including relationships among them
and their respective roles on the Board and its committees,
are set out in the paragraph headed “Directors” under
the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 122 to 126 of this annual
report.

The roles of the Chairman and the Deputy Chairman who
performs the function of chief executive are segregated
and assumed by separate individuals to strike a balance of
power and authority so that power and job responsibilities
are not concentrated in any one individual of the Board.
The Chairman, Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny, is responsible
for overseeing the function of the Board and formulating
overall strategies and policies of the Company, while
the Deputy Chairman, Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman, is
responsible for implementing the Company’s strategies
regarding the business development of the Group as well
as managing the Group’s business and operations. The
functions and responsibilities between the Chairman and
the Deputy Chairman are clearly segregated.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Company has established mechanisms (the
“Mechanisms”) to ensure that independent views and
inputs are made available to the Board. The Mechanisms
are categorised into four aspects, namely composition of
the Board and its committees, independence assessment,
remuneration as well as Board decision making. Taking
into account of the four aspects with details set out below,
the Mechanisms are considered to be effective to ensure a
strong independence element in the Board:

e  Composition of the Board and its

committees

The Board consists of three INEDs, representing
one-half of the Board. Besides, all INEDs are members
of the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”),
the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) of the Board, and
represent the majority of the members of these
committees. The INEDs will also be appointed as far
as practicable to other Board committees established
from time to time to ensure independent views are
available.

e Independence assessment
The Nomination Committee strictly adheres to the
policy for nomination of Directors (the “Nomination
Policy”) and the independence assessment criteria
as set out in the Listing Rules with regard to the
nomination, appointment and re-election of INEDs.

Each INED shall keep the Board promptly and fully
informed of any of his/her business or other activities
which would or is likely to cause him/her to be in
conflict with the interest of the Company and any
matter which may affect his/her independence for the
purposes of the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRET E

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Independence assessment (continued)

The Nomination Committee assesses the
independence of INEDs and reviews the annual
confirmation of independence provided by each INED
annually to ensure that the INEDs can continually
exercise independent judgement.

Remuneration

No equity-based remuneration, including but not
limited to share options or grants, with performance-
related elements will be granted to INEDs in order to
avoid bias in their decision-making and compromise
their objectivity and independence.

Board decision making

INEDs (as well as other Directors) are provided with
updates from management and are entitled to seek
further information from the management on the
matters to be discussed at the Board meetings and
any meetings of the Board committee(s) on which
they serve. They can also seek assistance from the
company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) and, where necessary, independent advice
from external professional advisers at the Company’s
expense.

Annual meeting is held between the Chairman and
all INEDs without the presence of other Directors so
as to provide effective platform for the Chairman to
listen independent views on various issues concerning
the Group.

The Board will review the implementation and
effectiveness of the Mechanisms and consider any revisions

thereof that may be required on an annual basis.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Board meets regularly throughout the year as and
when required. Notices of at least 14 days are given to
all Directors for all regular Board meetings. The Company
Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the agendas
for the meetings and all Directors are consulted whether
to include any matters in the agendas. Agenda and
accompanying board papers are given to all Directors in a
timely manner and at least 3 days before the appointed
date of each meeting.

During the year under review, four regular Board meetings
and three non-regular Board meetings were held. Details
of attendance of the Directors at the said Board meetings
are set out below:
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Number of
Board meetings
attended/held
HEEEEGERY
Directors = BTESEEERH
Executive Directors WITES
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (Chairman) BB E (F/E) 5/7
Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman (Deputy Chairman) BIEX RS (BIF/E) 717
Non-executive Director FERITES
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle ZERE 5/7
Independent non-executive Directors BIAERITES
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BRETL 717
Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose (I S 77
Mr. Chong Ming Yu HRmiE 717
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EXERRS (&

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

During the year under review, one general meeting of the
Company, namely the AGM, was held on 10 June 2022
(2022 AGM"). Details of attendance of the Directors at
the 2022 AGM are set out below:
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2022
AGM attendance
ZEZZF
Directors ) RRBEAREGZ HELER
Executive Directors WITES
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (Chairman) e E (F/E) 71
Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman (Deputy Chairman) EESRE (BIFE) A
Non-executive Director EMITES
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle BEEEE 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors BIERITES
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BRELLT 171
Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose (& S 171
Mr. Chong Ming Yu HHMiE 171
The Board has agreed on a procedure to enable the EEZECHE—EZEFNBEBIT

Directors to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’'s expense, to
assist them in performing their duties. All Directors are
provided with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group's performance,
financial position and prospects to keep the Directors
abreast of the Group’s affairs in order to discharge their
duties. All Directors are also updated from time to time on
major changes/material developments in the laws, rules
and regulations applicable to the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

During the year, the Board has reviewed and considered
that the contribution required from each of the Directors
to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company was
appropriate and each of the Directors has given sufficient
time to perform his/her responsibilities. The Directors
inform the Company in a timely manner of any change in
the number and nature of offices held in public companies
or organisations and other significant commitments. Each
of the Directors discloses semi-annually to the Company
the identity and nature of office he/she holds in the public
companies or organisations as well as an indication of the
time involved.

Every newly appointed Director will be given a
comprehensive formal induction covering the Group’s
business as well as the statutory and regulatory
obligations of a director of a listed company. To assist
the Directors to participate in continuous professional
development, the Company arranges and funds suitable
training to the Directors to update and enhance their
knowledge and skills for performing the Directors’
roles and responsibilities. During the year under review,
all Directors, namely Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny,
Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman, Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle,
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann, Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose
and Mr. Chong Ming Yu, were furnished with materials
regarding, inter alia, directors’ duties, corporate
governance, business transaction management,
anti-corruption as well as applicable laws, rules and
regulations updates, attended an in-house seminar
regarding board responsibilities on environmental, social
and governance (“ESG") organised by the Company, and
also viewed the e-training courses and reading materials
provided by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) and ICAC. The Directors are also
encouraged to attend training relevant to their duties and
responsibilities that they consider appropriate. All Directors
are requested to provide their respective records of training
to the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRET E

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board has established four Board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the executive committee (the
“Executive Committee”) to oversee particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs and to assist in sharing the Board's
responsibilities. The Board has reserved for its decision
or consideration on matters covering corporate strategy,
annual and interim results, changes of members of the
Board and its committees, major acquisitions, disposals
and capital transactions, and other significant operational
and financial matters. All the Board committees have
clear written terms of reference and have to report to the
Board regularly on their decisions and recommendations.
The day-to-day running of the Group, including
implementation of the strategies and plans adopted by the
Board and its committees, is delegated to management
with divisional heads responsible for different aspects of
the business/affairs.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established by the Board with
specific written terms of reference. The terms of reference
for the Audit Committee is available on the Company’s
website and the website of the Stock Exchange. The Audit
Committee currently consists of the NED and all INEDs and
is chaired by Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose who possesses
appropriate professional accounting qualification as
required under the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Board has delegated to the Audit Committee the
responsibility to perform the corporate governance duties
set out in the CG Code. During the year under review,
the primary duties of the Audit Committee included,
inter alia, monitoring integrity of the financial statements
of the Company and ensuring objectivity and credibility
of financial reporting, reviewing effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group
(the "Risk Management and Internal Control Systems”),
overseeing the relationship with the external auditors of
the Company (“External Auditors”) as well as ensuring
maintenance of good corporate governance standard and
procedures by the Company.

During the year under review, three Audit Committee
meetings were held and details of attendance of the
Audit Committee members at the said Audit Committee
meetings are set out below:

Audit Committee members

BREZEENE

TEEXELRS (&

BEZZE8Y (8

EFGCERRENLZEGEBERTER
BATRIFMSZEXEE RS N[O
FEN BZZEGZIEHES HP
B1F) BERARBMBREZ TEER
BRUBREEEHIE BN EEEA
REERNESEZERS (RREERAN
MEERM) 2 BB EHARE S
BB (TSNS 8em)) ZRfE > MUK
BRAERGBMEFRRFZEXEEARER
BRFe

REIBEFERNBERT=NEZEZESTY

FOMBZEZESNEYHE LEZE

EEZH IR BFEYWT ¢
Number of

Audit Committee
meetings attended/held
HEBEZZEEERREY
BITERZETEERRK

Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose

(Chairman of the Audit Committee) (FEEZZEZE
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle BEEEYE
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BREZL
Mr. Chong Ming Yu HRMiE

2 F/E) 3/3
2/3
3/3
3/3
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EXERRS (&

AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The major work performed by the Audit Committee during
the year included the following:

e  Reviewed the draft annual report and accounts as
well as the draft annual results announcement for the
year ended 31 December 2021, and the draft interim
report and accounts as well as the draft interim
results announcement for the six months ended 30
June 2022;

e (Considered a detailed whistleblowing policy
setting out the details for the employees of the
Group (“Employees”) and third parties who deal
with the Group to raise concerns, in confidence
and anonymity, about any suspected or actual
misconduct, malpractice or irregularities in any
matters related to the Group (the “Whistleblowing
Policy”);

e  (Considered the re-appointment of the External
Auditors;

e  Considered the terms of engagement of the External
Auditors, including their proposed fees;

e Discussed with the External Auditors the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations;

e Considered the engagement of an external
independent consultant to provide internal
audit function for the year ended 31 December
2022, which comprises, inter alia, enterprise risk
assessment, review on the internal control system
of the Group as well as review on the corporate
governance practices of the Company;
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Reviewed the effectiveness of the Risk Management
and Internal Control Systems, including the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions as well as those relating to the ESG
performance and reporting (the “ESG Performance
and Reporting”);

Reviewed the Company's compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the corporate governance
report contained in the annual report;

Reviewed the arrangements for the Employees
to raise concerns, in confidence, about possible
improprieties in any matters related to the Group;

Reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

Reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of all Directors and the senior
management of the Company ("“Senior Management”);

Reviewed the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
and

Reviewed the codes of conduct, policies, guidelines
and compliance manuals applicable to the Directors
and the Employees.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EXERRS (&

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established by the
Board with specific written terms of reference. The terms
of reference for the Remuneration Committee is available
on the Company's website and the website of the Stock
Exchange. The Remuneration Committee currently consists
of the Chairman of the Board, the NED and all INEDs with
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann acts as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The major responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for remuneration
of all Directors and Senior Management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy, to determine
the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and Senior Management and also to make
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of the
NED and all INEDs.

The Company has adopted a remuneration policy for
Directors and Senior Management (the “Remuneration
Policy”) setting out the procedures for determining or
review of remuneration packages of/compensation for
the Directors and Senior Management. In determining
the remuneration packages of executive Directors and
Senior Management, and arriving its recommendations
of the remuneration proposals of the NED and all INEDs,
the Remuneration Committee takes into consideration
on various factors, such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors and the Senior Management. During the
determination and review process, no Director or any
of his/her associates is involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

During the year under review, one Remuneration
Committee meeting was held and details of attendance
of the Remuneration Committee members at the said
Remuneration Committee meeting are set out below:

TEEXELRS (&
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Number of
Remuneration Committee
meeting attended/held

HEFWEZESTEERY

Remuneration Committee members HNEEERE BITHFMEEETERERH
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BRETL

(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) FWNZEE L /E) 171
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny NI 11
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle BEEEEE 1/1
Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose [EPIE S 171
Mr. Chong Ming Yu HRMEE 171

The major work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the year included the following:

e Reviewed the Remuneration Policy and the
Company’s remuneration structure for all Directors

and Senior Management;

e Reviewed and determined the remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and Senior

Management;

e  Reviewed the remuneration packages of the NED and

all INEDs; and

° Reviewed the terms of the service contracts of all

executive Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EXERRS (&

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board
with specific written terms of reference. The terms of
reference for the Nomination Committee is available on
the Company’s website and the website of the Stock
Exchange. The Nomination Committee currently consists
of the Chairman of the Board, the NED and all INEDs with
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny acts as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The major responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity
of perspectives) of the Board, to identify individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members and select
or make recommendations to the Board on selection for
directorships, to assess the independence of INEDs, to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors, as well as to review the Board diversity policy
of the Company (the “Board Diversity Policy”) and the
Nomination Policy.

The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy
which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board. The Company recognises and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the
quality of its performance, and will select candidates for
the Board basing on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and independence (the “Measurable Objectives”). The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
The Nomination Committee reviews the Measurable
Objectives set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy
by considering the Company’s business model and specific
needs from time to time and recommends any revisions
thereof, if necessary, to the Board for consideration and
approval.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

A summary of the diversity of the Board as at 31
December 2022 is set out in the table below:

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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TEEXELRS (&

RBZEE (@)

F+HA=+—H &F¢g

ZUIEZMEHN TR

Number of Director(s)
EFHYE
Composition Executive Directors )
#ERY HITEE
NED 1
FFRMITES
INEDs 3
BIUIFRITES
Gender Male 5
5 SH
Female 1
7%
Age Group 46-55 2
FekER 56-65 2
> 66 2
Skills/Knowledge/ Related industries knowledge/experience 5
Experience MERIITEA K5
B HIH KRR Business management 4
BEEE
Strategic planning and risk management 4
SRES R B K [ e B I
Other listed board roles 3
HtMIEHmESEAEB
Professional Accounting 1
HERR G5t
Legal
it ’
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRET E

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Board has achieved gender diversity by having
both male and female members and the current female
representation in the Board level is approximately 16.7%.
To enhance gender diversity in the Board level, the Board
has set a target for achieving its female representation
to around 30% by appointing one female member
before end of 2024. In order to achieve the target, the
Nomination Committee will solicit recommendations for
female candidates and propose a suitable candidate in
accordance with the criteria and processes as set out in the
Nomination Policy.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the gender
diversity of the Senior Management is at 1:1 male
to female ratio and the gender diversity of the total
workforce of the Group is at 1:1.86 male to female ratio.
Details of the relevant data of the Group’s workforce are
set out in the performance table for social performance
contained in the section headed “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” on page 92 of this
annual report. The Group maintains a balanced gender
ratio in Senior Management and a reasonable gender
ratio in its total workforce. The Group emphasises
equal opportunities for all staff and candidates during
recruitment, internal transfer and promotion. It prohibits
any form of discrimination, such as gender, age and race,
and promotes and recruits staff based on various factors,
including ability, expertise, skills and integrity.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Board has adopted the Nomination Policy which sets
out the process of identification, selection and evaluation
of a candidate for election to the Board. Where a vacancy
on the Board exists or an additional Director is considered
necessary, the Nomination Committee will solicit
recommendations for candidates from any source it deems
appropriate, including referrals from members of the Board
and management of the Company or recommendations
from personnel agents. The Nomination Committee
will evaluate the candidate by considering, inter alia, (i)
the candidate’s qualifications and contribution from the
candidate’s background, experience, specific qualities,
knowledge or skills; (i) the candidate on merit and against
the Measurable Objectives, with due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board; and (iii) the requirement
for the Board to have independent non-executive Directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidate would be considered independent with
reference to the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules, and it will also take into account of the
existing structure, size and composition of the Board
(collectively the “Criteria”). The Nomination Committee
will make recommendation to the Board to appoint the
appropriate candidate as a Director.

The Nomination Committee evaluates retiring Directors
who wish to continue their services on the Board based
on the Criteria and makes recommendation to the Board
for proposing re-election of the relevant Directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

To ensure the effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy
and the Nomination Policy, the Nomination Committee will
review the said policies annually and discuss any revisions
that may be required, and recommend any such revisions
to the Board for consideration and approval.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRET E

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

During the year under review, two Nomination Committee
meetings were held and details of attendance of the
Nomination Committee members at the said Nomination
Committee meetings are set out below:

RBZEE (@)

REEFERERITMRIEREESE
HMREREEENENF LMESLE
EggR BT BEHRINT

Number of
Nomination Committee
meetings attended/held

HERLZETEERY

Nomination Committee members RBZEEEHE BITIRLZEGEERH
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny s e

(Chairman of the Nomination Committee) B2 ZEEZLE) 2/2
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle BEBEE 172
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BREZL 2/2
Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose [EPIE S 2/2
Mr. Chong Ming Yu HRMEE 2/2

The major work performed by the Nomination Committee
during the year included the following:

Assessed the independence of all INEDs;

e  Considered the nomination of the retiring Directors
for re-election as Directors at the annual general
meeting held in 2022;

e Reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board;

e Reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and its
implementation and effectiveness; and

e  Reviewed the Nomination Policy.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee was established by the
Board with specific written terms of reference. It
currently consists of all executive Directors, namely
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny and Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman
with Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny acts as the chairman of
the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee is
responsible for reviewing and approving, inter alia, any
matters concerning the day-to-day management, business
and operational affairs of the Company, and any matters
to be delegated to it by the Board from time to time.

During the year under review, four Executive Committee
meetings were held and details of attendance of the
Executive Committee members at the said Executive
Committee meetings are set out below:
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Number of
Executive Committee
meetings attended/held

HEANTEZETEERY

Executive Committee members BITZEERE BITHITEETEERY
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny BT

(Chairman of the Executive Committee) BITZEEELE) 4/4
Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman BAENIE 4/4
COMPANY SECRETARY NEMWE

Ms. Chiu Nam Ying, Agnes is the Company Secretary.
Her biographical information is set out in the sub-
paragraph headed “Company Secretary” under the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on page 126 of this annual report.

During the year under review, in compliance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company Secretary has taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRET E

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors (the “Code of
Conduct”) on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, each of
whom has confirmed his’/her compliance with the required
standard set out in the Code of Conduct and the Model
Code throughout the year under review.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibilities for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks (including
ESG-related risks (“ESG-Related Risks™)) it is willing to take
in achieving the Group's strategic objectives, maintaining
appropriate and effective Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems (including those for ESG-Related Risks)
and reviewing their effectiveness on an ongoing basis.
Management is responsible for the design, implementation
and monitoring of such systems, while the Board
oversees management in performing its duties. The Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems are designed
to provide reasonable, though not absolute, assurance
against material misstatements or loss and to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems
and achievement of the Group’s objectives.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

The Group adopts a risk management system which
manages the risk associated with its business and
operations. The system comprises the following phases:

e I|dentification: Identify ownership of risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the achievement
of objectives.

e Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks
and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

e Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure
effective communication to the Board and on-going
monitor the residual risks.

The Company has in place an internal control system
which is compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the Treadway Commission (“COSQO")
2013 framework. The COSO 2013 framework enables the
Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The
components of the framework are shown as follows:

e  Control Environment: A set of standards, processes
and structures that provide the basis for carrying out
internal control across the Group.

e Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analysing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks
should be managed.

e  Control Activities: Actions established by policies
and procedures to help ensure that management
directives to mitigate risks to the achievement of
objectives are carried out.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRET E

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

e Information and Communication: Internal and
external communication to provide the Group with
the information needed to carry out day-to-day
internal control activities.

e Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to
ascertain whether each components of internal
control is present and functioning.

A disclosure of inside information policy (the "Inside
Information Policy”) is in place to ensure potential inside
information being captured and confidentiality of such
information being maintained until consistent and timely
disclosure are made in accordance with the Listing Rules.
The Inside Information Policy regulates the handling and
dissemination of inside information, which includes:

e Designated reporting channels from different
departments/operation units informing any potential
inside information to the Company Secretary;

e The access of information is restricted to a
limited number of employees on a need-to-know
basis. Employees who are in possession of inside
information are fully conversant with their obligations
to preserve confidentiality;

e  Confidentiality agreements are in place when the
Group enters into significant negotiations;

e  The Senior Management to evaluate the potential
inside information and to determine further
escalation, and the executive Directors to determine
disclosure as required; and

e  The Deputy Chairman is the designated person
who speaks on behalf of the Company when
communicating with external parties, such as media,
analysts or investors.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

During the year, the Company engaged an external
independent consultant with professional staff in
possession of relevant expertise (the “Independent
Professional Firm"”) to perform internal audit function
for the year, which comprised, inter alia, enterprise risk
assessment and reviews on the internal control system of
the Group, including financial, operational and compliance
controls. The review plan was approved by the Audit
Committee and the Board. Based on the risk assessments
and the reviews of the internal control systems of the
Group conducted by the Independent Professional Firm
for the year, no significant risk and control deficiency
was identified. The relevant assessment and review
reports have been considered by the Audit Committee
and the Board for assessing the effectiveness of the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems. The Audit
Committee has also reviewed the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions as well as those relating
to the ESG Performance and Reporting. The Board,
through the reviews made by the Independent Professional
Firm and the Audit Committee, concluded that the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems are effective
and adequate for the Group as a whole.

The Company is committed to maintaining high
probity standards and ethical business practices. An
anti-corruption policy of the Group (the "Anti-Corruption
Policy”) and the Whistleblowing Policy are in place and
included into the Employees’ handbook to ensure that the
importance of staff integrity is emphasised and delivered
to the Employees. The Anti-Corruption Policy provides
guidance on the ethical behaviours when handling issues
such as bribery and corruption, conflict of interest and
acceptance of gift. The Whistleblowing Policy provides
reporting channels and guidance for Employees and third
parties who deal with the Group to raise concerns, in
confidence and anonymity, about any suspected or actual
misconduct, malpractice or irregularities in any matters
related to the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRET E

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS'
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of
the Group and ensure that the consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The Directors also ensure the timely publication of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

The statement of the External Auditors, HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB"), about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group is set out in the paragraph headed “Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” under the section headed “Independent
Auditors’ Report” on pages 133 to 136 of this annual
report.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable
enquiries, they are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Group'’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the amounts paid
to the external auditors of the Group in respect of the
following services provided to the Group are as follows:
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HK$'000

BETT

Audit services Z AR5 750
Other advisory services (Note) HEERARTS (52 280
1,030

Note: Other advisory services mainly comprised interim review services

auring the year.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening a special general meeting

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, the Board
may whenever it thinks fit call special general meetings
("SGM(s)"), and Shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require a SGM to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at
the Company’s head office and principal place of business
(the "Head Office”) at Units 1003-04A, 10/F, Tower 1,
Admiralty Centre, 18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for the
attention of the Company Secretary and may consist of
several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation
that the request is proper and in order, the Company
Secretary will ask the Board to call the SGM and include
the resolution in the agenda for such SGM.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them representing
more than one half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the said date.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRET E

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’
Meetings

To put forward proposals at an AGM or a SGM, the
Shareholders should submit a written notice of those
proposals with the detailed contact information to the
Company Secretary at the Head Office at Units 1003-
04A, 10/F., Tower 1, Admiralty Centre, 18 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong. The request will be verified with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong and upon
their confirmation that the request is proper and in order,
the Company Secretary will ask the Board to include the
resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholders
concerned at AGM or SGM varies according to the nature
of the proposal, as follows:

(@ Not less than 21 clear days’ notice or not less than
20 clear business days’ notice (whichever is longer)
in writing if the proposal constitutes an ordinary
resolution of the Company in an AGM and not less
than 21 clear days’ notice or not less than 10 clear
business days’ notice (whichever is longer) in writing
if the proposal constitutes a special resolution of the
Company in any SGM; or

(b) Not less than 14 clear days’ notice or not less than
10 clear business days’ notice (whichever is longer)
in writing if the proposal constitutes an ordinary
resolution of the Company in all other SGMs.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
SHAREHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

The Board has adopted a Shareholders’ communication
policy (the “Shareholders’ Communication Policy”) for the
purposes of ensuring that the Shareholders are provided
with ready, equal and timely access to information about
the Company, enabling the Shareholders to exercise
their rights in an informed manner and allowing the
Shareholders to engage actively with the Company.

The Company maintains its own website,
www.successug.com, at which the Shareholders can
access the Company's information, such as financial
reports, announcements, circulars, notices as well as details
regarding the necessary procedures for the Shareholders
to propose a person for election as a Director. Additional
information, such as press releases, presentation materials
and other business information, is also available on the
Company's website. Information on the Company's
website is in both English and Chinese versions and is
updated on a timely/regular basis.

The Board welcomes questions and opinions from the
Shareholders who may at any time send their enquiries
and concerns to the Board by addressing them to the
Company Secretary or the Corporate Communications
Department of the Company by mail to Units 1003-
04A, 10/F., Tower 1, Admiralty Centre, 18 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong or by email to info@successug.com.
Besides, Shareholders may direct questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, by mail to 17/F., Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong or by email
to is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EXERRS (&

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
SHAREHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with the
Shareholders through AGMs and other general meetings.
All Directors, including the Chairman, who is also
the chairmen of the Nomination Committee and the
Executive Committee, as well as the chairmen of the
Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee, were
present at the 2022 AGM to answer the Shareholders’
questions. HLB also attended the 2022 AGM for the
purposes of answering questions about the conduct of the
audit, the preparation and contents of the auditors’ report,
the accounting policies and auditors’ independence.
Separate resolutions have been proposed at the 2022
AGM on each substantially separate issues. Detailed
procedures for conducting a poll are clearly explained
at the commencement of the 2022 AGM. High voting
approval rate on the resolutions considered was recorded
at the 2022 AGM.

Press conference, media interview and/or meeting with
analysts and investors are arranged from time to time
to facilitate communication between the Company,
Shareholders and the investment community. During the
year, a press conference and various media interviews have
been held. The Deputy Chairman, who had dialogues
with media, complied with the disclosure obligations and
requirements under the Inside Information Policy.

The Shareholders” Communication Policy and its
implementation and effectiveness will be reviewed by the
Board annually. During the year, the Board has reviewed
the Shareholders’ Communication Policy by taking
into account of the aforesaid measures in place and
considered that the Shareholders” Communication Policy is
implemented effectively.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
SHAREHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

There was no change in the Company’s memorandum of
association and the Bye-laws during the year under review.
The Board proposed to seek approval of the Shareholders
at the forthcoming AGM to be held on Friday, 9 June 2023
to amend the Existing Bye-laws and to adopt the amended
and restated bye-laws of the Company in substitution
for and to the exclusion of the Existing Bye-laws (the
“Amendments to Bye-laws"”). Details of which are set out
in the announcement dated 30 March 2023 relating to the
Amendments to Bye-laws issued by the Company.

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) which aims to set out the principles as a reference
for the Company to determine dividend distribution so as
to allow the Shareholders to participate in the Company’s
profits whilst preserving liquidity of the Group to capture
future growth opportunities.

Any payments/recommendations of payment of
dividends are subject to discretion by the Board that such
declarations/recommendations of payment of dividends are
in the best interests of the Company and the Shareholders
and are also subject to any restrictions under and in
compliance with all applicable rules and regulations
(including, inter alia, the Companies Act of Bermuda) and
the Bye-laws. In addition, any payment of final dividend for
a financial year will be subject to Shareholders’ approval.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRET E

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
SHAREHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

The Board shall consider the Company's ability to pay
dividends, the form, frequency and amount of any
dividend in any financial year/period by taking into account
of the following factors:

e capital requirements

e distributable profits

e liquidity position

e results of operations

e future prospects

e investment plans

e  taxation considerations

e  other funding covenants and requirements

e any other factors that the Board may deem
appropriate

The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time
and will make any revisions thereof, if necessary.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Success Universe Group Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”) believes
that business success is attributed to the sustainable
development and the creation of long-term values
for stakeholders. Therefore, the Group endeavours
to incorporate environmental, social and governance
principles into its operations and business strategies.

REPORTING APPROACH

Reporting Standard

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") report
covers the financial year ended 31 December 2022.
This ESG report summarises the Group’s sustainability
performance and achievements to offer stakeholders
insight into the Group’s sustainable development progress.

This report was prepared in accordance with the ESG
Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”) contained in Appendix
27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock
Exchange”). In preparing this ESG report, the Group
adhered to the four reporting principles: materiality,
guantitative, balance and consistency. Information
regarding corporate governance is addressed in the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 40 to
70 of this annual report.

RIE- B RESHRS

BERRXARAT (RAF - EREM
BRTBMEAERE)) HBE > BERKY
BRNAFEERAAFNENERE
BE AL ZREERNRBIRE - HEK
ERRABHEEREFRIBES -

wEHH
wEER

ARE - HEREA((RE- HEKRE
B RERERE T __F+_H
—t+—HLEMHRFE - ARE - HEK
EAMSMMAEBPATFERRE RN
BN ETHRAERECFESRR
HEBIER

FEENEBREBMSXZMBRAT

(THt3ZFRr) 3825 LR B & — ++
ZRE- g RERREES (RE
HEREBREES)) FR -FRAIER
B HEghEARER > AEEIKRTNE
ERRA BIEEH 2816 FHN—R
) - BREEERANERENAFRS
A0EF70EMIEEERRSI—HI

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 3R

71



72

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE-HHERERRS &

REPORTING APPROACH (CONTINUED) REHEH @B

Reporting Principles

BE ¥R R A

In preparation of this report, the Group adhered to the — RFRARER > AEBBETEEMS
reporting principles of materiality, quantitative, balance — =21t~ F# M —4HERZRE) :

and consistency:

Reporting Principles
PEREA

The Group’s Application
FEEMER

Materiality
B2

Quantitative

21t

Balance

T

Consistency

—HM

SCOPE OF REPORT

Material environmental and social issues are identified by stakeholders’
engagement and presented to the board of directors of the Company (the
“Board"”). The materiality assessment detailed on page 74 has ensured this report
addresses the most material ESG topics pertaining to its businesses.

BRRHESEFANIRAEAABERE ((E58) EREERERUEER
B BTARFINERZ T ERARA RS EEHNEXBRAEENRR

HERERZE

Key performance indicators (KPIs) are disclosed in a measurable and quantitative
manner as appropriate.

RGNS RN ERBR T U 8RB ARKE-

This report presents an unbiased representation of the Group’s ESG management
approach and performance to avoid misleading omissions and presentation.
ARSI ERAEENRE - HERELAEEAHERE BRR
EMHERRERE A

As far as practicable and unless stated otherwise, the Group adopts consistent
measurement methodology to allow for meaningful comparison of ESG data over
time.

HRABETER T BRIEREER SAAEERA-RNMRE 1A SRR
HERERBBEARIFEERNLER

HEEHE

This report covers the environmental and social AEEREFAEBE _T__F—HF—
performance of the Group during the year from 1 January HEEZE_ZE__F+_HF=+—HILF
2022 to 31 December 2022 (the “reporting year”). E((REFEE) NIBIERHTERF &
The data and information disclosed in the report were  BREFMINEMNEERERDEREE S
based on the material ESG issues identified through the  FFERIFTMEDEAFENEEIRE
materiality assessment and stakeholder engagement, HEKkEAEE > BIERERS BB
including the sustainability performance of the Group's 254z AzJade Travel Ltd. (MJade Travel J) (A<
headquarters in Hong Kong and Jade Travel Ltd. (“Jade EBERMEAETEAREMEH (M4
Travel”), the Group’s travel-related business in Canada and  El1) IR IEIERAEFS) MBS E L EE
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). X o
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

SCOPE OF REPORT (CONTINUED)

The property investment business in Hong Kong has been
excluded from the reporting scope as some office premises
of the property investment business were leased to tenants
for their respective business operations.

Ponte 16, the Group’s flagship investment project, is also
excluded from the reporting scope because it is not under
the Group's direct operational control.

THE BOARD’S STATEMENT ON ESG

The Board considers sustainable development as the key
to the Group’s long-term success. The Group is pledged to
integrate ESG considerations into its business operations
and improve sustainable performance by optimising
resources in its operations. Being the highest governance
body, the Board has overall responsibility for the ESG
strategy and reporting, and is responsible for the overall
direction and decision making of ESG governance. The
Corporate Communications Department of the Company
is assigned to coordinate the implementation of ESG
reporting. The material ESG-related topics are identified via
stakeholders’ engagement surveys, while ESG performance
and progress, opportunities and risks are regularly
reviewed and discussed by the Board.

RIE- B RERRS (B

wEEE ()

ARYMERBXEF LD BT EYELE
FTHPUETEENEBERF HEA
WY EREEB I EENRSHER -

AEEBREBEREERB +/NHETFELIFH
AEBBREEEFMALERERSH
B A o

BERIRE - ERERN
EXTEHR

EEERR IHEEREFERRE
PRI BY RASE o jg%.iﬁzjjﬁ%fﬁiﬁ HE R
EARNFRRAHEBEEGE G TEBE
REBER RBARFBERKE -FH
EEEakE EFEHIRE - HERE
ARBRREEAEEREET AKES
BRE - HERELGEENERGH KR
ReAAB 2 EBANPEIEIKIHRIER
B HEREAERCET ERRE
HEREAEMZEEEBFNES AR

A MRE L ERELGBEMRE
E-HEREABABEESEERHRSIL

5 ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 3R

73



74

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BRIE- B RELRS (&

STAKEHOLDERS' ENGAGEMENT

The Group defines its stakeholders as internal and external
groups of individuals who have a significant influence
on the Group's businesses. In order to understand their
views and to gather their feedback on daily operations,
the Group engages its key stakeholders, including
representatives from the Group’s headquarters in Hong
Kong as well as management and employees from Jade
Travel offices in Canada and the PRC, through an online
ESG survey. Understanding the needs and expectations of
key stakeholders enables the Group to formulate strategies
that address their concerns and manage potential risks.
The Company also holds annual general meeting ("AGM")
to seek approvals from its shareholders on the proposed
resolutions and to answer questions from shareholders to
facilitate communication.

The survey comprised 19 ESG topics in relation to the
Group’s business operations. These topics were identified
with the assistance of an independent consulting firm. The
Group analysed the survey responses, consolidated the
results and ranked the top three material topics related to
ESG, as shown below:

FHESH

AEBRBEFNEREAHEERBER
BEEENRIINFEARE & T IER
FHEHNHEEBNRBEIRERR
o AEEBBE FRE - HERERE
B EAERFTBEMEEN T xade
TravelMZ2EAKRFEMEEEEE R ES
FHBF/NEHNS - ERBRISOER
BPAAR R A ES ERBOIEERMT
SEREEREBTRR AR IFETR
RBFEREG (RRBEKRG)) » UWRE
RRAREZZRZZNE LEIER
RiEf femieEEnERE-

ZHERS1IEERAEEEHEEN
BRI -HEREABRE ZFHENE
VB AT TR [ o A EH
EoMWERSRRIE B Rk
E-EHEZRE -HERERBRZEE
BB BIRINE

Aspect Top Material Topics
ik REBEZE
Social e Workplace health and safety
e THRRGERERZSE
o Anti-corruption
k&5
e Employee welfare
BERF
Environmental e Efficient use of materials
RiR MERI B A
e General waste management
—REEYERE
o Greenhouse gas emission
BERBEHIN
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

STAKEHOLDERS' ENGAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

The Group integrates the identified material topics into its
long-term ESG management approaches and continues
to engage stakeholders to review and monitor its ESG
progress to mitigate the associated operational risks.

The Group welcomes comments and suggestions from its
stakeholders regarding its sustainability performance and
disclosure. Comments and suggestions can be sent to the
Group’s email address at info@successug.com.

FOSTERING A HEALTHY AND SAFE
WORKPLACE

The Group believes that it is essential to promote a healthy
and safe working environment that considers the well-
being and safety of employees. Therefore, the Group has
implemented initiatives and communication programmes
to protect the rights of employees to express opinions and
achieve their personal goals.

Building a Cohesive Team

The Group believes that the long-term development of
employees is essential to build a sustainable business
model. To create a cohesive team culture, the Group has
implemented various strategies, policies and schemes to
attract, retain, motivate and train its talented candidates
and employees.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BRIE- B RELRS (&

FOSTERING A HEALTHY AND SAFE
WORKPLACE (CONTINUED)

Building a Cohesive Team (continued)

Attracting and retaining talents

The Group regularly reviews and compares its
remuneration policies and packages with the market to
attract and retain talent. The Group offers a wide range
of benefits and competitive remuneration packages
with reference to market conditions and individual
performance. The remuneration packages include
reasonable working hours, annual leave, birthday leave,
study leave, retirement scheme, and medical insurance for
all full-time employees following the local employment
laws and regulations. Moreover, the Group provides
overtime meals and travel allowances, discretionary bonus,
and may grant share options to eligible employees as a
long-term incentive to appreciate their efforts.

Upholding diversity and equal opportunities

The Group emphasises equal opportunities for all
employees and job applicants during recruitment, internal
transfer and promotion. Its talent acquisition approach
also prohibits any form of discrimination on gender, age,
religious belief, race, or physical disability. To avoid child
labour and forced labour, the Group complies with all
applicable statutory and legal requirements regarding
the identification and verification of work permits. If any
child labour or forced labour is discovered, the Group will
terminate the employment contract immediately and assist
the child to resume education and contact social workers
to follow up. During the reporting year, the Group was not
involved in any incidents or lawsuits related to child labour
and forced labour.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

FOSTERING A HEALTHY AND SAFE
WORKPLACE (CONTINUED)

Building a Cohesive Team (continued)

Investing in training and development

As employee development is closely linked to the Group's
continuous business growth, the Group has implemented
different employee training activities, such as new
employee orientation and anti-corruption training. In Jade
Travel, employees are offered operational and on-board
trainings for their job duties. The Group also encourages
employees by way of sponsorship to attend training
courses and provides examination leaves to employees to
obtain professional qualifications.

Upholding business ethics and integrity

The Group is a responsible and ethical business company.
Therefore, it prohibits any form of bribery and corruption.
Anti-corruption policies on bribery, extortion, money
laundering and fraud are explained to all employees in
accordance with the relevant regulations. To fulfil its high
business ethical standards, the Group has implemented a
whistle-blowing policy so that its staff can confidentially
report any concerns, inappropriate or fraudulent acts.
Any suspected corruption cases will be investigated
to determine its validity and subsequent appropriate
disciplinary action.

To increase the knowledge of anti-corruption laws and
uphold high ethical standards, the Group has arranged
anti-corruption training for the directors of the Company
(the “Director(s)”) and employees provided by ICAC.
During the reporting year, the ICAC self-learning module
(the “ICAC E-training”) has been arranged for all Directors
and employees, which aims to enhance knowledge of anti-
corruption law and be aware of corruption temptations
in daily operations. All Directors and all employees have
viewed the ICAC E-training materials. The Group will
provide anti-corruption training to its Directors and
employees annually to maintain a fair and corruption-free
working environment.
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BRIE- B RELRS (&

FOSTERING A HEALTHY AND SAFE
WORKPLACE (CONTINUED)

Emphasising on Employees’ Wellness and Health
With a people-oriented corporate culture, the Group
prioritises its employees’ well-being and occupational
safety. The Group is committed to improving its employees'
occupational health, safety and well-being, especially
under the threat of COVID-19.

Promoting employees’ wellness

The Group promotes work-life balance and is dedicated to
improving employees’ well-being through a healthy and
friendly working environment. During the reporting year,
the Group is committed to maintaining interactions and a
close bond with its employees via regular staff newsletters
and lucky draws. Prizes of lucky draws, ranging from soup,
coffee and supermarket vouchers to concert tickets, are
offered to its employees to help them relax both physically
and mentally. These can help to boost their sense of
belonging and enhance morale.

Ensuring employees” health and safety

The Group has put emphasises on interior office designs,
including thermal comfort, lighting, noise control,
ergonomics, and air quality to provide a comfortable
workplace for its employees. Air circulation systems and
air purifiers are installed to improve air quality, maintain
good ventilation and reduce the risks of COVID-19
outbreak in its offices. Ergonomics chairs are provided to
employees for their greatest comfort and posture support.
In addition, most of the office appliances are contained
in built-in cabinets to avoid obstructing the passageways,
minimising the risks of causing injuries. The Group has
created a healthier workplace with indoor office plants,
which provide a chance for employees to connect with
nature indoors so as to improve mood and reduce stress.
Moreover, to enhance the awareness and concern for
occupational safety and to raise the capacity for ensuring
workplace safety, Automated External Defibrillators (AED)
and first-aid kits are placed and checked regularly.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

FOSTERING A HEALTHY AND SAFE
WORKPLACE (CONTINUED)

Emphasising on Employees’ Wellness and Health
(continued)

Ensuring employees’ health and safety (continued)
During the outbreak of COVID-19, Jade Travel provided
masks and sanitisers to employees at work and managed
the flow of customers by appointment to maintain social
distancing. Transparent plastic barriers were installed
at the service counters. Face-to-face conferences and
meetings, including meetings of the Board and directors’
training, are avoided and shifted to the online format. At
the headquarters in Hong Kong, the Group has installed a
body temperature measuring device at the main entrance
to measure the body temperature of all employees and
guests. Daily updates on the pandemic and the latest
information and policies from the government are
provided to all employees. The Group also implemented
flexible working hours, encouraged staff to get vaccinated
by offering vaccination leave and arranged its employees
to work from home to ensure social distancing at the
office.

DEVELOPING A CUSTOMER-ORIENTED
CULTURE

Elevating Customer Experience

The Group is committed to improving the customer
experience across its diversified portfolio of businesses.
The Group adopts a holistic quality management approach
to provide customer-centric services, including complaint
handling, intellectual property rights and customer privacy
protections in its business activities.

RIE- B RERRS (B

SERBEREZZHITFIRIE (B

FEEE B & O 2 (&)

EIRESBERZE (B)

12201976 iR F e 15 18 25 HAR > Jade
Travelll TEFNEEBREOE R ES
R MBATENEEEREUAREALR
R REEETELEEHELGER
- -EZELENX (BREETEERE
Fi1Za) TREE R AE L T BB
BERET BRI EELE A5
ERFEAODERERAWAR A28
BERGIEEERR - AEBRTEAS
BEERETHRNETNEHRMES
RBEKRER AEBETEHE Y TIER
B RETEBRUSEIEEEELE I
ZHHE BT R TIFUFERITA E NIRRT
$TAZEEBE o

BIUERBHIXIE

RAZFRER
AEBRNEBZTIEEFEGREAR
FER AEERMEENEBEEER
BS IR LUE R ERIRTS B R TR E
URRED TS RRENAERRE P
TR o

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 3R

79



80
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BRIE- B RELRS (&

DEVELOPING A CUSTOMER-ORIENTED
CULTURE (CONTINUED)

Elevating Customer Experience (continued)
Ensuring sustainability along its supply chain

The Group attaches great importance to its service quality.
Providing quality travel agency services requires robust
supply chain management where suppliers' cost, timing
and performance are primary considerations. In this regard,
Jade Travel has implemented a comprehensive supply
chain management policy to select quality suppliers for air
tickets, travel tours, shuttle bus services, etc. Jade Travel
is one of the largest travel agencies in North America
and is endorsed under the International Air Transport
Association (IATA) accreditation. The Group aims to provide
unforgettable travel experiences with world-class tours to
enhance customer satisfaction. All potential suppliers have
to conduct a comprehensive assessment on their products
or service quality, price and ESG performance. Business
ethics, environmental performance and labour practices
of the potential suppliers are considered by the Group
through document screening to minimise the ESG risks
along its supply chain. The Group will provide feedback
if the potential suppliers fail to pass the assessment.
Therefore, the potential suppliers can improve their
sustainability performance and be invited for reassessment
in the future.

Improving customer satisfaction

The Group endeavours to craft expectational customer
offerings that meet customers’ needs. The Group values
customers’ opinions and therefore, it reviews their
comments to improve its services and management.
Any complaints received are forwarded to the relevant
department for proper investigation and follow-up. During
the reporting year, the Group did not receive any related
complaints.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

DEVELOPING A CUSTOMER-ORIENTED
CULTURE (CONTINUED)

Elevating Customer Experience (continued)
Protecting customers’ privacy

The Group also respects customers’ privacy and personal
information. The Group’s employee handbook has stated
the policy and measures to protect customer data and all
confidential or sensitive information in accordance with
local laws. The Group's staff shall only collect necessary
information from its customers for its business activities.
It is also ensured that such information is protected to
prevent unauthorised or accidental access.

Safeguarding intellectual property rights

The Group is committed to protecting intellectual property
rights. According to the Copyright Ordinance (Chapter 528
of the Laws of Hong Kong), all unauthorised use and copy
of computer software are prohibited within the Group. The
Group’s Information Technology Department is responsible
for ensuring all installed softwares are the authorised
versions.

PROMOTING CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

Giving Back to the Community

As a global citizen, the Group cares about global
sustainable development, equity, human health and well-
being. The Group never hesitates to be a responsible and
caring company by bringing positive energy to society,
especially during the hard times of the pandemic. The
Group strives to give back to the community. The Group
has participated in various charitable activities and
supported its employees to contribute to the society.
During the reporting year, the Group participated in two
voluntary activities.

The aim of TWGHSs Flag Day 2022 was to raise funds for
social welfare and education services. Donation boxes were
placed in the Hong Kong office, staff were encouraged to
donate on the event day. The Group hopes that joining the
event could spread love and care to the disadvantaged and
reduce inequalities, especially during the pandemic crisis.
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BRIE- B RELRS (&

PROMOTING CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

Giving Back to the Community (continued)

The Group is committed to promoting a healthy and eco-
friendly lifestyle by sponsoring and supporting different
activities to protect the environment. For instance,
the Group has been participating in Dress Casual Day
organised by The Community Chest every year since 2011.
The theme of Dress Casual Day 2022 is to care for the
needy, to have fun and to be positive for dressing casual
for a worthy cause, which aligns with the Group's values:
to enhance social vitality, to improve the quality of life, to
establish a model of sustainable lifestyles, and to create
value to society.

The Group places a high priority on boosting Hong Kong's
cultural industry and supporting local music production.
During the reporting year, the Group sponsored a local
music concert - KB BRI E—-F—NIEHEZET, and
encouraged its staff to enjoy local music and relieve stress
through the power of music. Concert tickets were given
away through lucky draws.

In addition, during the reporting year, the Group fully
supported the Success EZ Rolling Team, which aims to
boost and encourage the general public to exercise more,
maintain healthy living habits, enhance social vitality and
improve the quality of life. Furthermore, environmental
issues such as climate change and extreme weather are
receiving increasing public and corporate attention, and
cycling is one of the best ways to reduce carbon footprint.
By supporting Success EZ Rolling Team, the Group hopes
to raise people’s awareness of climate change, create value
for society and encourage the co-creation of sustainable
cities and communities, thereby contributing to sustainable
development.

The Group will continue its commitment to community
engagement, broadening its network and initiating
community investments to fulfil its corporate social
responsibility as a corporate citizen.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

SUPPORTING GREEN OPERATION

Enriching a Green Office Culture

Implanting the sustainability concept into its business
operations, the Group is energetically devoted to
constructing a sustainable future and believes in enhancing
sustainability performance via workplace behavioural
modifications. The Group conducts regular monitoring
of the latest developments in environmental protection
standards, develops and implements environmental
policies to monitor and reduce its environmental footprint.
ESG facts and suggestions for climate risks mitigation have
also been integrated into its staff newsletters, deepening
the green office culture and raising employee’s awareness
of climate-related issues.

The Group's environmental policy was established
following the relevant environmental laws and regulations.
All Group’s business operations are mandated to
comply with the environmental policy. The Green Office
Guideline has been established as a policy segment to
embed the concepts of environmental protection and
responsibility into daily operations. The guidelines aim to
boost employees’ environmental awareness and enhance
resource efficiency. Moreover, the Group's environmental
performance is monitored and reviewed regularly to ensure
all the regulatory requirements and industry standards are
met.

Shifting customer preference towards greener and low-
carbon travel options is going to be a global megatrend
in the future, the Group will consider incorporating more
lower-carbon travel options where practicable. The Group
also participated in the Earth Hour campaign facilitated
by the environmental organisation WWF-Hong Kong in
2022, demonstrating its support for building a sustainable
environment and raising awareness of the protection of
natural habitats and biodiversity.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BRIE- B RELRS (&

SUPPORTING GREEN OPERATION
(CONTINUED)

Monitoring Energy Use and Emissions

Realising the importance of climate change action, the
Group is devoted to tackling its greenhouse gas (“GHG")
emissions by deducting the use of electricity and fuel
in office operation and transportation. To motivate
sustainable actions of employees and encourage them to
reduce energy consumption in not only daily operations
but also everyday life, the Group has also organised
climate-change-related workshops and campaigns. The
Group tracks and integrates energy and GHG data from
company activities, which will be used for its future target-
setting.

The Group has been using LED lighting at the head office
of Hong Kong since 2016 to maximise energy efficiency.
Due to the Group's constant efforts, the Group’s electricity
consumption has decreased consistently year over year.

Managing Waste

Due to the Group's office-based business model, paper
is the primary source of waste produced. The Group
adopts green purchasing for sustainable office supplies to
reduce waste. Also, the Group has been using refillable
stationery products and Forest Stewardship Council (FSC)
certified paper for printing the Company's annual and
interim reports since 2013. And since 2017, the Group's
head office has applied lighter-weight paper as a more
environmentally friendly option. Moreover, a plant-based
soy ink printing has been used since the 2021 interim
report and this practice will be continued as far as possible
to protect the environment. Jade Travel has also embraced
e-marketing and communication practices for paper use
reduction at a source point and work towards paperless
operations. The Group is targeting to maintain or reduce
non-hazardous waste intensity below the level in 2021.
To further enhance waste reduction and promote the
circular economy, the Group shall follow the "4Rs of
Environmental Protection” concept (i.e. Reduce, Reuse,
Recycle and Replace). Jade Travel has established facilities
for different types of waste collection and recycling
segregation to endorse the circular economy principle.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

SUPPORTING GREEN OPERATION
(CONTINUED)

Managing Waste (continued)

Since Jade Travel's offices were managed by the building
management, information on general waste and intensity
is unavailable. Due to its business nature, the Group did
not produce hazardous waste in operation.

Mitigating Climate Change

The Group continues to minimise the impacts of climate
change and comply with climate-related policies and
regulations. Therefore, during the reporting year, the
Group has identified and assessed the significant physical
and transition risks and implemented different mitigations
with reference to the Task Force on Climate-Related
Financial Disclosures (“TCFD") recommendations.

Physical Risks

Extreme weather events, such as typhoons and heatwaves,
are the most significant physical risks to the Group's
business operations. To mitigate the impacts caused by
climate change and enhance its resilience, the Group has
implemented contingency procedures for extreme weather
events, including typhoons. The Group has also clarified
the relevant responsibilities for customer services in case of
emergency to ensure that its customers can travel safely.

Transition Risks

The Group has identified policy and legal risks as its
transition risks that are related to its operations and
services. Transition risks may increase the Group’s
operating costs. For policy and legal risks, it is expected
that more stringent regulations will be in place for Hong
Kong listed companies in the future. For example, the
Stock Exchange requires mandatory TCFD-aligned climate-
related disclosure by 2025. Additional human capital and
costs may be required to meet the enhanced reporting
obligations and conduct independent assurance in the
future.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BRIE- B RELRS (&

SUPPORTING GREEN OPERATION
(CONTINUED)

Mitigating Climate Change (continued)
Opportunities

Despite the potential physical and transition risks that the
Group may face on the road to carbon neutralisation, this
journey presents emerging opportunities.

By transitioning to a low-carbon economy, the Group
keeps track of the government roadmap towards
the sustainable economy, including the government’s
decarbonisation targets by 2050, and strives to proactively
respond to those targets by taking early action. By doing
so, the Group can enhance its reputation and brand
image.

With digitalisation currently being one of the most
significant megatrends in the global business environment,
the digitalisation of Jade Travel’s online booking service
platform could present opportunities in the future. By
using digital technology to streamline its operations
and reduce paper-based transactions, Jade Travel could
potentially reduce its carbon footprint.

In addition, Jade Travel is able to understand customer
behaviours and preferences through its online booking
service platform. Relevant data may facilitate the
development of new products and services that align
with the low-carbon economy. By analysing customer
preferences and identifying emerging trends, the Group
not only can proactively manage climate-related risks
but also timely monitor its business strategies and seize
opportunities for sustainable growth.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Group shall persist in delivering quality services,
show concerns to its employees and the community,
energetically engage with its stakeholders and work
towards its environmental objectives and performances
exceeding compliance to incorporate sustainability
principles into all levels of its business operations and
services.
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PERFORMANCE TABLE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
IRI-HHERERRS &

BYER

Environmental Performance IRIRRIA
Indicator Unit 2022 2021 2020
517 B eI “EZT—HF “TTTE
Greenhouse Gas (“GHG") Emissions ;&= R EEHEK
Scope 1: Direct Emission Tonnes of CO2 equivalent 37.94 45.71 40.31
#HE  BEEIR (tCOxe)

AW (CEERES)
Scope 2: Indirect Emission tCOz-e 41.07 44.86 68.09
#E?2 | EEHIR AW (CEERES)
Total tCO2-e 79.01 90.57 108.4
Mt AW (CatikESR)
GHG Intensity tCO2-e/millions of revenues 0.7 0.6 0.3
BERBEE (HKS)

AW (CEERES)

SEET (B k&

Remarks

{[oF=

Certain number of offices in Canada were excluded in Scope 2 “Indirect
Emission” whose electricity charges had already been included in rent.

The amount of Scope 3 “Other Indirect GHG Emission” and air
emission (particulate matter, sulphur dioxide, and nitrogen oxides) were
insignificant to the Group's operation, therefore the relevant data was not
disclosed.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE- B RERRS &

PERFORMANCE TABLE (CONTINUED) ENER @B
Environmental Performance (continued) IRIFRIA (48)
Indicator Unit 2022 2021 2020
151 B (i R BT “TTFEF

Electricity Consumption £EZE

Head Office in Hong Kong kWh 48,113 51,128 66,540
EBEMER TRE
Travel-related Business kWh 82,970 138,112 178,188
in Canada & the PRC
INE K K R B i 18 R 375 TRE
Total Consumption kWh 131,083 189,393 244,728
BEEE FTEE
Total Intensity 000" kWh/millions of 1.14 1.25 0.67
revenues (HK$)
mEE KEE,/ EEET
(B W
Remark sk

Certain number of offices in Canada were excluded whose electricity MEANEOREEHESEEEEE WA ESTA
charges had already been included in rent. EEE8E-
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
IRI-HHERERRS &

PERFORMANCE TABLE (CONTINUED) gy ENE))

Environmental Performance (continued) IRIERIR (8B)

Indicator Unit 2022 2021 2020

1512 B (i B BI—HF _TIEE

Vehicle Fuel Consumption SEMHERE

Head Office in Hong Kong L 8,264 11,185 9,954

BEEMER Tt

Travel-related Business L 6,000 6,000 6,000
in Canada & the PRC

MEAR KRR EEREER F

Total Consumption L 14,264 17,185 15,954

BIER=E F

Total Intensity L/millions of revenues (HK$) 124.25 113.71 43.95

mERE A/ EE87T (Bl ka

Remark B

Shuttle bus service was provided by supplier for the travel business in
Canada, and the respective fuel consumption was not available; no fuel
consumption in the office in the PRC.

R o

MEAMREEHBNFRETRBHUEFRME 1
EIRHAERMMNRERAE ; MR ERY EER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE-HHERERRS &

PERFORMANCE TABLE (CONTINUED) ENER @B
Environmental Performance (continued) IRIFRIA (48)
Indicator Unit 2022 2021 2020
151 B (i R BT “TTFEF

Hazardous Waste HZEEEY)

Total Tonnes N/A N/A N/A
HEst NI FER REH AEH
Remark sk

The Group did not produce hazardous waste in operation. KEBNZEET U RELEREEEY
Indicator Unit 2022 2021 2020
51 B ZRIZE ZZT—F ZTIZFE

Non-Hazardous Waste EEEEEY)

General waste Tonnes 2.0 2.0 -
—REEY NI

Paper waste Tonnes 0.1 0.1 0.2
BE4 N

Total Tonnes 2.1 2.1 0.2
HBst N

Remark Bt

The Group has established a better data collection system. The general KEBERUBENEBRERK - BZZ - —F
waste data can be collected since 2021. The Group shall consider R E—REEYHE AEERRRBEERS
improving the data collection system to collect other non-hazardous B WERY UWRERMESEEYNEIE
waste in the future.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIE-HERERRS (&

PERFORMANCE TABLE (CONTINUED) B (@)

Environmental Performance (continued) IRIERIT (48)

Indicator Unit 2022 2021 2020
58 B (i —E_Cf B —_T_TF
Water Consumption FEKE

Total m?3 N/A N/A N/A
WSt I HK T ER N A
Remark st

Since water was provided by municipal suppliers, the Group did not
have any significant issues in sourcing water. The relevant data was not
available as the respective building management offices managed all
water utilities of the head office in Hong Kong and the offices relating to
the travel-related business in Canada and the PRC.

HOKBETRHARRIEMH] FEBERIROR LT
HEERERME  EBRMERREMINEAKRHR
Bl R EARRE BRI ER A HOKBERARE
BEREE S EREAREE-

Indicator Unit 2022 2021 2020
1512 B —EICHF B —_ZT-EBF
Packaging Material %474}

Total Tonnes N/A N/A N/A
fact YN REH REA R
Remark Fst

The Group did not utilise packaging material in operation.

FEFBPEERLEERBEYH -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BRIE- B RELRS (&

PERFORMANCE TABLE (CONTINUED) BUR (48)
Social Performance HERR
Business Units
EBEM
Travel-related
Business in
Head Office Canada &
Employment (number of people) in Hong Kong the PRC
MEAXRK
B  EAHKE
& (AB) MMER ELES ]
Total Number of Employees 46 22
RS
By Gender Male 18 6
ill Lo
Female 28 16
e
By Employment Category Top Management 5 1
e E485 SREEAE
Management 7 5
EEAB
General Staff 34 16
—RE B
By Age Group <30 4 1
FH 485! 30-39 8 7
40-49 1" 4
50-59 16 7
=60 3
By Employment Type Full Time 46 21
=k ks 2
Part Time 0 1
FeI
By Geographical Region Hong Kong 46 0
& BH
Canada 0 15
MmEX
The PRC 0 7
SR
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIE-HERERRS (&

PERFORMANCE TABLE (CONTINUED) BNER (&)
Social Performance (continued) tERIRA (E)
Business Units
EIFEA
Travel-related
Business in
Head Office Canada &
Employment Turnover Rates (%) in Hong Kong the PRC
MEXR
FE  HEBIRE
B & MR (%) L el e
Total 19 5
a5t
By Gender Male 12 0
il B4
Female 23 8
gl
By Age Group <30 22 0
FHhetER 30 -39 63 0
40 - 49 15 0
50 - 59 0 14
260 0 0
By Geographical Region Hong Kong 19 0
& BE
Canada 0 7
MEX
The PRC 0 0
s
Remark sk
The percentage is round to the nearest integer. BAOLEEREAERBANES
Indicator Unit 2022 2021 2020
Bz B B —T_-—F _T_FTE
Health and Safety BFEH%Z2
Total number of work-related fatalities No. of people 0 0 0
ETTHHEAH A#
Lost days due to work injury Days 0 0 0
RITEEXTIEEH HE

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 3R



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE-HHERERRS &

PERFORMANCE TABLE (CONTINUED) BUR (B
Social Performance (continued) HERIA (@)

Percentage of

Training employees trained (%)  Average training hours
=g RilBEBSEE (%) F2 R E
Overall 100.00 6.16
BEDLT
By Gender Male 35.53 5.38
il CoRis
Female 64.47 6.59
pegia
By Employment Category Top Management 7.89 18.00
BE%H! SREEAE
Management 15.79 7.06
EEAE
General Staff 76.32 4.52
—RREE
Remark -F5d

Only current employees’ data are included in the training table BHRNERERNEEZE RIRBEEDER

(percentage of employees trained and average training hours). TR o
Indicator 2022 2021
515 B T &

Suppliers (number of suppliers) &R (tFEFEB)

Total 571 571
K5t
By Geographical Region Hong Kong 21 21
& BB
Canada 500 500
MEKX
The PRC 50 50
HE
Remark B
The suppliers’ data has been disclosed since 2021. HEBHEE S - —FilKE-
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

PERFORMANCE TABLE (CONTINUED)

RIE-HERERRS (&

mu& (&)

Social Performance (continued) ERR @)
Indicator Unit 2022 2021
517 B ZEIF BT —F
Product Responsibility =R E1F
Percentage of total products sold or shipped subjectto % N/A N/A
recall for safety and health reasons by sales values FEH B
CENDEXEMMBEHPRAL L HERIER
MARKN B DL (REHEEEHS)
Number of products and service-related complaints No. of complaints 0 0
R 2 mm R AR TS BV SR 8 B % HE
Remarks sk

The product responsibility’s data has been disclosed since 2021.

EnEAREE S —FEEE-

Since the Group’s business is not related to product selling, no relevant HRAEBENEBR IS REEER QI EEGHE

information related to quality assurance process and recall procedures are SRTEREKREWEFINER

available.

Indicator Unit 2022 2021 2020
1EE B “EICE BT -F TTTE

Anti-corruption RE&ES

Number of concluded legal cases No. of cases

regarding corrupt practices

BEGHNESFARTHE ZHHE
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Environmental, Social and Govern

BRIE- B RELRS (&

COMPLIANCE TABLE

ance Report (Continued)

aBR%E

The Group strictly complied with the laws and regulations — ZN&EE B EST F7 & B mEAYEGIF A

in different aspects listed as follows: .
Aspect Laws and Regulation
IR EBIAER
A1: Emissions e Waste Disposal Ordinance of Hong Kong
BERA) BHE (B EERS )
e Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China
(PEARAEMBIRIEREE)
e  The Canadian Environmental Protection Act
B1: Employment e Employees’ Compensation Ordinance of Hong Kong
(=] BE(EEMERSG)
B4: Labour Standards e Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong
% T AR BB (EREEA)
e Minimum Wage Ordinance of Hong Kong
BEE(RBEIERAGD
e Race Discrimination Ordinance of Hong Kong
BB (BB AR R )
° Sex Discrimination Ordinance of Hong Kong
B (MR B AR AR )
e Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China
(RPEAREMESBSRE)
e  (Canada Labour Code
e  (Canada Labour Standards Regulations
e Employment Equity Act of Canada
e  The Canadian Human Rights Act
B2: Health and Safety e Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance of Hong Kong
BERZE BHE (B2 2 R RERG)
e  Measures for the Supervision and Administration of
Employers” Occupational Health Surveillance
(AABBEEREELRESTENE)
e Occupational Health and Safety Act of Canada
B6: Product Responsibility e Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong
Ematt BB (EANEE FARR) 5D
e Copyright Ordinance of Hong Kong
B8 (i i o)
e The Canadian Code of Advertising Standards
e Travel Industry Act of Canada
B7: Anti-corruption e Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong
IS=%] B 75 (Fh LEBRRE A5 )

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PEAREMEME)
The Corruption of Foreign Public Officials Act of Canada



The directors (“Director(s)”) of Success Universe Group
Limited (the “Company”) present their annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries were principally engaged in the travel-related
and property investment businesses during the year.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as
at 31 December 2022 are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 is set out in the sections headed
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 8 to 13 and pages 14 to 39
respectively of this annual report as well as the following
sub-paragraphs headed “Environmental Policies and
Performance”, “Compliance with Laws and Regulations”
and “Relationships with Key Stakeholders”.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group endeavors to attain long-term sustainable
development, and proactively determines ways to address
environmental, social and governance issues effectively in
the corporate decisions.

The Group upholds its principles of environmental
friendly practices by implementation of reducing, reusing,
recycling and replacing in its daily operations, and
develops initiatives to improve employee welfare and staff
development for betterment of working environment
and efficiency. The Group also believes in good corporate
citizenship and contributes to society by supporting various
charitable programmes.

For details, please refer to the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages
71 to 96 of this annual report.
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Report of Directors (Continued)
EEEHRE @&

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group is committed to maintain a high level of
corporate compliance with the legal and regulatory
requirements in respect of business and operations. During
the year, the Group’s operations were mainly carried out
by the Company’s subsidiaries in Canada, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") and Hong Kong while
the Company itself was incorporated in Bermuda and
the shares of which are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
Group accordingly should comply with relevant laws and
regulations in, inter alia, Canada, the PRC, Hong Kong and
Bermuda during the year.

As far as the board of Directors (the “Board”) is aware,
during the year and up to the date of this report, the
Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations
that have significant impact on its business and operations.

Relationships with Key Stakeholders

The Group's success also depends on the support from its
key stakeholders which comprise, inter alia, employees,
business partners, suppliers and customers.

Employees are regarded as important and valuable assets
of the Group. Therefore, the Group provides competitive
remuneration packages to attract, motivate and retain
employees for their continued contribution to the Group
and also encourages them by way of sponsorship to
attend training courses which help employees’ career
development.

Besides, the Group has developed and maintained
solid and steady relationships with its business partners
and suppliers, and provides high quality services to
its customers so as to enhance its competitiveness,
sustainability and future development.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss on page 137 of this annual report.

No interim dividend was paid during the year (2021: nil).
The Directors do not recommend any payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company will be held
on Friday, 9 June 2023 (the “2023 AGM"). For the purpose
of determining the shareholders who are entitled to attend
and vote at the 2023 AGM, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 6 June 2023 to
Friday, 9 June 2023, both days inclusive, during such period
no transfer of shares of the Company will be effected. In
order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2023 AGM,
all share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited,
at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 5 June 2023
for registration.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year
ended 31 December 2022 by business and geographical
segments is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group for the past five
financial years is set out on page 318 of this annual report.
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Report of Directors (Continued)
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
141 and 142 of this annual report and note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

No charitable and other donations were made by the
Group during the year (2021: nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in
note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT OR
SALE

Details of the properties held by the Group for investment
or sale as at 31 December 2022 are set out in notes 17
and 20 to the consolidated financial statements and in the
section headed “Particulars of Properties” on pages 319
and 320 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no movement in the share capital of the
Company during the year. Details of the share capital of
the Company are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

LOANS AND BORROWINGS
Details of the loans and borrowings of the Group as at

31 December 2022 are set out in notes 26 to 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (Chairman)
Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman (Deputy Chairman)

Non-executive Director (“NED"):
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED(s)”):
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann

Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose

Mr. Chong Ming Yu

Biographical information of the Directors is set out in
the paragraph headed “Directors” under the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 122 to 126 of this annual report.

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-laws”), Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman
("Mr. Ma") and Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose shall retire
by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the 2023 AGM.

The Company has received from each of the existing
INEDs, namely Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann, Mr.
Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose and Mr. Chong Ming Yu, an
annual confirmation of her/his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and all of the
said INEDs were considered to be independent.
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CHANGES OF DIRECTORS' INFORMATION

There was no change in the information of the Directors
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules subsequent to the date of the Interim Report
2022 of the Company and up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the 2023
AGM has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors on a named
basis are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements. There has been no arrangement under which
a Director or a director of the subsidiaries of the Company
has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Directors shall be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they may incur or sustain
in or about the execution of the duties in their respective
offices or otherwise in relation thereto, provided that this
indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any
fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any Directors.

During the year and up to the date of this report, the
Company has in force indemnity provisions as permitted
under the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) for the benefit of the Directors
and directors/former directors of the subsidiaries of the
Company.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

AR B —ERBREON %
AR ARB MRS L
RSB EREATHEZES
BHIEE

EFZRFBEX

BR_Z_=—FRIBERGEEZS
EMEERRBTUATHERATN—
FRRIEMBAESZHERBE CEER
BERIN 2 IRFB B4 -

EEMWE

IR BREFHLZEETWEFFHN
REMBRRNEN - EERNARAMW
BARZESFHEFHARAFERR
ERM =z %8k

EHEFTRIRERX

RIBABME EFIREARNZEE
R FESBERSE S B 2B
BTHEHBSNEEM S EALERZIE
MR ARZZARNR BRI
BB BEMAXERBE EIL®@
BRENEHEEEMEESE ZIMEFNT
HEERZIER

REFERRBEABRSHHRL &2Q
BN EHRD (BARERHI56225) BI7
FBAUBERARBENBRABEESE
AIEE AR m ARBEIRX



CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

)

On 1 December 2008, the Company as borrower and
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (“Mr. Yeung”), being the
Chairman of the Board and an executive Director as
well as a controlling shareholder of the Company, as
lender entered into a letter of agreement regarding
an unsecured term loan facility of up to HK$200
million (the “Loan Facility”). The rate of interest on
the entire principal amount drawn and outstanding
under the Loan Facility was the prime rate quoted
for Hong Kong dollars loans by The Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited. On 14 April
2009, the Company and Mr. Yeung entered into a
supplemental letter of agreement to increase the
principal amount of the Loan Facility up to HK$290
million (the “Revised Loan Facility”) and to confirm
that Mr. Yeung undertook not to demand early
repayment of the loan and all other sums owing to
him under the Revised Loan Facility before 30 June
2010. The final repayment date of the Revised Loan
Facility (the “Final Repayment Date”) was extended
to (i) 30 June 2011 by a supplemental letter of
agreement dated 25 June 2009; and (ii) 30 October
2012 by another supplemental letter of agreement
dated 23 June 2010.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

)

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E

(continued)

On 15 March 2012, Mr. Yeung entered into a
supplemental letter of agreement with the Company
to further extend the Final Repayment Date to 31
October 2013 and to confirm that any amount repaid
under the Revised Loan Facility should be available to
further advances within the availability period of the
Revised Loan Facility.

The Final Repayment Date was subsequently
extended by various supplemental letters of
agreement to 31 October 2024.

The transaction mentioned in this sub-paragraph (1)
constitutes a connected transaction for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, which is fully
exempt from shareholders’ approval and all disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
as the said borrowing from Mr. Yeung is on normal
commercial terms or better and it is not secured by
any assets of the Group.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

(2) (A) On 25 June 2021, the Group entered into two
tenancy agreements with Success International
Management Services Limited (“SIMSL”, a
company indirect wholly and beneficially owned
by Mr. Yeung) to renew the leasing of the
properties with details as follows:

(i) Powerful Concept Limited (“Powerful
Concept”, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) as landlord
entered into a tenancy agreement with
SIMSL as tenant in respect of the renewal
of the leasing of the premises situated at
Office Unit No. 1001A on the 10th Floor
of Tower 1 of Admiralty Centre, No. 18
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for a term of
two years commencing from 2 July 2021
to 1 July 2023 (both dates inclusive) (with
an option on SIMSL to renew for a further
term of two years at the then open market
rent) at a monthly rental of HK$65,400,
exclusive of government rates, air-
conditioning charges and management
fees and all other outgoings (“Unit 1001A
Tenancy Agreement”); and
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

)

(continued)

(A)

(ii)

Famous Capital International Limited
("Famous Capital”, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) as
landlord entered into a tenancy agreement
with SIMSL as tenant in respect of the
renewal of the leasing of the premises
situated at Office Unit No. 1004B on the
10th Floor of Tower 1 of Admiralty Centre,
No. 18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for a
term of two years commencing from 2 July
2021 to 1 July 2023 (both dates inclusive)
(with an option on SIMSL to renew for
a further term of two years at the then
open market rent) at a monthly rental of
HK$129,000, exclusive of government
rates, air-conditioning charges and
management fees and all other outgoings
("Unit 1004B Tenancy Agreement”).

The rentals chargeable under Unit 1001A
Tenancy Agreement and Unit 1004B Tenancy
Agreement were determined after taking into
account of the opinion letters issued by an
independent valuer in connection with the
fairness and reasonableness of the rentals
chargeable under the aforesaid tenancy
agreements respectively.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

)

(continued)

(B)

On 28 April 2022, Perfect Top Property
Investment Limited (formerly known as Perfect
Top Development Limited) (“Perfect Top”,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) as landlord entered into a tenancy
agreement with Success Capital Management
Services Limited (“SCMSL”, a company indirect
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Yeung,
and in which Mr. Ma, being the Deputy
Chairman of the Board and an executive
Director, is a director) as tenant in respect of
the leasing of the premises situated at Flat
D on the 19th Floor (now known as Office
1906) of Eastern Commercial Centre, 395-399
Hennessy Road, Hong Kong (”Office 1906 of
Eastern Commercial Centre”) for a term of
one year commencing from 1 May 2022 to 30
April 2023 (both days inclusive) at a monthly
rental of HK$24,900, exclusive of government
rates, management fees and all other outgoings
("Office 1906 Tenancy Agreement”). The
rental chargeable under Office 1906 Tenancy
Agreement was determined after taking into
account of the rental valuation report issued by
an independent valuer in relation to the market
rent of Office 1906 of Eastern Commercial
Centre.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

)

(continued)

The entering into of Unit 1001A Tenancy Agreement,
Unit 1004B Tenancy Agreement and Office 1906
Tenancy Agreement, all of which are on normal
commercial terms, constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules but are fully exempt from
shareholders’ approval, annual review and all
disclosure requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1)(c)
of the Listing Rules as all the applicable percentage
ratios calculated on an annual basis pursuant to
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules are less than 5% and
the annual caps for the aggregate amount payable
by SIMSL to Powerful Concept as well as Famous
Capital, and payable by SCMSL to Perfect Top for
each of the two financial years ending 31 December
2023 are below HK$3,000,000.

Save as disclosed above, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company, its parent company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or any
entity connected with him/her or a controlling shareholder
of the Company or any of the subsidiaries of the
controlling shareholder had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the

year.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING

BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr.
Yeung has the following interests in the companies listed
below whose business may compete or is likely to compete
with the Group's property investment business (the
“Competing Business”) pursuant to the Listing Rules:

Name of company

AELE

Report of Directors (Continued)
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Nature of competing business
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Nature of interest

s

Able Ace Limited
REFERAF

Active Profit Investment Limited

Asia City Holdings Limited
DEEFRAR

Crownpeak International
Investment Limited

HEHERKRERRAT
Joyful China Development Limited

EEURARLE

Lucky Hero Limited
HRERAE

Super Genius Investments Limited

HBEREARAR

Since any significant business decision of the Group
is to be determined by the Board in which half of the
members are INEDs, the Group is capable of carrying on its
business independently of, and at arm’s length from, the

Competing Business.

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building)

EEYMERE BE)

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building)

EEMERE BE)

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building)

EEMERE BE)

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building)

EEMERE BE)

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building)

EEMERE BE)

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building)

EEMERE BE)

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building)

EEMERE BE)

owned as to 50%
beneficial interest
EmBEAS0%E R

director and ultimate
beneficial owner

EEZARREmERA

owned as to 50%
beneficial interest
Em#EAS0%E R

director and ultimate
beneficial owner

EZARKEmERA

owned as to 50%
beneficial interest
Em#ERS0%ER

ultimate beneficial owner

RREmBEAA

ultimate beneficial owner

RREmBEAA
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31
December 2022 and up to the date of this report, none
of the Directors was interested in any business, apart
from the Group’s business, which competes or is likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s
business, other than those business where the Directors
were appointed as directors to represent the interests of
the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or subsisted
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Directors or chief executive
of the Company and/or any of their respective associates
had the following interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise,
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “"Model Code”) contained in the
Listing Rules:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EERESITHAERSESZ
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (CONTINUED) ¥xm (8)

Interest in the shares of the Company RAATRD (TRe151) 2 HExE
(“Share(s)”)

Approximate
percentage of
issued voting
Shares as at
31 December

2022

2

+-BA=+—H

Long position/ Number of HE8T

Name of Director Short position Nature of interest Shares held ~ ARZE#KHZ
EEls we %KE EME FrisiRi 88 Baaatt
%

Mr. Yeung (Note) Long position Corporate interest 3,527,994,987 71.61

B E s A NE)Em

Note: Mr. Yeung had a corporate interest in 3,527,994,987 Shares by Wizt BIERPIZEREERAGIHABTEERES

virtue of the interest of the Shares held by Silver Rich Macau BEm#ER FUGTEHEEHEEEPT
Development Limited, which is direct wholly and beneficially BRERA FIFHE23,527,994,987 R B 15
owned by Mr. Yeung. Z 2B o

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of PR EXFIIRBEEIN R_E__F+_
the Directors or chief executive of the Company, or their B=+—H ' 8FHEAQEESTEA
respective associates, had any interests or short positons EWFES B BB AMERARAT T
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the  HEMEK LZE (TERESHKPEXK
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the I 55XVEE) Z B& 1D ~ HERE AR (5D X EH &
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register B EAL BN IEEE S RPEEASE
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 3522 R EAANT BFFEZELLH
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise, notified to the Company — TIREIZZESFRIZBA S KA B K ¥ 3P
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. ZHREmIGKB ©
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND
DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 5 June
2014 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentives or rewards to eligible persons for
their contribution to the Group or any entity in which
any member of the Group holds any equity interest and
any subsidiary of such entity (“Invested Entity”). The
Share Option Scheme became effective on 10 June 2014
and, unless early termination by the Company in general
meeting or by the Board, shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from the date of its adoption on 5 June
2014.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the Directors are
authorised at their absolute discretion to invite eligible
persons to take up options to subscribe for Shares. Eligible
persons under the Share Option Scheme include (i) any
employee (whether full time or part time and including
executive director) of any member(s) of the Group or any
Invested Entity; (ii) any non-executive director (including
independent non-executive director) of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; (iii) any consultant,
adviser or agent engaged by any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity, who is eligible to participate in
a share option scheme of the Company; and (iv) any
vendor, supplier of goods or services or customer of or
to any member of the Group or any Invested Entity, who
is eligible to participate in a share option scheme of the
Company.

There is no provision in the Share Option Scheme to
require a grantee to fulfill any performance target or to
hold the option for a certain period before exercising the
option, but the Board may at its absolute discretion from
time to time provide such requirements in the offer of
grant of options.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND
DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

The maximum number of Shares available for issue under
options which may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company is 492,649,119 Shares (being not more than
10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the date
of adoption of the Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme
Limit")), representing approximately 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the date of this annual
report.

The Company may seek approval of its shareholders in
general meeting for refreshing the Scheme Limit save that
the total number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company under the Scheme Limit so refreshed
shall not exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in
issue as at the date of such approval (the “New Scheme
Limit”). Options previously granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of
the Company (including those outstanding, cancelled,
lapsed in accordance with the respective provisions of the
scheme(s) of the Company or exercised options) will not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the New Scheme
Limit.

Notwithstanding aforesaid in above, the maximum number
of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company must not exceed 30% of the
total number of Shares in issue from time to time.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND
DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme or any other share option
scheme(s) adopted by the Company (whether exercised,
cancelled or outstanding) to each eligible person in any
12-month period up to and including the date of offer
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in issue
on the date of offer, unless such grant is approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting at which
such eligible person and his or her associates shall abstain
from voting.

The exercise price in respect of any option granted under
the Share Option Scheme shall be a price determined by
the Board in its absolute discretion but in any event shall
not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer of the option, which must
be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date on which the option is offered; and (iii) the
nominal value of a Share.

The offer of a grant of share option must be accepted not
later than 28 days after the date of offer, upon payment
of a consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share option granted is determined by the
Board, save that such period shall not exceed a period of
10 years commencing on the date upon which the share
option is granted.

No share options had been granted under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption and up to 31 December
2022. Other than the Share Option Scheme, the Company
did not maintain any other share schemes which involve
the grant of shares by, or grant of options over shares of,
the Company or its principal subsidiary as at 31 December
2022.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND
DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

At no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed above,
no equity-linked agreements which will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares or which require the Company
to enter into any agreements that will or may result in
the Company issuing Shares were entered into by the
Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the
year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the following persons (other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had, or
were deemed or taken to have, interests or short positions
in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO:
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

Interest in the Shares

Name of substantial Long position/
shareholder Short position Capacity

TERRAE R waE %A g1

FTERRNESF ZEm (B)

A7 m

Approximate

percentage of

issued voting

Shares as at

31 December

2022

MRIEZZHF
+-HB=+—H

Number of HERT
Shares held EBI&ZR#RKRHZ
Fr¥sign 8B L ESE= DAl oo
%

Silver Rich Macau Long position Beneficial owner 3,527,994,987 71.61
Development Limited "a BmEAA

BERFIERERAT

Ms. Liu Siu Lam, Marian (vote) Long position Interest of spouse 3,527,994,987 71.61

BN £ (az) wa FofB g

Note: Ms. Liu Siu Lam, Marian, being the spouse of Mr. Yeung, was
deemed to be interested in 3,527,994,987 Shares in which

Mr. Yeung had a corporate interest.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no
other person (other than a Director or chief executive of
the Company) had, or was deemed or taken to have, an
interest or short position in the Shares and underlying
Shares which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULES 13.20 AND
13.22 OF THE LISTING RULES

Based on the disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20
and 13.22 of the Listing Rules, the financial assistance
("Financial Assistance”), which was made by the Group
by way of the shareholder’s loans provided by World
Fortune Limited ("World Fortune”, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company), and a corporate
guarantee given by the Company in respect of the
payment obligation of Pier 16 — Property Development
Limited (“Pier 16 — Property Development”, a 49% owned
associate of World Fortune) under the loan facilities
granted by a bank to Pier 16 — Property Development in
the aggregate amounts of HK$500 million and MOP273
million, continued to exist as at 31 December 2022. Pier
16 — Property Development is principally engaged in
property holding and, through its subsidiaries, operating
Ponte 16, a world-class integrated casino-entertainment
resort located in Macau. The Financial Assistance is mainly
used for the development and operations of Ponte 16.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULES 13.20 AND
13.22 OF THE LISTING RULES
(CONTINUED)

The amounts of the Financial Assistance as at
31 December 2022 were set out below:

B EHFRAIZE13.201% K
F13.22{8EH 2 M E (B)

ZMBEIR S F+ R =+—
Bz ERREHWT

Aggregate

Shareholder’s Corporate Financial

Name of associate loans guarantee Assistance
BEAT A REREM TEEER ZMBEPEE
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

BB ETT BEBESETT BEBEETT

Pier 16 — Property Development 366 490 856

TINHEYEERE

The shareholder’s loans provided by World Fortune are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

Further details are set out in notes 18 and 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Set out below is a consolidated statement of financial
position of Pier 16 — Property Development and the
Group's attributable interests in this associate according to
its audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022:

HERREHEZRRERNSERIF-ER
EHE R

— S EREI N e S REMN 8
&34 o

LTRES+/ B RS R 2GR
MERFTEERGZBERT 2w
BB+ /BEERBE_S "
F+A=t—HLEFEZEBEREEG
MBmRER

Consolidated

statement of Group’s

financial attributable

position interests

FEMBRRR TEEREGEER

HK$'000 HK$'000

A TIT BT

Non-current assets ERENE 608,314 298,074
Current assets MBEE 37,359 18,306
Current liabilities mEmeE (296,498) (145,284)
Non-current liabilities JFREBER (693,330) (339,732)
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CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities,
options, warrants or other similar rights as at 31 December
2022.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no
purchase, sale or redemption by the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, of the listed securities of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 77% of total revenue of
the Group, of which the largest customer accounted
for approximately 51% and the five largest suppliers of
the Group accounted for approximately 95% of total
purchases of the Group, of which the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 95%.

None of the Directors or any of their respective close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of
the number of issued shares of the Company) had any
beneficial interest in the above five largest customers or
five largest suppliers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Bye-laws and there is no restriction against such rights
under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its
existing shareholders.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained
a sufficient public float as prescribed under the Listing
Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to
the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) of the Board is responsible for determining
the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management of the Company
("Senior Management”). Besides, the Remuneration
Committee makes recommendations to the Board for
its determination on the remuneration of the NED and
all INEDs. Factors which include, inter alia, salaries paid
by comparable companies, qualifications, experience,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors
and the Senior Management as well as prevailing market
condition are considered by the Remuneration Committee
for determining/making proposals on remuneration of the
relevant Directors and Senior Management.

The remuneration packages of employees of the Group
(other than the executive Directors and the Senior
Management) are determined and reviewed periodically
on the basis of their respective qualifications, experience,
responsibilities and performance as well as prevailing
market condition. In addition to salaries, the Company
offers staff benefits which include medical insurance and
retirement benefits under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme. The Group also operates a share option scheme
pursuant to which share options might be granted as a
long-term incentive to its directors and employees.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group are
set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Report of Directors (Continued)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE TEER

The Company has published its Corporate Governance — Zs/A 3] & T TE¥E: WEFIEH
Report, details of which are set out on pages 40 to 70 of ~ RAREIRFEI0EF70E
this annual report.

AUDITORS %21 Ef

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for ZHAEBHE_T_-__F+_F=+—H
the year ended 31 December 2022 have been audited by  IFEEZ 7S BRFREHE B ZHED
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, who shall retire at the ~ EFFIERABDBEZ EER 2=
2023 AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for ~ FRBBFAZ LRI HEEFTEER

re-appointment. TRESEENZT-

On behalf of the Board REREFE

Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny FE

Chairman 2R3

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023 E8 B2 =F=A=+H
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEASRHENT

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny, aged 68, joined the Group
in 2003. He is an executive director of the Company and
the Chairman of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
the Company as well as a director of the subsidiaries of
the Company. He is also the chairman of the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the
executive committee (the “Executive Committee”) of the
Board, and a member of the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) of the Board. Mr.
Yeung is responsible for the overall corporate planning
and business development of the Group. He has over
39 years of experience in finance industry in Hong Kong
and is presently the sole beneficial owner of Success
Securities Limited (“Success Securities”), which is a licensed
corporation under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
as well as a participant of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), principally engaged
in the provision of securities brokerage services. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Yeung held managerial roles in
several financial service sectors such as leveraged foreign
exchange trading, and securities and futures brokerage.
He was a member of the Eighth to Eleventh National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference. Mr. Yeung has private investments in certain
properties and real estate development. He is also the
sole beneficial owner and a director of Silver Rich Macau
Development Limited, being a controlling shareholder of
the Company. Mr. Yeung is the uncle of Mr. Ma Ho Man,
Hoffman, an executive director of the Company and the
Deputy Chairman of the Board.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman, aged 49, joined the Group
in 2005. He is an executive director of the Company and
the Deputy Chairman of the Board as well as a director
of the subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ma is also a
member of the Executive Committee. He is responsible
for implementing the Company’s strategies regarding the
business development of the Group as well as managing
the Group’s business and operations. Mr. Ma has over 26
years of experience in the financial industry and years of
managerial experience. He joined Success Securities, which
is beneficially wholly-owned by Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny
("Mr. Yeung”), being the Chairman of the Board and an
executive director as well as a controlling shareholder of
the Company, in 2000. He has been a director of Success
Securities since November 2008 and is responsible for
overseeing its marketing affairs. Mr. Ma is presently
a member of the National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (the “CPPCC")
and a Standing Committee member of the CPPCC
Chongging Committee. He was awarded the Bronze
Bauhinia Star by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region in 2018. Besides, Mr. Ma
was awarded Fellowship by Canadian Chartered Institute
of Business Administration and Honorary Doctorate of
Management by Lincoln University in 2009 and 2010
respectively. He is the nephew of Mr. Yeung.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EEREREBEABRN &

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle, aged 68, joined the Group
in 2003. He is a non-executive director of the Company
as well as a member of the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) of the Board, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Choi graduated
from St. Pius X High School in 1976. He has extensive
management experience in the telecommunication
industry in Hong Kong, the United States of America (the
“US") and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").
Mr. Choi established Elephant Talk Limited in 1994, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Elephant Talk Communications
Inc. ("ETCI"). ETCI was an American corporation whose
securities were quoted on the Over-The-Counter Bulletin
Board in the US and engaged in the provision of
telecommunications services in Hong Kong and the US. Mr.
Choi was a director of ETCI from 2002 to 2008 as well as
the president and the chief executive officer of ETCI from
2002 to 2006 and was responsible for the planning of the
overall strategy of ETCI. He also served as the chairman of
ET Network Services Limited (now known as Guangdong
Ming Ying Financial Leasing Co Limited), a Hong Kong
company engaged in the provision of internet access and
outsourcing services in the PRC and Hong Kong. Mr. Choi
is presently an independent director of Goldenbridge
Acquisition Limited, a company whose securities are
listed on The NASDAQ Capital Market in the US. He was
a non-executive independent director of Wealthbridge
Acquisition Limited (now known as Scienjoy Holding
Corporation), a company whose securities were listed on
The NASDAQ Capital Market in the US.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann, aged 58, joined the
Group in 2004. She is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. She is also the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Ms. Yeung
holds a Bachelor degree of Retail Marketing with honours
in the United Kingdom and a Diploma in Marketing from
The Chartered Institute of Marketing. She pursued her
further study on legal course and was awarded a Diploma
in Legal Practice in the United Kingdom in 1998. Ms.
Yeung has over 24 years of experience in legal field and is
presently a consultant of Messrs. Fung & Fung, Solicitors, a
legal firm in Hong Kong. She is also an independent non-
executive director of Merdeka Financial Group Limited and
E Lighting Group Holdings Limited, the issued shares of the
said companies are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose, aged 58, joined the
Group in 2012. He is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. He is also the chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Chin
is a certified public accountant (practising) and a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is also a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, The Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute, The Chartered
Governance Institute and The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. Mr. Chin has over 36 years of experience in
auditing, accounting and taxation. He is presently the sole
practitioner of CNT & Co., Certified Public Accountants.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EEREREBEABRN &

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)
Mr. Chong Ming Yu, aged 49, joined the Group in
2014. He is an independent non-executive director of the
Company as well as a member of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Chong holds a Bachelor degree of Laws
and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from City University
of Hong Kong. He has been admitted as a practising
solicitor since January 1999, with focus on the field of
conveyancing, civil litigation and commercial. Mr. Chong
has over 26 years of experience in legal field and is
presently a consultant to Messrs. Kong & Tang, Solicitors, a
legal firm in Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Company Secretary

Ms. Chiu Nam Ying, Agnes, aged 49, joined the Group
in 2003. She is the company secretary of the Company
and is responsible for overseeing all legal matters of the
Group. Ms. Chiu is a qualified solicitor and an associate
member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute and The Chartered Governance Institute. She
holds a Master degree of Laws from The University of
Sheffield, United Kingdom. Before joining the Group,
Ms. Chiu was a practising solicitor in a local law firm and
possessed experience in banking and finance as well as
property related matters.

Financial Controller

Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Alvin, aged 60, joined the Group
as the financial controller in 2008 until 2015 and rejoined
the Group in 2018. He is the financial controller of the
Group and is responsible for financial and accounting
matters of the Group. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
as well as an associate member of the Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants. He has over 35 years of
experience in accounting and corporate finance gained in
entertainment and travel-related, property development,
construction and manufacturing companies.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Success Universe Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 137 to 317, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

B &30 FE A R
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

ENYR LS ClE

31/F, Gloucester Tower
The Landmark

11 Pedder Street
Central

Hong Kong
RERRXBRATDERE

(R EREZMETZ B RAE])
R

Aizgem (AT MM BEBT5E
REI137EFII7TENEEBRKERAE
UTHEBIERAR) REKEBAR &
BaEEE)) NRaMBHRE LR
EMBRROENR_E__£+_A8
=+ —HWREMBERAREREZH
LEENGEEEER HReBaREM
PEHWGER GoEDEEHRNESIR
ERER URGREMHREN T 615
FESHBRBE-

HPIRD ZEFCTMBRRERES
BESEAE (EBEMAE)) Eh
(EBMBREER) (EBMBTRSE
ZR)) EEMh KRBT SHEERN
—EC__F+_A=1+—HNREMB
KRB EZBEFENGEMBERER
KRizaHERE TEBREB(RAEE
B BIRBEIRE 25 o

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 E#R

127



128

Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
B2 ENRE (&

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Valuation of Investment Properties

Refer to Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter
RAEE st HIH

BIIZHENRE (&

FEEStFIE (B

REMEZMEE
BRI BRI 17 -

EIH/

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRAETEHEREZFHZEE

The Group's investment properties measured
at fair value amounted to approximately
HK$128,800,000 as at 31 December 2022 and
there was a revaluation loss of approximately
HK$9,800,000 for the year then ended. The
fair value was determined by the Group with
reference to the valuations performed by
independent professional valuers engaged by the
Group.
50:7__5-1— B=+—H> E8&£E#®%
ATEFENKREYELNAA'128,800,000
o MEBEZALFENEGBEHROREBE
9,800,000t BRAAFEIH EXEEZETH
ZENBIIEXGEMETHEERERE

The valuations of investment properties involved
significant judgements and estimates including:

REMEGEIREARH @G5 815

e  The determination of valuation techniques,
which is using combination of income
capitalisation method and direct comparison
method of each property;
HERENETE  SYMERA
FEERBEZIEBIE ;

GBHERAE

e The section of different inputs in the
valuation models.

HEZREERN T AENBAE-

Considering the significance of judgements,
estimates and the financial impacts of the
valuations, we paid specific attention to this
matter in our audit.

ZRINAEG GG Z2EE REEZMBHR
2> BN EZIT P HZERA TR

Our procedures in relation to management'’s
valuation of investment properties included but not
limited to:
B EEEHREMEZGERRZEFEHE
BARER :

e  Evaluation the competency, capability and
objectivity of the independent professional
external valuers.

OB FE IR ER 2B
Biito

FENRE

e Assessing the appropriateness of valuation
methodology, key assumptions and estimates
used based on our knowledge of the property
industry and using our valuation experts.
RIBR MBI ETEZNNB LB AL
BEEXR SHMEMRANGEERZ  RERR
st EM -

e  Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy
and relevance of the input data used.
BRI S BEFRAN @ AR E
R R AERA M o

We found the key assumptions were supported by
the available evidence.

3R R RREMEEBRAR -
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

BIIZHENRS (&

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Impairment Assessment of Interests in
Associates

FEEtFIE (@)
REE QR 2z #m 2 BET

Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements. B2EGEMBHRERMEE18.

The Key Audit Matter
FREEFEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAETEARREZFHZAE

The interests in associates are accounted for
under the equity method. As at 31 December
2022, the interests in associates amounted
to approximately HK$535,404,000, including
goodwill of approximately HK$19,409,000, and
the related loss on share of results of associates
for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
approximately HK$42,133,000.
RBEAB 2R RAEREIR - RZE
T+ ZA=t+—HBH REEAE A
(BIEEE4HE119,409,0007T) WA B
535,404,000 MBE T __F+_A4
= +—BIEFE BOBE R EEE BB
B4 %78 1642,133,0007T ©

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

Our procedures in relation to the management’s
impairment assessment of interests in associates
included but not limited to:
KPR EEEBENME QT 2R m 2 REEH
BZREFEFEERRRN

e  Evaluating the competency, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent professional
external valuer.

OB EEIELEM 2 ER B RE
o

e  Assessing the valuation methodology, key
assumptions and estimates used against our
knowledge of the business and industry.

EEH FMPIB AR RS R 1T R ST
BRANGER A BRRR G5t



Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Impairment Assessment of Interests in
Associates (continued)

The Key Audit Matter
RS EE

BIIZHENRE (&

FEEtFIE (@)
REFE AR 2 # 2 M EFTE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRAETEHREEXFEZAE

The management performed impairment
assessment of interests in associates with the
use of valuation performed by an independent
professional external valuer based on the
value in use calculation. The valuation requires
the application of significant judgement and
estimation by the management in determining
the appropriate valuation methodology to be
used, use of subjective assumptions and various
unobservable inputs.
EEECMME AR 2 R ETRET LI E
REIIEEIINEBGLEMRBEERAEESESD
HNEE - HEEREEEREER THERAZE
EHERE THREXASETTEHRB AR
B AR ERERAE R

e Assessing the appropriateness of valuation
methodology, key assumptions and estimates
used based on our knowledge of the business
and using our valuation experts.

IR I AERE ZE F RO R 8 3B B R API B 1
BEER TEMRANMGES L FARER
EstaEk-

e Challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions used based on our knowledge of
the business and industry.
RIBRMEZEBNTENRN B BREAR
RN SIENME -

e  Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy
and relevance of the input data used.
ERWMEA L WEMEANGABBRNE
REMEANARRE M o

We found that the assumptions made by the
management in relation to the value in use
calculations to be reasonable based on available
evidence.

RIBFIEEE BMRAEEEMNEREEFEE
HrBERBEE-
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
B2 ENRE (&

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in
the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes
our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
B2 ENRE (&

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
B2 ENRE (&

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Yau Wai Ip.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yau Wai Ip
Practising Certificate Number: P07849

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
FEEmR

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE_ T " F+"_RA=+—HILEE

2022 2021
TEITHF TR
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5 BT T BT T
Revenue Wz 6,7 114,778 151,130
Cost of sales Fi=f=S DN (102,354) (142,298)
Gross profit EF 12,424 8,832
Other revenue and gain H s WA 8 5,765 4,649
Fair value (loss)/gain on investment &YX AF(E
properties (B538) Wz 17 (9,800) 8,100
(Loss)/gain arising on change in BAFERIERYIER
fair value of financial assets at ZHBEEATE
fair value through profit or loss BEPELZ
(518 W (174,113) 87,725
Loss arising on disposal of financial & #&/AFEH HAth
assets at fair value through other ZEWIFIRZ
comprehensive income MBBEMEEXZ
B8 - (143)
Administrative expenses TR (49,575) (46,479)
Other operating expenses Hi& S 9(0) (16,593) (1,659)
(Loss)/profit from operations ~ 4%#& (&518) HF (231,892) 61,025
Finance costs Y EEIn N 9(a) (13,674) (8,195)
Share of results of joint ventures ~ FE{E S & XS 627 683
Share of results of associates A= YNCIEF (42,133) (48,654)
(Loss)/profit before taxation PRI AT (B518) im A 9 (287,072) 4,859
Taxation 18 10(a) - -
(Loss)/profit for the year EE (B518) iwd (287,072) 4,859
(Loss)/profit for the year AT IRRELAEE
attributable to owners of the  (&518) &%
Company (287,072) 4,859
(Loss)/earnings per share =ik (B518) &F
— Basic and diluted —HARK#E 14 (5.83) HK cents®fli  0.10 HK centsLL

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these  BEMI Z Mist A A4z & B RS 3R 2 40 A 26

consolidated financial statements.

73 e
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
raEnmkEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

2022 2021
T F T —F
HK$°000 HK$'000
AT BT T
(Loss)/profit for the year TEE (5i18) EF (287,072) 4,859
Other comprehensive (loss)/income  Efth2 M (§518) W=
Iltems that may be reclassified HEREEMEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BEmZIER
Exchange differences on translation MEBINEB AR
of financial statements of overseas MISHRFIEEZ
subsidiaries FER =R (1,208) 214
Profit arising on change in fair value of 2 AFERHMEE W
financial assets at fair value through FEERZMBEEAFE
other comprehensive income BEIPTESE 2 m A - 73
Release upon derecognition of financial ~ #& IEFESRIR A FER
assets at fair value through other HttemEmlz=5 Rz
comprehensive income W75 E E R - 143
Total other comprehensive (loss)income BRi#EZ AEEHMEE
for the year, net of tax (#518) Wz 4B %8 (1,208) 430
Total comprehensive (loss)/income  ZEEEZ2M@E (§i8) I
for the year “azn (288,280) 5,289
Total comprehensive (loss)/income  ZATREREEREE
for the year attributable to owners 2 (§518)
of the Company Y 25 4B KR (288,280) 5,289

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these — B&EMI 2 Mzt A AR 4x & M FE R ET 2 4H AL 2P
consolidated financial statements. e
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

& 23
raBSIARR
As at 31 December 2022
N2 _F#+_-_RB=+—H
2022 2021
TEITHF T —F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BT T BT T
Non-current assets EREBNEE
Property, plant and equipment MEREMRE 15 234,816 247,675
Intangible assets mEBEE 16 3,977 9,855
Investment properties "B 17 128,800 138,600
Interests in associates REERB 2w 18 535,404 547,052
Interests in joint ventures RNeEhErEm 19 7,950 7,323
910,947 950,505
Current assets WMENEE
Stock of properties M=EEE 20 100,600 111,400
Trade and other receivables FEWL & 5 BR R Mz
H {th FE U BR =R 21 18,359 9,952
Financial assets at fair value BATFERIER
through profit or loss HIERZ BA TS B E 22 93,429 266,804
Restricted/pledged bank ZIRE BT
deposits RITEM 23 549 558
Cash and cash equivalents REMREEE
IEH 24 147,273 49,611
360,210 438,325
Current liabilities mEaE
Trade and other payables FE(T B 2 R K
H Ath B BR R 25 22,407 17,282
Bank loans IRITEXR 26 312,500 302,500
Lease liabilities GiEN =N 27 554 584
Financial guarantee contract HHBIEREN 29 161 322
335,622 320,688
Net current assets mEEERE 24,588 117,637
Total assets less current BELERTEERE
liabilities 935,535 1,068,142
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
IREIBIRRR &

As at 31 December 2022

AT _HF+-"H=+—H
2022 2021
—EZCHF B4
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
b5 AT BT IT
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 27 170 336
Loan from a director and —HEERER
controlling shareholder REREXR 28 216,000 60,000
Financial guarantee contract MRS H 29 - 161
216,170 60,497
Net assets BEEFE 719,365 1,007,645
Capital and reserves B KA
Share capital &N 31 49,265 49,265
Reserves (B 670,100 958,380
Total equity HmEE 719,365 1,007,645

The consolidated financial statements were approved and &G &MBREEN _E_=F£=F=1+
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March HEESSHERE#ERE  THUT
2023 and signed on its behalf by: EERKRE

Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny Ma Ho Man, Hoffman
2 R=12 BEX

Director Director

EFE EFE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these  B&EMI Z MYzt A 4R S B 75 3R % = 48 Al 2B
consolidated financial statements. e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
maEm PR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_ T+ _B=t+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRBTSR
Share Share Distributable Revaluation  Exchange Other Accumulated Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve losses equity
At

ke RIVEE 2ERE  EERE  ERRR  HtRE  BHER  Rn4E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Eitn  ERTn  EBTn  B¥Tn  EEfn  E%Tn BT ERTn

(note a) (note b) (note ) (note d)

(zka)  (Hzkb) (tzkc) (tzkd)

t 1 January 2021 KRB -F-A-H 49265 1,418,963 52,333 (216) (3,970) 976 (514995 1,002,356
Profit for the year AEERR - - - - - - 4859 4859
Other comprehensive income A EEEM2E KRG

for the year - - - 73 214 - - 287
Release upon derecognition 4 IEERRRATER

of financial assets at B2 k5K

fair value through other BT EER#RI

comprehensive income - - - 143 - - - 143
Total comprehensive income  AEE2 EHAE

for the year - - - 216 214 - 4,859 5,289

At 31 December 2021 and B4
1 January 2022 +ZA=t-Rk
“¥_"&#-A-f 49,265 1,418,963 52,333 - (3,756) 976 (510,136) 1,007,645
Loss for the year AEERE - - - - - - (8702)  (287.072)
Other comprehensive loss ~ AEEEM2EEE

for the year - - - - (1,208) - - (1,208)
Total comprehensive loss ~ AFE2EHEAE

for the year - - - - (1,208) - (287,012)  (288,280)
At31December202  HZZFZZE

+-A=1+-H 49,265 1,418,963 52,333 - (4,964) 976 (797,208) 719,365

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 3% 141



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
n7l'l:l EEE@J% Clg

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

(a)

(b)

(9]

(d)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by section 40 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda.

Distributable reserve

The distributable reserve is the reserve of the
Company available for distribution to the
shareholders as calculated under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda.

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve represents cumulative
gains and losses arising on the revaluation
of debt instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income that have been
recognised in other comprehensive income, net
of amounts reclassified to profit or loss when
those debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income are disposed of or are
determined to be impaired.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 2(r).

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FRRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

2022 2021
—E°H —E-—
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BT T BT T
CASH FLOW FROM REXEBZINER
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before taxation BrES AT (B518) amF (287,072) 4,859
Adjustments for: Bt &R
EHBEE .
Fair value loss/(gain) on KREMEZ NFE
investment properties B8, (a) 17 9,800 (8,100)
Loss/(gain) arising on change in BATERER
fair value of financial assets FIRZ B EE
at fair value through profit or N EEENFT
loss EEZEIRS
(W) 22 174,113 (87,725)
Loss arising on disposal of HEEAFER
financial assets at fair value Hith 2wl
through other comprehensive HIERZ B TS E E
income FRESE 2 B8 - 143
Bank interest income RITH S WA 8 (120) (59)
Interest income from financial BATERHEM
assets at fair value through 2HEHW@mSIERZ
other comprehensive income MBEEZ
S ULA 8 - (139)
Finance costs RN 9(a) 13,674 8,195
Depreciation: e
— owned property, plant and —BEYE KR
equipment K tE 9(d), 15 11,966 12,175
— right-of-use assets —fEREEE 9(d), 15 633 788
Amortisation on financial M BIE RS HE
guarantee contract 8, 29 (322) (485)
Share of results of joint ventures  E{E &= (b¥EEE 19 (627) (683)
Share of results of associates FE(LEE A B G 18 42,133 48,654
Write-down/(reversal of EEAE b
write-down) of stock of (Wt 12 [2])
properties 9(c), 20 10,800 (500)
Impairment loss recognised on METEERIZ
intangible assets, net RERIEFER 9(c), 16 5,730 2,811
Allowance for/(reversal of LU B Z AR FR
allowance for) expected credit fEHTEHREE
losses on trade receivables Bz EE
(B 5D 9(0), 21 63 (652)
Exchange alignment [E R (235) (1,432)
Gain on disposal of property, HEME -BEK
plant and equipment Bo4i: P ik 9(d) - (297)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

HERENER (B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

2022 2021
TEITHF T —F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B =% BT T BT T
Operating cash flows before  ZEEE£E BRI
changes in working capital REFHER (19,464) (22,447)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and FEUN & 5 BR =
other receivables H {th FE UK AR =X
Ggm) b (9,072) 6,090
Increase/(decrease) in trade and P B Z R
other payables H{th BT AR
ghn, Crizl) 6,237 (2,491)
NET CASH USED IN REXBHREZ
OPERATING ACTIVITIES WREPEE (22,299) (18,848)
CASH FLOW FROM KRETBZRENR
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payment for purchase of property, FEEBYIZ - E K&
plant and equipment R PR T TRIE 15 (272) (705)
Net proceeds from sale of property, HEYZE BEK
plant and equipment R Z TSR EE - 10,411
Increase in amounts due from FE U Bt A Bl R IE
associates 10 18 (30,485) (39,200)
Placement of restricted/pledged FEXZEGBIEE
bank deposits RITE (23) (20)
Purchases of intangible assets EERTEE 16 - (10,131)
Sale proceeds of financial assets AT EREMEE
at fair value through other W5 IR 2 B4 75
comprehensive income BEHERSEMIE - 7,479
Purchases of financial assets at EERATERER
fair value through profit or loss SR M EE - (8,275)
Bank interest income received BEUERTTH] B WA 120 59
Interest income received from BEAFEEREM
financial assets at fair value 2EWEIERZ
through other comprehensive HMHBEEZ
income FEWA - 139
NET CASH USED IN KREETBFTRAZ
INVESTING ACTIVITIES W& P8 (30,660) (40,243)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

mARERER (B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

2022 2021
TEITHF T —F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BT T BT T
CASH FLOW FROM MEEBZIRER
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New bank loans raised HMEEIRTER 10,000 —
Loan from a director and —REERER
controlling shareholder REEM 242,000 50,000
Repayment of loan from a BE—RLEEH
director and controlling ERIREER
shareholder (86,000) (50,000)
Finance costs paid [SENEZEETI®:N (13,520) (8,027)
Payment of lease rentals S HHEERE (657) (802)
NET CASH GENERATED MEESEE
FROM/(USED IN) (BA) 2HE P
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 151,823 (8,829)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash HEeEMIREEEEE
and cash equivalents 1@hn, CRiL) 38 98,864 (67,920)
Cash and cash equivalents at the F4JIRE& KRS
beginning of year %EI1EE 49,611 117,394
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXEEH s &
changes (1,202) 137
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS F£FXIBE& KRS
AT THE END OF THE YEAR %HIEH 147,273 49,611
Analysis of balances of cash HERFAEEE
and cash equivalents HB Z&&eRa
Cash and bank balances RE MIRTTAERR 24 147,273 49,611

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

FEMt 2 st R AR G M B IR R Z A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

717 O = |

AR e T ERARMTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

1.

ORGANISATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability in Bermuda on 27 May
2004 under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and its issued shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
Company's registered office is located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda.

The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Units 1003-04A, 10/F., Tower 1, Admiralty
Centre, 18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong. Its controlling
shareholder is Silver Rich Macau Development
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI") with limited liability.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries
are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS(s)”),which collective term
includes all applicable individual HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS(s)")
and interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and applicable
disclosure requirements under the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”). For the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements, information is considered
material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by
primary users. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosures provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”).

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments
and interpretations which are or have become
effective. It also issued certain new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretation
("New HKFRSs"”), which are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group (as defined
hereinafter). Note 3 provides information on
initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. FETHEER

(a)

TEEHA
EHFEEUHFRRDREEE
gitmAg ((EBEEMA
) BRZPTBEBREBMT
REXEA (TEBMBFREE
Bl B EEREERE
EEBUBHREER -BFED
stER (TEBEFER) &
k) EBEBRBEFRIIL
R nEHEB) (BB EH 5622
5) (MREEP) PRREZE
ARBERFR -UERES
MB®REMS  HERENSG
BERAEFEIZAEMFLR
ERARERRBAERER
IEHFHREHMBRRINETHR
Pragss LR (T EmRA)
FTIRE 2 BRI EEIRX

EAGHMASER/MET
RERIELERNZEITRR
2R TERfmETREER
(EERTX EfizE5tH
B8 R EME A HIE R R
ZHE] R A IEST 2R MEFT AR
R (THEBMBREE
A1) - MEE3HINMEFRE
MBREANFTRRZ B KRB
TEStHHEERERERRELR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements
The consolidated financial statements included
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) and the Group's interests in associates
and joint ventures made up to 31 December

each year.

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which
is the same as the functional currency of the
Company. All values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“HK$'000") except when otherwise

indicated.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements is the
historical cost basis except that investment
properties, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) and
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL") are stated at their fair value
as explained in notes 2(h) and 2(k) to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for

goods and services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of the

consolidated financial statements
(continued)

Basis of measurement (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in orderly transactions between market
participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristic of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-
based Payment”, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
16 “Leases”, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 "Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”.

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. FEEFER @)

(b)

REMBHRRZEREE
(&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of the

consolidated financial statements

(continued)
Basis of measurement (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes,
fair value measurements are categorised into
Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:

— Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can

access at the measurement date;

—  Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than
quoted prices included within Level 1, that
are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

—  Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for

the asset or liability.

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other
factors believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying
amount of assets and liabilities not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of the

(9]

consolidated financial statements
(continued)

Basis of measurement (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant
effect on the consolidated financial statements
and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in
note 5.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its
return.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more or the
three elements of control listed above.

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. FEEFER @)

(b)

(9]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(c) Basis of consolidation (continued)
When the Group has less than a majority of
the voting rights of an investee, it has power
over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee
unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether or
not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are

sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting
rights relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of the other vote holders;

e  potential voting rights held by the Group,
other vote holders or other parties;

e right arising from other contractual

arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances
that indicate that the Group has, or does
not have, the current ability to direct
the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made,
voting patterns at previous shareholders’

meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expense of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control

the subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEEHEE @)

(CONTINUED)
(0 REEE (@)

(c) Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income and expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in subsidiaries that do not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries.

Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair values of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(c) Basis of consolidation (continued)
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests

in existing subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests. All amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or a joint

venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in subsidiaries is stated
at cost less impairment losses (see note 2())).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Investments in associates and joint

ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets
of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exits only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
or a joint venture are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting, except when the
investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as
held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”.
Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate or a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. When the Group's
share of losses of an associate or a joint venture
exceeds the Group's interest in that associate
or joint venture (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate or joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(d) Investments in associates and joint

ventures (continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint
venture is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or
a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the

investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an
objective evidence that the interest in an
associate or a joint venture may be impaired.
When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised is
not allocated to any asset, including goodwill,
that forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to
the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

2. FEEFER (@)

d) REBMEQTNREGELEZ

RE (@)
REMEATDNGEREZIRE
HWRREENABE AT N
GELXERRE BRmEA
fRoEWBR —MBE QT
—BEEEEZIRER RE
RABHAERRERRES
A BEEREBEZ AFFE
ZERBD KRS E I
SPARBZRAEERN TEE
BRI HNNEERERATF
BERLKREMRETZERNED
REMTERRWERERRE
P m A RN B FEST o

FEBFERESFERBKER
B EERFEZEm e fERE
ZEHERE BEFEEAER
BER RE (BEEE 22
MEREESRES Gt ER]
BIHIERE—EE FELER
Hellol28 (B EREEA
AFERHERNETZRSE)
HEHEREEETRENS F
RIERRZREREAE DI
ERMKREREEZ —HBDZ
EE (BEB8) -&pERE
ZEEBLONREE BG5S E
AIE36 MY HEMNKEZ
pIUsEERE BRI R IR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Investments in associates and joint

ventures (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over
a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. When the Group retains an interest
in the former associate or joint venture and
the retained interest is a financial asset within
the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition. The difference between
the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing of
the relevant interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or
joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that
associate or joint venture on the same basis
as would be required if that associate or joint
venture had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate or joint venture would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon
disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate
or joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Investments in associates and joint

ventures (continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method
when an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interests
in associate or a joint venture but the Group
continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the
gain or loss that had previously been recognised
in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interests if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
or a joint venture of the Group, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements only
to the extent of interests in the associate or joint
venture that are not related to the Group.

In the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position, interests in associate and joint
venture are stated at cost less impairment loss.
If there is an indication of impairment, then the
impairment test applied follows the principles in
HKAS 36 "Impairment of Assets" (see note 2(j)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEEHEE @)

(CONTINUED)

(e) Goodwill (e) BHE

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (see the accounting
policy above) less accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's
cash generating units (“CGU(s)") (or group
of CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent
the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes

and not larger than an operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit (or group of CGUs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of
the CGU within the group of CGUs, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of
an operation within the CGU (or a CGU within
a group of CGUs), the amount of goodwill
disposed of is measured on the basis of the
relative values of the operation (or the CGU)
disposed of and the portion of the CGU (or the
group of CGUs) retained.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(f) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible
assets that are held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less accumulated depreciation

and impairment losses (see note 2(j)).

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using
the straight-line method over their estimated
useful life at the following rates per annum:

Land and buildings

Leasehold improvements

office equipment
Motor vehicles

Motor yacht and equipment 10% — 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
There is no depreciation imposed on the

freehold land.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets, other than goodwill,
identified on business combinations are
capitalised at their fair values. They represent
mainly trademark relationship with customers
and cryptocurrencies. Subsequent to initial
recognition, intangible assets with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with
finite useful lives is charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis from the date of acquisition
over their estimated useful lives as follows:
Client list 15 years
The asset’s useful lives and their amortisation
method are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
are not amortised. The intangible asset and
its status are reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to
support indefinite useful life. Should the useful
life of an intangible asset change from indefinite
to finite, the change would be accounted for
prospectively from the date of change and in
accordance with the policy for amortisation
of intangible assets with finite lives as set out
above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(g) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

(continued)

Cryptocurrencies purchased and held by the
Group include Bitcoins, which are accounted for
as intangible assets under the cost model. The
Group has ownership of and control over the
cryptocurrencies held and employs third party
custodian services to monitor them.

The cryptocurrencies held by the Group are
considered to have indefinite life, given there
is no foreseeable limit to the period over which
the relevant cryptocurrencies are expected
to generate net cash inflows for the Group.
They are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. The
accounting policies applied for impairment of
cryptocurrencies are consistent with those for
impairment of non-financial assets, as described
in note 2(j). Cryptocurrencies that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at the end of each reporting
period. The increased carrying amount of
cryptocurrencies attributable to a reversal of
an impairment loss, which is recognised in
profit or loss, will not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the
cryptocurrencies in prior accounting periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(g) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

(continued)

The recoverable amount of cryptocurrencies
are determined based on fair value less costs
of disposal. In determining the fair values, the
relevant available markets are identified by the
Group, and the Group considers accessibility
to, and activity within those markets in order
to identify the principal cryptocurrency markets
for the Group. The fair value of cryptocurrencies
traded in active markets (such as trading and
exchange platforms) is based on quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period. A
market is regarded as active if quoted prices
are readily and regularly available from an
exchange and those prices represent actual
and reqgularly occurring market transactions
on an arm’s length basis. Therefore, the fair
value used for assessment of recoverable
amount in impairment tests is determined as
guoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
cryptocurrencies.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. FEEFER (@)

(9)

BREE 2R (8

MEEBZ AR EIEERTIZA
FEBALEMRTEE -NEE
RFER > A E B R AE RE AT
EHG WEBZSHHZE
MEREE) AR EEH A b
TEMBEBHH NIRRT
5 BMEERRZTE) BEE
MEEBHNAFERNBSH
REFIRH BB WA 5H
PREER EHAEIS R1E > M E
ERRRERERHRZ AT
THR5 > AT SRS
JE B8 o AL > 7R E R =l A AT
P UR Bl 28FT A 2 A FER
BEAMBERERETHEZ®R
B CRIERE) -

RIFRRDETLEE
RHENRAEARHEZE
TREER NG HRARRALEF
mb HERIEEIAB/ELE
EoRRILERETLEEME
EzWEREE (REERE
MRFREZEERAERZ
R E) BRI RIBEE
By 7S 18 PO RERD o

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 %38 163



164

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(h) Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation
(including property under construction for
such purposes). Investment properties are
measured initially at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured
at fair value, adjusted to exclude any prepaid
or accrued operating lease income. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in the profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment
properties under construction are capitalised as
part of the carrying amount of the investment
properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from
the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which
the property is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or
arising from business combinations on or after
the date of initial application of HKFRS 16,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under
HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract
will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-
lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative
standalone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-
lease components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to
separate non-lease components from lease
component, and instead account for the lease
component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEFHER @)

(CONTINUED)

(i) Leases (continued) (i) HE &
The Group as a lessee (continued) FEBREAEBEA (B)
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets PRI ERIGEBEEEHE
The Group applies the short-term lease NEBRICHAEERTEARIE
recognition exemption to leases of office FRHE R % B HAEE 1218
equipment that have a lease term of 12 months BRUTEAGEEEEEN
or less from the commencement date and do MAERBHEHE KXEBTYH
not contain a purchase option. It also applies REEBEEERERAEREH
the recognition exemption for lease of low-value TG EREREEBEEEM
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases ENHEEMARNEERANZE
and leases of low-value assets are recognised BEREMARRMEEERR S
as expense on a straight-line basis or another Az o

systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets EHAEEE
The cost of right-of-use asset includes: FRAEEENRARE

e the amount of the initial measurement of HESEEXRFESE;

the lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before e MNHEBBEMEKZATEL
the commencement date, less any lease BIMERIFE & {5 = R AE 1A
incentives received; BWEHNEEESE ;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the e AFAEEFELENEMAER
Group; and REBRE ; &

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by o  KEEFFE KRB
the Group in dismantling and removing BE OEHFAERMEL
the underlying assets, restoring the site KR EEEEREEMN
on which it is located or restoring the BB REGEERBAAR
underlying asset to the condition required JUPRE IR AN o

by the terms and conditions of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEEHEE (@)
(CONTINUED)
HE (&)

(i) Leases (continued) (i)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities other than adjustments to lease
liabilities resulting from COVID-19-related rent
concessions in which the Group applied the
practical expedient.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life
and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that
do not meet the definition of investment
property or inventory in “property, plant and
equipment”, the same line item within which
the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-
use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the
Group recognises and measures the lease
liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group
uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an
index or rate, initially measured using the
index or rate at the commencement date;

the amount expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the
options; and

payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising an option to terminate the
lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)
After the commencement date, lease liabilities
are adjusted by interest accretion and lease
payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and
makes a corresponding adjustment to the
related right-of-use assets) whenever:

e  the lease term has changed or there is a
change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

e  the lease payments change due to changes
in market rental rates following expected
payment under a guaranteed residual
value, in which cases the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease modifications

Except for COVID-19-related rent concessions
in which the Group applied the practical
expedient, the Group accounts for a lease
modification as a separate lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of
the lease by adding the right to use one or
more underlying assets; and

e  the consideration for the leases increases
by an amount commensurate with the
stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted
for as a separate lease, the Group remeasures
the lease liability based on the lease term of the
modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement
of lease liabilities by making corresponding
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset.

When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-
lease components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
COVID-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a
direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic,
the Group has elected to apply the practical
expedient not to assess whether the change
is a lease modification if all of the following
conditions are met:

e the change in lease payments results in
revised consideration for the lease that is
substantially the same as, or less than, the
consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change;

e any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments originally due on or before
30 June 2022; and

e  there is no substantive change to other
terms and conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient
accounts for changes in lease payments
resulting from rent concessions the same way
it would account for the changes applying
HKFRS16 if the changes are not a lease
modification. Forgiveness or waivers of lease
payments are accounted for as variable lease
payments. The related lease liabilities are
adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or
waived with a corresponding adjustment
recognised in the profit or loss in the period in
which the event occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases
Leases for which the Group is a lessor are
classified as finance or operating leases.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified
as a finance lease. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance
leases are recognised as receivables at the
commencement date at amounts equal to the
Group’s net investment in the leases, measured
using the interest rate implicit in the respective
lease. Initial direct costs (other than those
incurred by manufacturer or dealer lessors) are
included in the initial measurement of the net
investments in the leases. Interest income is
allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s
net investment outstanding in respect of the
leases.

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term except for
investment properties measured under fair value
model.

Interest and rental income which are derived
from the Group’s ordinary course of business are
presented as revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEEHEE @)

(CONTINUED)

HE (@)

(i) Leases (continued) (i)

The Group as a lessor (continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

When a contract includes both lease and non-
lease components, the Group applies HKFRS
15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”
to allocate the consideration in a contract
to lease and non-lease components. Non-
lease components are separated from lease
component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are
accounted for under HKFRS 9 and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value
at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts
that were not part of the original terms
and conditions are accounted for as lease
modifications, including lease incentives
provided through forgiveness or reduction of
rentals.

Operating leases
The Group accounts for a modification to

an operating lease as a new lease from the
effective date of the modification, considering
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease
payments for the new lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_Z_F+"RA=+—HIFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets,
investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures and intangible assets with finite
useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever
there is an indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures and
intangible assets are estimated individually.
When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU
to which the asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant CGU when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be established, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of CGUs for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be established. The recoverable amount
is determined for the CGU or group of CGUs
to which the corporate asset belongs, and is
compared with the carrying amount of the
relevant CGU or group of CGUs.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

()

2. FEEFER (@)

ME BB R ERE
BE -MMBAE BE
RERBEREZRE
UK EREE (BRI
B

REBESHAR *EBEBRER
REIERFHZE BB K
RE-EREEE-RWNBA
B MEATREGEREZR
BUKREREEZREE U
BETEEROXTREREZ
BY R o i F EEAAERR IR
AlgEstEREEZ TR EE
B UEERERE WA
BRE-BEERAIERFHZ
BILEERAKPIHERZETR
BEEDSERNESERRE
B R By Al R (E o

ME-BMERRFE EREE
E-RNHMBRAE -BMEAT R
BEREZREUKRELEE
Z AR [E = RRE B (& 5t - B
B] SE{E B! {& 51 BT Uk [o] = BR &5
TEBGSHEEFMBREES
Bz rJiR[el 28

fARREELEBUZRE

B MBI SE—RZ DD
BEE - NDBEESGROEEM
RIREELEN [RIEDEC
ERBEUSE-—ROREES
RNERIZIRETELEBEAMA -
P EERER AR EENS
ZIREELBUNIRTELE
fU#EREE  WEERREE
SEUNREsELEEMNENZ
FREELLE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets,
investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures and intangible assets
other than goodwill (continued)
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a CGU, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of CGUs,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of CGUs, with the recoverable
amount of the group of CGUs. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have
been allocated to the asset is allocated pro-
rata to the other assets of the unit or the group
of CGUs. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_Z_F+"RA=+—HIFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

(k)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets,
investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures and intangible assets
other than goodwill (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or
CGU or a group of CGUs) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a
group of CGUs) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a settlement date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value except for
trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers who are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEEHEE @)

(CONTINUED)

(k) ERTH (&)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset
or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the
Group's ordinary course of business are
presented as revenue.

(i) Financial assets
Classification and subsequent
measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are measured subsequently at
amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is
to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

e  the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_Z_F+"RA=+—HIFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent
measurement of financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are measured subsequently at
FVTOCI:

e the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets; and

e the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at the date
of initial application/initial recognition of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in
fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by
an acquirer in a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations”
applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EEFHBER (@
(CONTINUED)
(k) Financial instruments (continued) (k) £RT A (48)

(i) Financial assets (continued) (i) HMBBEE @)
Classification and subsequent HMEEEZHERAE
measurement of financial assets 52 (&)

(continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for EUTER BEEED

trading if: HAFEEE .

e it has been acquired principally for e FEBABHNARN
the purpose of selling in the near REEARHE ; 3
term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of o FAA) YA HE R BT B B
a portfolio of identified financial KEBR—HEREIE
instruments that the Group manages EZBE#HA /T
together and has a recent actual Biegz—#n 8
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or BERTHERIEH

EFRI; 3

e itis a derivative that is not designated o HUIFIEEKAREM
and effective as a hedging instrument. EBH AT E 1T
$THo

In addition, the Group may irrevocably B4R > {5 BT 5H BR 58 A & AL
designate a financial asset that are DESH AR KEE AT
required to be measured at the amortised B EH i OB 2 45 8 Bl A
cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if srE iR A FERHAM
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces 2HEW@AIER SN2
an accounting mismatch. ZHBEEREEAER
TERBERSER S G

2o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_Z_F+"RA=+—HIFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent
measurement of financial assets
(continued)

(i)

(i)

Amortised cost and effective interest
method

Interest income is recognised using
the effective interest method for debt
instruments measured subsequently
at amortised cost and at FVTOCI.
For financial assets other than
purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets, interest
income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset.
If, in subsequent reporting periods,
the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so
that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from
the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent
measurement of financial assets
(continued)

0]

(1)

(iff)

Debt instruments classified as at
FVTOC!

Subsequent change in the carrying
amounts for debt instruments
classified as at FVTOCI as a result
of interest income calculated using
the effective interest method are
recognised in profit or loss. All other
changes in the carrying amount
of these debt instruments are
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under
the heading of reserve. Impairment
allowances are recognised in profit or
loss with corresponding adjustment
to other comprehensive income
without reducing the carrying
amounts of these debt instruments.
When these debt instruments are
derecognised, the cumulative gains
or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet
the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured
at fair value at the end of each
reporting period, with any fair values
gains or losses recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Financial assets (continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses
The carrying amount of financial assets
that are denominated in a foreign currency
is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of
each reporting period. Specifically:

e for financial assets measured at
amortised cost that are not part of
a designated hedging relationship,
exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss; and

e for financial assets measured at FVTPL
that are not part of a designated
hedging relationship, exchange
differences are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment
under expected credit losses (“ECL(s)") on
financial assets (including trade and other
receivables as well as amounts due from
associates and a joint venture) which are
subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9. The amount of ECLs is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will
result from all possible default events
over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date. Assessments are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime
ECL for trade receivables. The ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as
the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date, including time value of
money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL when there
has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. However, if
the credit risk on the financial instrument
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at
an amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(i)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument at
the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the date of
initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking
information that is available without
undue cost or effort. Forward-looking
information considered includes the
future prospects of the industries
in which the Group’s debtors
operate, obtained from economic
expert reports, financial analysts,
governmental bodies, relevant think
tanks and other similar organisations,
as well as consideration of various
external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that
relate to the Group's core operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

(continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk
(continued)
In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

e an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in
external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular
financial instrument, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor, or the
length of time or the extent
to which the fair value of a
financial asset has been less
than its amortised cost;

° existing or forecast adverse
changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

Significant increase in credit risk
(continued)

(i)

(i)

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;

significant increases in credit risk
on other financial instruments
of the same debtor;

an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of
the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk on
a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due,
unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(i)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk
(continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group
assumes that the credit risk on
a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial
recognition if the financial instrument
is determined to have low credit risk
at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined to have low
credit risk if:

(1) the financial instrument has a
low risk of default;

(2) the debtor has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near
term; and

(3) adverse changes in economic
and business conditions in
the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(i)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk
(continued)

The Group considers a financial asset
to have low credit risk when the
asset has external credit rating of
‘investment grade’ in accordance with
the globally understood definition or
if an external rating is not available,
the asset has an internal rating of
‘performing’. Performing means
that the counterparty has a strong
financial position and there is no past
due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase
in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_Z_F+"RA=+—HIFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(i)

(ii)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following
as constituting an event of default
for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience
indicates that financial assets that
meet either of the following criteria
are generally not recoverable:

e when there is a breach of
financial covenants by the debtor;
or

e information developed internally
or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any
collateral held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis,
the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(i)

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the
following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of
the issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_Z_F+"RA=+—HIFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(i)

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

(continued)

(d) it becomes probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;
or

(e) the disappearance of an active
market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial
asset when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, e.qg.
when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the
Group's recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

2. FEEFER (@)

(k) £RTH (&
() MBEE (@)
RiEEBMBHRE R
FEFRETHIENGZ

BB ERE (&
(i) WHBEEFEERE

)

(d ERAFTEE
THREBEWN
Hihf B 54
ZHE W

(e) EII RSB 2
ERZUBE
EREEGET
%o

(iv) HEHECR
EAEBEHNBTER
ANBABRERN H
7 4 B R U (2] Y A
FEZ B (BIINEH A
BEREEREARE
B NERKE
5 MR RUE B B 1B
FR URFELEE
=E)  KFEETH
HM BB E - B
By RE 5 B E ) A AR
BAREEUERE
B SR Hl 81T 0 1E
BEBRTERA
BRR - EfUEFR
IHE I8 m PIFEST o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECLs is a function
of the probability of default, loss
given default (i.e. the magnitude of
the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking
information as described above. As for
the exposure at default, for financial
assets, this is represented by the assets’
gross carrying amount at the reporting
date; for financial guarantee contracts,
the exposure includes the amount
drawn down as at the reporting date,
together with any additional amounts
expected to be drawn down in the
future by default date determined
based on historical trend, the Group’s
understanding of the specific future
financing needs of the debtors,
and other relevant forward-looking
information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_Z_F+"RA=+—HIFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

(continued)

The ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. For a lease
receivable, the cash flows used for
determining the ECLs is consistent with
the cash flows used in measuring the
lease receivable in accordance with

HKFRS 16.

If the Group has measured the loss
allowance for a financial instrument
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but
determines at the current reporting
date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL at
the current reporting date, except for
assets for which simplified approach

was used.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset
only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises
its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have
to pay. If the Group retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial
asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset
measured at amortised cost, the difference
between the asset'’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a
debt instrument classified as at FVTOCI,
the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an

equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract
that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of an entity after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by
the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’'s own
equity instruments is recognised and
deducted directly in equity. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured
subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method or at FVTPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise
when a transfer of a financial asset does
not qualify for derecognition or when the
continuing involvement approach applies,
and financial guarantee contracts issued
by the Group, are measured in accordance
with the specific accounting policies set

out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEEHEE @)

(CONTINUED)

(k) ERTH (&)
(i) MBEaRERER (@)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Financial liabilities and equity

(continued)

Financial liabilities measured subsequently
at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and
other payables, bank loans, lease liabilities,
loan from a director and controlling
shareholder are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Financial liabilities that are not (i)
contingent consideration of an acquirer
in a business combination, (ii) held for
trading, or (jii) designated as at FVTPL, are
measured subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial
liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter
period, to the amortised cost of a financial
liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Financial liabilities and equity

(continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payments when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Financial guarantee contract
liabilities are measured initially at their fair
values. It is subsequently measured at the

higher of:

. the amount of the loss allowance
determined in accordance with

HKFRS 9; and

e the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised over the

guarantee period.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated
in a foreign currency and are measured
at amortised cost at the end of each
reporting period, the foreign exchange
gains and losses are determined based
on the amortised cost of the instruments.
These foreign exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss for financial
liabilities that are not part of a designated

hedging relationship.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Financial liabilities and equity

(continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

() Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition.

(m) Employee benefits
(i) Short term employee benefits and

contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans
Salaries, bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts
are stated at their present values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Employee benefits (continued)
(ii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when,
and only when, the Group demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

(n) Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

0]

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on
taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from “(loss)/profit before taxation”
as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEEHEE @)

(CONTINUED)
(n) FRFIE (@)

(n) Income tax (continued)

(i) Deferred tax (i) IRIEFRIE
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary REMBRREFPZE
differences between the carrying amounts EREERAEHREBE
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated STHEERREN ZBE
financial statements and the corresponding MEZEREERIA

tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_Z_F+"RA=+—HIFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

Income tax (continued)
(ii) Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates and joint ventures,
except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEEHEE @)

(CONTINUED)

(n) FRFIE (@)
(ii) EEMRIAE (&)

(n) Income tax (continued)
(ii) Deferred tax (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
for leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and
the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or
the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
“Income Taxes” requirements to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences relating to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities are not
recognised at initial recognition and over
the lease terms due to application of the
initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable
entity by the same taxation authority.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_Z_F+"RA=+—HIFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

(o)

Income tax (continued)

(iii) Current and deferred tax for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognised
in profit or loss, except when they relate
to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred
tax arises from the initial accounting for
a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business
combination.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits
required to settle a provision are expected to
be recovered from a third party, a receivable is
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured
reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p) Contingent assets/liabilities

0]

(i)

Contingent assets

Contingent assets arise from unplanned
or other unexpected events that give rise
to the possibility of an inflow of economic
benefits to the Group and they are not
recognised in the consolidated financial
statements. The Group assesses continually
the development of contingent assets.
If it has become virtually certain that an
inflow of economic benefits will arise, the
Group recognises the asset and the related
income in the consolidated financial
statements in the reporting period in
which the change occurs.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation
arising from past events but is not
recognised because it is not probable
that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation.

Where the Group is jointly and severally
liable for an obligation, the part of the
obligation that is expected to be met by
other parties is treated as a contingent
liability and it is not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group assesses continually to
determine whether an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits
has become probable. If it becomes
probable that an outflow of future
economic benefits will be required for an
item previously dealt with as a contingent
liability, a provision is recognised in the
consolidated financial statements in the
reporting period in which the change in
probability occurs, except in the extremely
rare circumstances where no reliable
estimate can be made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(q) Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. A performance
obligation represents a goods or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or
a series of distinct goods or services that are

substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue
is recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the

following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group’s performance as the Group

performs;

e the Group’s performance creates and
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance

completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the

distinct goods or service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q) Revenue recognition (continued)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer
that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer. A contract asset and
a contract liability relating to the same contract
are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

For contracts that contain more than one
performance obligations, the Group allocates
the transaction price to each performance
obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.

(i)  Travel-related service fee income
—  Revenue from the sale of air tickets
is recognised at a point in time when
the booking tickets are delivered
to and have been accepted by the
customers.

— Revenue from the sale of tour
packages is recognised at a point in
time when travel arrangements have
been booked and confirmed with
customers.

—  Revenue from the sale of group tours
is recognised at a point in time of
group departure.

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. FEEFER @)

(q) I‘Iyml ulL,\ (:%E)
GNEEEREEPIRAE
EEEMERER MR
BESNEBZHRABERTZ
ER-HRBEBMBRS
R FsETERE B 0 &
WRRIRE A E B r B R ERS
REZER] > A=A EEH
SANEIREPEESR Sk

GHEREAEEDERER
EmufBFzEE MAEH
ERtttmE R WEAE (FE
HRW Z A EBEER) - AEF
BNERZENEERGNE
SLUPREEREZ S

HEsBB—ERNSEENG
,\’Jﬁ‘ﬁi AEEREHERE
BERERXZEIERESERE
,%’JEEO

(i) ﬁ&%&*ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ“%%)\
KEKEHEZW
mR R R (B0
RUIBRERE
BEREMZE) R

o

— REREEZEHE
Z W B REBh
(BP iR 7% 22 BE =] B8
BEZREIZE)

=]
ae ©

— REEREKRIEHE
Z W it F— B R
(BN B A8 Y 25 ) e

=]
o ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 &5 207



208

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_Z_F+"RA=+—HIFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q) Revenue recognition (continued)

(ii)

(iif)

Rental income in respect of investment
properties under operating lease is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
respective lease term.

Revenue from sale of properties is
recognised when the control over the
ownership or physical possession of the
property is transferred to the customer,
which is the point in time when the Group
satisfies its performance obligations under
the contracts. Deposits and instalments
received on properties sold prior to the
date of revenue recognition are presented
in the statement of financial position as
deposits received on sale of properties
which are regarded as contract liabilities.

Management fee income is recognised
when the amounts are measurable and
the ultimate collections are reasonable
assumed.

Interest income is recognised on a time
apportioned basis using the effective
interest method.

Services income is recognised when
services are provided.

Other income consists of revenue earned
based on volume sales through various
online ticket processing systems and is
recognised when it is measurable and all
contractual obligations have been fulfilled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEEHEE @)

(CONTINUED)
Shis

(r) Foreign currencies (r)

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual entity, transactions in currencies
other than the Company’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange difference arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group's foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period,
in which case the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of exchange reserve
(and attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_Z_F+"RA=+—HIFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r)

(s)

Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a
disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding
after the related asset is ready for its intended
use or sale is included in the general borrowing
pool for calculation of capitalisation rate
on general borrowings. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t) Related parties transactions

(a)

(b)

A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group
if that person:

(i) has control or joint control of the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i) the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HEZSE-_—f£+—-8

=t+—HIEFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t) Related parties transactions (continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:
(continued)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t)

(u)

Related parties transactions (continued)
Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party
transaction when there is a transfer of resources
or obligations between related parties.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated
financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to
the Group’'s chief operating decision maker
("CODM") for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group'’s various lines of business and
geographical location.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_Z_F+"RA=+—HIFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v)

(w)

Stock of properties

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes
the cost of land, development expenditure
and other directly attributable expenses. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale,
determined by management based on prevailing
market conditions. Costs necessary to make
the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental
costs which the Group must incur to make the
sale.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the Group recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise
acquire non-current assets are recognised as
a deduction from the carrying amount of the
relevant asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position and transferred to profit or
loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following New HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the
first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use

HKFRS 3 (Amendments)

HKAS 16 (Amendments)

Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract

HKAS 37 (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2018-2020

The application of the amendments to HKFRS in
the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

3. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 3. EREABUBHREENZ
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING &:T17s (48)
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

New HKFRSs that have been issued but not EEMAERKRERZHEE
yet effective MRS
The Group has not early applied the following AREBTEIZEEERLUTEEME
New HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet HWARER 2 MEARFRESED
effective:
HKFRS 17 (including the October Insurance Contracts’ ERUBREENZE RRaW
2020 and February 2022 (BERZZ25E
amendments to HKFRS 17) +AR-E_"F
BHEBUBRE
BRIET%263)
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets ERUBREER REEAEBEATNAE
(Amendments) between an Investor and its EI0ERBAL PEZBNEELEY
Associate or Joint Venture? RBAIESE (BTR) RN
HKFRS 16 (Amendments) Lease Liability in a Sale and EENBRERIZ 0 EREORFZAEEE
Leaseback? (I3T)
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Classification of Liabilities as BADHEF IR REENEARDY,
Current or Non-current and (I3Tx) FRBaNEAREES
related amendments to (C228FH 2
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 RS
(20207
HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Disclosure of EREHEARIRE  EHIRZEE
Statement 2 (Amendments) Accounting Policies’ EANBREE
EL YN
(B51%)
HKAS 8 (Amendments) Definition of BAD D E8% EEN A
Accounting Estimates’ (315)
HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax related to Assets EESHENFN:  BHE-REMELEER
and Liabilities arising from a (B7%) BEZELHE

Single Transaction’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 1 RIEZ=F—F—HRZEHEZ
2023. FERIERL

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to 2 FFFE HEE 2 12 s = F ERER
be determined. e

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 3 RIEZFE—F—HRZ #HEZ
2024. FERIERL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RERME (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 3. EREAMBRTENZ
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING CHEE)
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)
New HKFRSs that have been issued but not BEMGEMKRERZHES
yet effective (continued) MRS R (48)
The directors of the Company (“Directors”) anticipate KREESE (TEE)) B A
that the application of all New HKFRSs will have BEMEAMBRESENAERK
no material impact on the consolidated financial R AEHRERHFRRERERT
statements in the foreseeable future. Zo
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4., &FITH
(a) Categories of financial instruments () T HRZEER
At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
RZEZZHF RIZT—HF
+ZH=+—H +ZA=1+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT IT AT
Financial assets MBEE
Amortised cost BEE A AR 531,164 395,764
Financial assets at FVTPL AT ERERYIRZ
MBEE 93,429 266,804
624,593 662,568
Financial liabilities MEaE
Amortised costs B A AR 551,631 380,702
Financial guarantee contract MBEEREN 161 483
551,792 381,185
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair

values

The Group's major financial instruments
include amounts due from associates and a
joint venture, financial assets at FVTPL, trade
and other receivables, restricted/pledged bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, bank loans,
loan from a director and controlling shareholder,
financial guarantee contract, trade and other
payables and lease liabilities. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective

notes.

The Group has exposure to credit risk, liquidity
risk and market risk (including currency risk,
interest rate risk, fair value and other price
risk) from its use of financial instruments. This
note presents information about the Group's
exposure to each of the above risks, the
Group's objectives, policies and processes for
measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s

management of capital.

(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment
Credit risk refers to the risk that the
Group's counterparties default on their
contractual obligations resulting in
financial losses to the Group. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancement to cover its credit risks
associated with its financial assets.

The Group's credit risk exposures are
primarily attributable to bank balances and
restricted/pledged bank deposits, trade
receivables, deposit and other receivables
and amounts due from associates and
a joint venture. The carrying amounts
of these balances represent the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation

to financial assets.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

4. £RTH (B

(b) MBRAREERATE

AEEZIEZEEMTEOER
WEEABD h—HEGEEE
MBI AT ERBEHIIRZ
MBEE -BWEZRARE
fth FEUZBR TR ~ 2RI, B
RTEFER RERRESEE
B RTEM  —REERE
KRERRER MBEREHO
P B 5 8RR HLA AR T BR R
UKkEEaR =M AFIE
POARFE B SE 50 BR

rERRCERASRIAMEH
FEERR RBETRABKRT
GRER (BEERERFRE
B AT EREMERER)
ANEHEAEREER EHE
EfE FERHNGTEREE
Rz BRE BRkERF U
REAEBEBEERZER -

() EERRERKEEN S
EERBREAERSYTF
HERBNEFERSR
EEEBERYBERARZA
B AEELEMHPHE
EZEERBRFEEMA
A S E I S FE T

rEBEZEERBREE
KB R1T 4 R e X IR
/BRI ER B
B IR B2 R HEME
Wi AR R DU FE W
Ak—HEaEhEMRIE
ZEEHRZREABERR
rEERYBEERR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

In respect of bank balances and restricted/
pledged bank deposits, the credit risk is
considered to be low as the counterparties
are reputable banks. The existing
counterparties do not have defaults in the
past. Therefore, ECL rate of cash at bank
is assessed to be close to zero and no
provision was made as of 31 December
2022 and 2021.

The Group applies the simplified approach
to provide for ECLs prescribed by HKFRS
9, which permits the use of the lifetime
ECL provision for all trade receivables.
To measure the ECLs, trade receivables
have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics. The Group has
performed historical analysis and identified
the key economic variables impacting
credit risk and ECL. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, trade
receivables, deposit and other receivables
as well as amounts due from associates
and a joint venture that are individually
significant have been separately assessed
for impairment. The Group makes periodic
assessments on the recoverability of
the trade receivables, deposit and other
receivables as well as amounts due from
associates and a joint venture based
on the background and reputation of
the customers and debtors, historical
settlement records and past experience.

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

4. £RTH (B

(b) MBRREERATE @

0]

EERERRE G (&)

RIRTTEBRRZRS
BIRRIRITERMS > 5
ERBREFEAEMR  THH
RHEFHAEMNEIETIR
BERHFHBERLEEY
R R T
FER_E_—F+_A
=—+—H RTIRETE
HEEFERLEEXARTT
= B EIE B o

FEERRAEBUHR
HAERFEFAEI A
EHEARERESRE
PR i AR E T H
PRAREWE 5 RMFA
EHEREEHEEE -
HETBTRMEERE B
WEZEMERIKAE
ERBRFED B -~EH
BETESE DT WHEE
TEEERBKTARE
EEBEZTELBEEH-
HEBAWEZEER
SRS

R_B-_£R_%
_—%+ZRA=+—8"
18 B B A 2 & U B 53 R
%o R EMERER
DU R E U B A ) R —
RIS B EREERH
E{E LB 3745 - A
BIEEE RAHAZY
SRS B Bk
ROBIEISR 2 HIsP A 7
WU R e R B
P Ut B 5 L R UG B
AAR—MEERER
B2 AT EARE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_Z_F+"RA=+—HIFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

0]

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Majority of the Group’s revenue is received
from individual customers in relation to
sales of air tickets and service fee income
from provision of travel-related services.
The Group's trade receivables majority arise
from sales of air tickets to the customers.
As at the end of the year, the top five
customers and the largest customer
accounted for approximately 3.2% and
0.5% (2021: approximately 27% and
5%) of the Group’s trade receivables
balance respectively. In view of the history
of business dealings with the customers
and the sound collection history of the
receivables due from them, management
believes that there is no material credit
risk inherent in the Group's outstanding
receivables balance due from these
debtors saved for the debtor related to
the impaired trade receivables disclosed in
the below. Management makes periodic
assessment on the recoverability of the
trade and other receivables based on
historical payment records, the length of
overdue period, the financial strength of
the debtors and whether there are any
disputes with the debtors.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

4. £RTH (B

(b) MBEABEERATE &

0]

EERRRREE (&)

& B K E D W T 3k
BEREAZEPRHERE
DA R 12 14 ik %5 4E A AR 75
WERZ BRFSE A o &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

0]

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed
on all of the Group's customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables
are due within 30 days from the date
of billing. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for
trade receivables at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group’s historical
credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group's
different customer bases.

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

4. £RTH (B

(b) MBEREERATE (&)

0]

= 8RR R R ET S (48
rEEHMAEZREBB

—ElEETRHZERE
TERE BT o & F T
MEFRERBERE
TE Bl HA B 2 38 7R A0 B K
BRIZEMES > LE &
BERUKREREEMmE
RERIBZETEER &
WEZERINARER
HHERRESt30R A EIHR - —
RMs > AEEAEXRE
PR R R an o

AEERBENR2HE
HEEBERZERE
BWE SRR BEE
> Hh R B
H-HRTERBEZRE
EFREERTEBRTT
EEFOBZEEEI
BEREE WERAH
NEZEEREERTTE
—IRAEEBEREER
BERZBE—T&E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4. ERTEH (B

(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(b) MBEABEERATE &

(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment (i) EERMRERETG @&
(continued)
The Group provided allowance for gxr___+_H
expected credit losses on trade receivables —+t—HLEEE &~&H
in amount of approximately HK$149,000 MEWEZRFIEHZ
(2021: approximately HK$2,243,000) for T EEBEBEEBENR
the year ended 31 December 2022. 7B 1149,0005T (Z&F——
1 #7B152,243,0007T) °
Gross Net
Expected carrying Lifetime  carrying
loss rate amount ECL amount
TEHEIRSE fREE 2HES FREE
& e EEFE L]
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETrn
As at 31 December 2022 R-E "%
+ZB=+—8H
Current (not past due)  ENHA (GR#1HA) 1.2 10,276 (124) 10,152
31 to 60 days past due  #HA31E60H 1.2 36 1 35
61 to 90 days past due #5612 90H 4.9 484 (24) 460
1.3 10,796 (149) 10,647
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4. ERIT A (8B)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Financial risk management and fair (b) BAERAMGEERATE (@)
values (continued)
(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment (i) EERBBRETG @&

(continued)

Gross Net

Expected carrying Lifetime carrying
loss rate amount ECL amount
TRHIEE REE 2BEH fREE
tEE RE  EEEE 2

% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BBTR  ABTR  BETR

As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ—4F

+-A=+—H
Current (not past due) ~ BPER (Gk#EHA) 1.1 3,536 (38) 3,498
31 to 60 days past due  #Hi31E60H 17 562 (10) 552
61to 90 days past due  #i61ZE90H 5.8 143 (8) 135
Over 90 days past due ~ #IHA90H M & 75.2 2,908 (2,187) 721
314 7049 (2243 4906

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 &£38 223



224

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_Z_F+"RA=+—HIFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

0]

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

The closing loss allowances for trade
receivables as at 31 December 2022 and
2021 reconciled as follows:

4. £RTH (B

(b) MBEABEERATE &

0]

EERRRREE (&)

RZEZ__HEK_F
—_—%+-HBA=+—H
ZEWE SRR ERE
BREHIRNT :

Trade
receivables
FEUL & 5 BR R
HK$'000
AT

At 1 January 2021
Loss allowance reversed in profit

S ZE_—F5—HF—H
FARREm R 2 BIRERE

(2,986)

or loss during the year 652
Bad debt written off i EE 1R AR 118
Exchange alignment PE 0 oA 2 (27)
At 31 December 2021 and AT —F

1 January 2022 +-A=+—Hxk

“E-"F—HF—H (2,243)
Loss allowance recognised in profit FARIEmER 2 BIEEE

or loss during the year (63)
Bad debt written off I EE IR AR 2,028
Exchange alignment PE R B 129
At 31 December 2022 j . 5

+-A=+—H (149)

Trade receivables are written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include,
amongst others, the failure of a debtor
to engage in a repayment plan with the
Group, and a failure to make contractual
payments for a period greater than agreed
contract terms.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

EWE ZERRN B ER
bz &R LRI B
mNEI 2 EEAFENS
REE EHPEE) BEHBA
REEAEBITIEN
st&) > IR R BER BB F
W& e AR B R
AT BRI



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

0]

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

Expected loss rates are based on actual
loss experience over the past 1 year. These
rates are adjusted to reflect differences
between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has
been collected, current conditions and the
Group's view of economic conditions over
the expected lives of the trade receivables.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect
of the Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from trade receivables are set out
in note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The management monitored the financial
background and creditability of those
debtors on an ongoing basis. The Group
seeks to minimise its risk by dealing with
counterparties which have good credit
history. Majority of the trade receivables
that are neither past due nor impaired
have no default payment history. In this
regard, the Directors consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

4. £RTH (B

(b) HBRBEERAFEE

0]

= 8RR R R ET S (48

BWEZ KRR Z B ERES
BREeafnEos
RS TE I ER - KR UR[o]
5 B B i EE 2 RUBR R s
AR—IEH-

REBELERTDREB
F—F2ERBIRER
AR -ZIFLEXEARB
WEBEHENHEZ
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HERREBERINE
EZ BB EE M AFH A

o

ERT-EERKE SR
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E—FPEBIEREHNE
BB HREMEE21 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_Z_F+"RA=+—HIFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

0]

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

For deposits and other receivables as well
as amounts due from associates and a
joint venture, management makes periodic
collective assessments as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables based on historical settlement
records and past experience. The Directors
believe that there is no material credit
risk inherent in the Group's outstanding
balances.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group
will not be able to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its current
and expected liquidity requirement and
its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and long term.

The following table details the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the
reporting period of the Group’s non-
derivative financial liabilities, which are
based on the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the
Group can be required to pay:

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

4. £RTH (B

(b) MBEABEERATE &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair

values (continued)
(ii) Liquidity risk (continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

4. £RTH (B

(b) HBRABEERAFE B

(i) REBEZEE (B

At 31 December 2022
RIBZZE+ZA=+-H
Weighted More than ~ More than Total
average Within ~ 1yearbut  2yearshut  contractual
effective 1 year or less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
interestrate  on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
mEFss —ERg Bia-& BAME ANERER
BRI BEX EOREE  EORLE REREAR IREfE
% HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
AhTn  BBTn  EBTn BETR EBTR
Trade and other payables SR
HftRE(TARR - 2407 - - 2,407 2407
Bank loans (note) FITER (i) 33 322,697 - - 322,697 312,500
Lease liabilties HE&E 40 562 1 - 734 724
Loan from a director and —LEERERRRST
controlling shareholder 51 - 227,095 - 227,095 216,000
345,666 221,261 - 572,933 551,631
At 31 December 2021
RZB_—E+"A=+-H
Weighted More than More than Total
average Within Tyearbut ~ 2yearsbut  contractual
effective 1 year or less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
interestrate ~ on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
et —ERg, BE—* BBWE SNRER
BRH= BEX  EORWE  EORLE RERSLH IRmEfE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT BRI BT AT
Trade and other payables ENEZETR
HfRAER - 17,282 - - 17,282 17,282
Bank loans (note) BITER Mz 19 308,309 - - 308,309 302,500
Lease liabilities HEaR 33 590 337 - 927 920
Loan from a director and —RESFERRRER
controlling shareholder 50 - 63,000 - 63,000 60,000
326,181 63337 - 389,518 380,702
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4. ERTEH (B

(CONTINUED)
(b) Financial risk management and fair (b) MAFEEKEERATE (B)
values (continued)
(i) Liquidity risk (continued) (i) RBEZEE (&
Note: izt -

There is a clause for repayment on demand
under the facility letters regarding the bank loans
granted to the Group. Thus, the bank loans are
categorised into the time band of “within 1 year or
on demand” in the above maturity analysis. As at
31 December 2022, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amount and interest of bank loans was
approximately HK$322,697,000 (2021 approximately
HK$308,309,000). Taking into account of the Group’s
financial position, the Directors believe that the
bank exercising its discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment is remote and such bank loans
shall be repaid one year after the end of the reporting
period in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, the aggregate principal
and interest cash outflows will be in the amount of
approximately HK$322,697,000 (2021: approximately
HK$308,309,000) calculated with weighted average
effective interest rate.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, it was
not probable that the counterparties to
the financial guarantee will claim under
the contracts. Consequently, the carrying
amount of the financial guarantee contract
of approximately HK$0.2 million (2021:
approximately HK$0.5 million) has not
been presented above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)
(ii) Liquidity risk (continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

4. £RTH (B

(b) MBEREERATE (&)

(i) "HEERAMR @)

At 31 December 2022 At 31 December 2021

RZ2ZZ RZB-—%
+-A=+-B +-A=+-B
Expiry Expiry
HK$'000 period HK$'000 period
BT [E R BETTT [EpL
Guarantee gvento  FLIRF—HEHEAT
bank in respect of %Eﬁmﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ
banking facilities fEHZ &R
granted to an
associate 490,000 2023 490,000 2023
(iii) Currency risk (iii) SRR
Presently, there is no hedging policy with B Al > A& B A B I
respect to the foreign exchange exposure. [ﬂﬁ Z%]L/EPBZ% ~E
The Group's transactional currency are BxRZEERBER
HK$ and Canadian dollars (“CAD") as DDT_E(WJDTEJ) [ RE AR
substantially all the revenue are in HK$ and NI W wm Th LA ﬁ%‘)ﬁ’z
CAD. The Group's transactional foreign MITEt B REEER
exchange exposure was insignificant. FPTAR Z SMNE R B E
o
(iv) Interest rate risk (iv) FI=RER
Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that NEEHNXERRIEEH
the value of a financial instrument will IEZﬁ@.ﬁii&Eﬁ%‘J‘?
fluctuate because of changes in market % EEMEE AR -RE
interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk MENEXEEIEEMT
is the risk that the future cash flows of a BAZAXRKREREAS
financial instrument will fluctuate because oI ES =&
of changes in market interest rates. B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair

values (continued)

(iv) Interest rate risk (continued)
The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk relates primarily to floating-rate
borrowings. The Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates. The Group currently does not have
any interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should

the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis on interest rate risk

Regarding the cash flow interest rate risk,
the sensitivity analysis set out below has
been determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the end of the reporting
period. For variable-rate borrowings, the
analysis is prepared assuming the amount
of liability outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis point increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible

change in interest rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4, T EHE (B

(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair (b) BAERAMGEERATE (@)
values (continued)

(iv) Interest rate risk (continued)

(iv) #FZmEE (B

Sensitivity analysis on interest rate risk
(continued)

If interest rates had been 50 basis point
higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s loss for the year
ended 31 December 2022 would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$2,643,000
(2021: approximately HK$1,813,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group's
exposure to interest rates on its floating
rate borrowings.

Interest rate benchmark reform

As listed in note 26, several of the Group's
interest-bearing bank loans based on Hong
Kong interbank offered rate (“HIBOR")
will or may be subject to the interest rate
benchmark reform. The Group is closely
monitoring the market and managing
the transition to new benchmark interest
rates, including announcements made by
the relevant interbank offered rate (IBOR)
regulators, risks arising from the interest
rate benchmark reform and the progress in
completing the transaction to alternative
benchmark.

HIBOR

While the Hong Kong Dollar Overnight
Index Average (“HONIA") has been
identified as an alternative to HIBOR, there
is no plan to discontinue HIBOR. The multi-
rate approach has been adopted in Hong
Kong, whereby HIBOR and HONIA will
coexist.

FIEREEREZ DT (B

WEFEEH/ T8
S01E & B P B H h
RREFAE A KRE
BHE_Z-_"+=
B=+—HLEEEZE
BRIE M, R A B
2,643,000 (Z &= —
A BE1,813,000
7T FERERNAEER
2R EBEMMEHZH
E R g o

FERBHENE

MM EE26FT 5 AEBE
TFUBBRITAERESX
(TEBRTRXERSL)
HEEFREZIRITER
REHAEEHNFEAE
ERNF - AEEIERYE
£hin > LRKMMEE
FERZEE > BERER
RTRERFREBEERE
FIERE FIRBEENE
PRES Z B 5T B
BEMBRENERZERE -

BRIRITRIZHF B

HABTIRRFIEH
WBREBIRITEZER
Bz BRER HRFIL
BB EREBIRTRE
ERE -BEBRAZAX
HE BEBTRAERE
BB TR T EIE L

1To
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair

values (continued)
(v) Fair value

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities that are measured
at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial instruments
are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. In estimating the fair
value, the Group uses market-observable
data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages third party qualified valuers to
perform the valuation. The management
of the Group works closely with the
qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and

inputs to the model.

The Group's financial assets at FVTPL are
measured at fair value at the end of each

reporting period.

The following table analyses the financial
instruments which are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period

into the three-level hierarchy.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4. ERIT A (8B)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Financial risk management and fair (b) BAERAMGEERATE (@)
values (continued)
(v) Fair value (continued) (v) 2FEE)

Fair value as at 31 December

R+ZA=+—HZA¥E

Valuation

Fair value  techniques
2022 2021 hierarchy and key inputs
EERER

ST STC—F ATERE TERAME
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFRE  BETR

Financial assets MHBEE
Financial assets at FVTPL @A T ERMER
SRz s EE

— Listed equity investment — EHRAIZE 93,429 266,804  Level 1 Quoted prices in

F—R active markets
REMERE
There was no transfer between Level 1, 2 MEFEN B —4HK 5
and 3 in both years. “HRERE=HRzELE
;o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair

values (continued)
(v) Fair value (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities
that are not measured at fair value on a

recurring basis

The fair values of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices
or rates from observable current market
transactions. The Directors consider that
the carrying amounts of the financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements are not materially
different from their fair values as at 31
December 2022 and 2021, except for the
following financial instrument, for which
their carrying amounts and fair value
and the level of fair value hierarchy are

disclosed below:

Carrying
amount at
31 December

4. £RTH (B

(b) HAFRABREERAFE (B

Fair
value at

31 December

(v)

NEE (88

W FEFAS B M B ZE L
NFEGTEZHBEEER
MEER
KEBRBEERTTE
BEZAFEDNRESE
BRAZzZTEEREN &
IRREREDMEA
NIBERERTHERXS
FTEBHENEBEBRETE -
BEERA NIREHHER
RANREHER AR
MBEERMBERBZ
REBHARZ-ZZZZ
FR_BE_—F+"A4
Zt+—HZAFELE
BEAEE HETIEMT
BAIRSN HEREE
TEEATFEZEREE
wr

Fair value measurements as
at 31 December 2022

2022 2022 categories into:
ZE-C ZE-C
+=A +=A
=+-Hz =+-Hz RZZ2--F#+-B=+-HZ
IREE ATE ATEHEFENT
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
F—% ER E=R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Financial guarantee IBEREN
contract 161 =* - - =*
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4. TMTIT A @)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Financial risk management and fair (b) HAFERAMEERATE (B
values (continued)
(v) Fair value (continued) (v) 2FE @
Financial assets and financial liabilities 0 FF 1A M B 7E LY
that are not measured at fair value on a NFEFEZUHEEER
recurring basis (continued) MEEE (8)
Carrying Fair
amount at value at Fair value measurements as
31 December 31 December at 31 December 2021
2021 2021 categories into:
i i
22 IZZT-F
+ZH +-A
=+—Hz =+—-Hz RIE_—F+"A=+—Hz
IREE ATE NEEFEDENT -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
F— EMH B5=K

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

Financial guarantee IHRREN

contract 433 o - _ _x
* less than HK$ 1,000 *  DRE1,0007T

(vi) Other price risk (vi) EHERRR

The Group is exposed to equity price risk XEBRUZAFER
through its investments in measured at BaiRAAFEZR
FVTPL. For equity securities measured at B R A ES R R
FVTPL quoted in National Association of MEBEAFEREBRY R
Securities Dealers Automated Quotations WHREMBERE (T3
(NASDAQ) in United States of America (the Bl 2EESRXZEHE
"USA"), the management of the Group BERERA @WHER)
manages this exposure by maintaining WEBZRAFBSFMS &
a portfolio of investments with different EEEEEEZBER
risks. The management of the Group W RAE R REHE
closely monitor the price risk and will EEEERAR - AEE
consider hedging the risk exposure should ZEREERYERER
the need arise. Rk W E RIS E RS

B RREE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_Z_F+"RA=+—HIFE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

(a) Key sources of estimated uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies which are described in
note 2, management has made certain key
assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimated uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, as discussed
below:

(i)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and land and buildings

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its net selling price and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset, which
requires significant judgement relating to
the level of revenue and the amount of
operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation
of the recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections
of revenue and operating costs. Changes
in these estimates could have a significant
impact on the carrying amount of the
assets and could result in additional
impairment charge or reversal of
impairment in future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5. DEHfhst RFEr (B)
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(a) HHFABEERZTER

(a) Key sources of estimated uncertainty

(continued) R (48)

(i) Provision for ECL for trade receivables (i) FEUWE ZERFUA R FEUR
and amounts due from a joint venture —HeagEtERBEA
and associates BIMIEZ FEHREE SR

B

Trade receivables and amounts due from
a joint venture and an associate with
significant balances and credit-impaired
are assessed for ECL individually.

In addition, for trade receivables which
are individually insignificant or when
the Group does not have reasonable
and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort to
measure ECL on individual basis, collective
assessment is performed by grouping
debtors based on the shared credit risk
characteristics under simplified approach.
For amounts due from a joint venture
and associates, the Group assess by using
general approach.

mREAREBEEREZ
FE UL B 5 R 7R L R & Y
— R & & b E Kk —fE
= A E M IE R R EF S
TRHfEEEE-

ItESh > s 5 FE UK & 5 BR 7R
15! 45 BR 3 N BEA > B
EEEEFBAMEBS
AR E NMEE & E
a2 ER UER =2
BHEEEE  ARERE
ERZERAEZEER
SRR EBADAE
TERFE - ENEW—
BEEtENRBEART
IR AEEER RS
RETEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Key sources of estimated uncertainty

(continued)

(iii) Fair value of investment properties
As set out in note 17, investment
properties were revalued as at 31
December 2022 on an open market value
existing use basis by the independent
professional valuers, whose have among
their staff, fellow members of the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyor (the
“Valuer(s)”). Such valuations were based
on certain assumptions, which are subject
to uncertainty and might materially
differ from the actual results. In making
the judgement, the Group considers
information from current prices in an
active market for similar properties and
uses assumptions that are mainly based
on market conditions existing at each of

reporting period.

In the absence of current prices in an
active market for similar properties, the
Group considers information from a variety

of sources, including:

(@ current prices in an active market
for properties of a different nature,
condition or location (or subject to
different leases or other contract),
adjusted to reflect those differences;

and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Key sources of estimated uncertainty
(continued)
(iii) Fair value of investment properties

(continued)

(b) recent prices of similar properties on
less active markets, with adjustments
to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those
prices; and discounted cash flow
projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows,
supported by the terms of any
existing lease and other contracts and
(when possible) by external evidence
such as current market rents for
similar properties in the same location
and condition, and using discount
rates that reflect current market
assessments of the uncertainty in the
amount and timing of the cash flow.

The principal assumptions for the Group’s
estimation of the fair value include those
related to current market rents for similar
properties in the same location and
condition, appropriate discount rates and
expected future market rents.

Note 17 provides detailed information
about the valuation techniques, inputs and
key assumptions used in the determination
of the fair value of investment properties.

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

5. EeHhEtRFIE (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Key sources of estimated uncertainty

(continued)

(iv) Impairment test for interests in

associates

The Group completed its annual
impairment test for interests in associates
by comparing the recoverable amount
of interests in associates to its carrying
amount as at 31 December 2022. The
Group has engaged the Valuer to carry out
a valuation of the interests in associates as
at 31 December 2022 based on the value
in use calculations. This valuation uses
cash flow projections based on financial
estimates covering a ten-year period, and
a pre-tax discount rate of approximately
7.4% (2021: approximately 7.1%). The
cash flows beyond the above mentioned
period are extrapolated using a steady
2.2% (2021: 2.5%) growth rate for the
casino and hotel industries in which are

operated by associates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5. EHhEt B FIER (48)

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) fEEtAEARAEIZEZ EER
iR (&)
(iv) REEEQARZ R ZRE

(a) Key sources of estimated uncertainty
(continued)
(iv) Impairment test for interests in

associates (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, in view of
impairment indicators to specify, the
Group performed impairment assessment
on associates. Determining whether
impairment loss should be recognised
requires an estimation of the recoverable
amount of the relevant associate which is
the higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal. The value in use
calculation requires the management of
the Group to estimate the present value
of the estimated cash flows expected to
arise from dividends to be received from
the associates and the proceeds from the
ultimate disposal of the investment taking
into account. In cases where the actual
cash flows are less or more than expected,
or change in facts and circumstances
which result in revision of future cash
flows estimation or discount rate, further
recognition of impairment may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or
loss for the period in which such further
recognition takes place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Critical accounting judgements in
applying the Group’s accounting

policies

In determining the carrying amounts of
some assets and liabilities, the Group makes
assumptions for the effects of uncertain future
events on those assets and liabilities at the
end of each reporting period. These estimates
involve assumptions about such items as cash
flows and discount rates used. The Group’s
estimates and assumptions are based on
historical experience and expectations of future
events and are reviewed periodically. In addition
to assumptions and estimations of future
events, judgements are also made during the
process of applying the Group’s accounting

policies.

(i) Impairment test for interests in

associates

Management has considered the above
assumptions and valuation and also taken
into account the business plan going
forward. The valuation depends upon
an estimate of future cash flows from
the interests in associates and other key
assumptions, which are based on the
Directors’ best estimates. The valuation is
sensitive to these parameters. Changes in
these parameters could lead to a material
revision of the valuation which may have
effects on the net assets and results of the

Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5. EHhEt B FIER (48)

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Critical accounting judgements in (b) ERAXEEEHBEZE
applying the Group’s accounting
policies (continued)

(ii) Principal versus agent consideration

Determining whether the Group is
acting as a principal or an agent requires
considering of all relevant facts and
circumstances, including whether (i) the
nature of its promise is a performance
obligation to provide the specified goods
or services to the customer or to arrange
for the other party to provide those goods
or services; (ii) the Group obtains control
of each specific goods or service before
that goods or service is transferred to the
customer; and (iii) the Group has latitude
in establishing prices.

The Group’s management performs the
assessment based on the above mentioned
factors and reaches the conclusion that the
Group acts as a principal in the provision
of travel-related services and in sales of air
tickets when all the factors set above are
fulfilled and recognises the sales on a gross
basis accordingly. Otherwise, the Group
acts as an agent and recognises the sales
on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

6.

Operating segments are identified on the basis of
internal reports which provide information about
components of the Group. This information are
reported to and reviewed by the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

The CODM considers the business from both
geographic and service perspective.

The Group has presented the following two
reportable segments.

(a)

Travel business: sales of air tickets and provision
of travel-related services.

Property investment business: receiving rental
streams from leasing office premises in Hong
Kong.

Segment results, assets and liabilities
The travel reportable operating segment
derives their revenue primarily from sales of air
tickets and provision of travel-related services.
Geographically, management considers the
performance of the travel business in North
America.

The property investment reportable operating
segment derives their revenue from leasing
office premises in Hong Kong.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEPEE (4B)

(CONTINUED)
MEE-BERER (B)

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (a)

(continued)

In accordance with HKFRS 8, segment
information disclosed in these consolidated
financial statements has been prepared in a
manner consistent with the information used
by the Group’s CODM for the purposes of
assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group's
CODM monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the
following basis:

Segment profit represents the profit from
each segment without allocation of corporate
administrative costs such as directors’
emoluments, share of results of associates and
joint ventures, loss/gain arising on change in fair
value of financial assets at FVTPL, impairment
loss recognised on intangible assets which are
allocated to corporate assets and corporate
finance costs. To arrive at reportable segment
profit, the management additionally provides
segment information concerning interest
income, finance costs and major non-cash
items such as depreciation, amortisation and
impairment losses derived from reportable
segments. Unallocated corporate income mainly
comprises amortisation on financial guarantee
contract, interest income, management fee
income from an associate and other sundry
income. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment. Taxation is not
allocated to reportable segments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities

(continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments.

The revenue from external parties reported to
the CODM is measured in a manner consistent
with that in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss.

All assets are allocated to reportable segments
other than amounts due from associates and
a joint venture, interests in associates and
joint ventures and financial assets at FVTPL.
Unallocated corporate assets mainly include part
of the property, plant and equipment as well
as intangible assets, together with cash and
cash equivalents of the central administration

companies.

All liabilities are allocated to reportable
segments other than corporate liabilities.
Unallocated corporate liabilities mainly include
financial guarantee contracts, bank loans, loan
from a director and controlling shareholder and
part of other payables borne by the central
administration companies.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TRERRMIEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEER (&)

(CONTINUED)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (a) PHEB - BEEREE (@)
(continued)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable RAEAFEERAAERETELZR
segments as provided to the Group’s CODM RERMEHEAEBREBETER
for the purposes of resource allocation and DEBA D FLE R S 5T D Bf R
assessment of segment performance for the Wz EBRENWT :

year is set out below:

Travel Property investment Total
M MERE o
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
ZECCE CZT-& B “EC-F Z¥CC§ B %
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETR BT BETR BT BETR BETT

Revenue from external customers ~ RESMIER ZKE R

and reportable segment revenue AT 2R BKE 112,139 147,856 2,639 3,274 114,778 151,130
Reportable segment profit/(loss) B ZRAERF/ (518 3,307 (1,654) (15,860) 13,667 (12,553) 12,013
Share of results of joint ventures ElEaErEEE 627 683
Share of results of associates =N ES (42,133) (48,654)
(Loss)/gain arising on change in fair value AT ERERIRZ

of financial assets at FVTPL HREEATEES

FrEEZ (B8) /W (174,113) 87,725
Impairment loss recognised on HRVEERIZABEE

intangible assets (8,529) (1,681)
Loss arising on disposal of financial assets tHE#ATERH

at V1ol EENEIRZ

HHREEFELZER - (143)
Unallocated corporate income KREEERA 2,527 915
Unallocated corporate expenses FPEEERS (39,234) (37,821)
Finance costs BIBRA (13,664) (8,178)

Consolidated (loss)/profit before IS (518) /aA

taxation (287,072) 4,859
Taxation RIE - _
Consolidated (loss)/profit for the year —~ AEELA (§518) /%7 (287,072) 4,859
Reportable segment assets BTERANEE 44,459 34,662 230,047 250,493 274,506 285,155
Unallocated corporate assets ROMEEEE
— Interests in associates RN NP5 535,404 547,052
~ Interests in joint ventures -REELEZER 7,950 7323
— Financial assets at FVTPL —RATERBREIIRZ

HHBEE 93,429 266,804
— Corporate assets —hEEE 359,868 282,49

1,211,157 1,388,830

Reportable segment liabilities BTERANEE 20,119 11,638 1,587 1,503 21,706 13,141

Unallocated corporate liabilities APECEER

- Corporate liabilities —hEER 530,086 368,044
551,792 381,185
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R B IRERMEE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Other segment information

6. DHEK (&)

(b) EfthEER

Travel Property investment ~ Other corporate entities Total
ii§id MERE HitibEEE Bt
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
“ECCE “T--F CZE-ZE “T--F CZBIZE “T--F ZE--F “T_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BT  BlETn BTz EETx BT BlETn BT BETx
Bank interest income BITRISRA Y] 48 - - 78 11 120 59
Interest income from financial ~ BATEREMEE
assets at FVTOC| Wik 2 B EE
ZRIEWA - - - - - 139 - 139
Fair value (oss)/gain on BRENEZ NTE
investment properties (BB /s - - (9,800) 8,100 - - (9,800) 8,100
Depreciation: e
— owned property, plant and -BEN%E BER
equipment B4 (343) (532) - - (11,623) (11,643) (11,966) (12,175)
- right-of-use assets —ERREE (633) (77 - - - (13) (633) (788)
(Allowance for)/reversal of TR E AR
allowance for expected credit ~ BHREEFHEZ
losses on trade receivables () /BERD (63) 652 - - - - (63) 652
Reversal of impairment loss/ NENEERSZ
(impairment loss) recognised  JR{EASEEE,/
on intangible assets (RfERSE) 2,799 (1,130) - - (8.529) (1,681) (5,730) (2,811)
(Write-down)/reversal of MEEE (iR) /
write-down of stock of WA
properties - (10,800) 500 - - (10,800) 500
Finance costs T (10) (17) - - (13,664) (8,178) (13,674) (8,195)
Additions to non-current assets*  REIERFEE 228 243 - - 44 462 m 705

* Additions to non-current assets only include the

additions to property, plant and equipment but
excluded right-of-use assets for both years.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEER (&)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Disaggregation of revenue () Wz
2022 2021
—E°HF —E=—
HK$"000 HK$'000

BT BETR

Revenue from contracts KERERTHNZINE :

with customers:
Recognised at a point in time  J*R —FF 25 T

Travel business: RIFZETS
Sales of air tickets THEME 102,599 145,957
Travel and related service TR 2% 52 /B A AR 75 B Ut AL

fee income 9,540 1,899

112,139 147,856

Revenue from other HihzgRREz Wz ©

sources:
Rental income FHEUWA 2,639 3,274
Total revenue W 48 %58 114,778 151,130
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DHWER (@)

(CONTINUED)

(d) Geographical information (d) HEHER
The following is an analysis of geographical MTFAROEERKRBINGE S
location of (i) the Group’'s revenue from ZWE ; R(NAEBEZIERE
external customers; and (i) the Group’s non- BEZHEMMAT TR Z
current assets. The geographical location of (& i B 518 (AR 75 = B o
customers refers to the location at which the REBEZIERBEEBRIEY
services were provided. The Group'’s non-current (2 - BERREBE -REYE &
assets included property, plant and equipment, FEEURRBE AR REGE
investment properties, intangible assets, EZ#EEo

interests in associates and joint ventures.

The geographical location of property, plant and ME--BBERZEUARKEY)
equipment and investment properties is based EZMEMBLTL T E BB E
on the physical location of the asset under ZEREMMAEE - BELE
consideration. In the case of intangible assets, it BECAUZERTEEED
is based on the location of operations to which o B AEE-NMBEN
these intangibles are allocated. In the case of BENEREELE R
interests in associates and joint ventures, it is BIUZEHME T REERE
based on the location of operations of such R B B A o

associates and joint ventures.

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
REMIER 2K ERBEE
At 31 December
K+ZB=+—H
2022 2021 2022 2021
g g% ZBE”_C BT —F

HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
ABTx BRI BERTn BRI

Hong Kong B

(place of domicile) (P 7E3) 2,639 3,274 368,589 398,685
Macau B - - 535,404 547,052
North America ItE 112,139 147,856 6,589 4,542
The People’s Republic of H1%E A R HHE

China (“PRC") (TehE)) - - 365 226

114,778 151,130 910,947 950,505

250 SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BB/EIZEKARAT)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEEN (B
(CONTINUED)
(e) Major customers (e) EEEXF
Revenue from customers arising from travel EAREBBUERI10% U 2K H
business segment who contribute over 10% IRFEEFEDE 2 F P W5
of the total revenue of the Group is set out as o
follows:
2022 2021
T F T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Customer A ZRA N/ARER* 85,040
Customer B =FB 58,709 N/A 43 3
@ The corresponding revenue did not contribute over * RIERIFEEZ FE R a1
10% of the total revenue of the Group for the REFAN 75 10% X _E o
respeci tive year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

7. REVENUE 7.

The principal activities of the Group are engaged in
the travel-related and property investment businesses.

Revenue represents sales of air tickets, service fee
income from provision of travel-related services
and rental income. The amount of each significant
category of revenue recognised in revenue during the
year is as follows:

W &

AEBZETBXZBHHULRREHERR
EYES A= ES R

W am F5 55 65 M 2 ~ SR R AR BE AR
BZRBEWARMBEZWA - F
R BEERKREANERZ T2
B ERAN T -

2022 2021
—E°HF —E=—
HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BETR

Revenue from contracts with KEEERITAZINE :

customers:
Recognised at a point in time R —FF R # rEE
Sales of air tickets HEWE 102,599 145,957
Travel and related service fee iR % 52 AE B AR 75 & U A
income 9,540 1,899
112,139 147,856
Revenue from other sources: Hthsk Rz Wz :
Rental income HEWA 2,639 3,274
114,778 151,130
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

OTHER REVENUE AND GAINS 8. Httm KA
2022 2021
== T —F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt EE BETT BT
Other revenue Hithzs
Bank interest income RTTH B WA 120 59
Interest income from financial R AFEREMEE
assets at FVTOCI W5 IR 2 B4 75
BEZHEBKA - 139
Government grants (note) BN RS (H752) 1,120 923
Management fee income RE—EEE QB2
from an associate BIEEWA 35(a) 1,085 -
Other income H s 3,118 3,043
5,443 4,164
Other gain Hthg A
Amortisation of financial MBS E RS A
guarantee contract 29 322 485
Total a5t 5,765 4,649
Note: For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group Wt  BE —_FE - —F+_H=+—HILEF
recognised government grants of approximately B REEERE 20198 HERK
HK$1,120,000 in respect of COVID-19-related subsidies FERG 1AL 2 BT A A A9 B 5 1,120,000
which are related to several subsidies schemes provided by TT A RN ZE AR & B
the Canada government and Hong Kong government to TP 2201973 4 17 & % B B T 22
support the enterprises which are severe disruption caused ZIREMIERZEFHEE (ZF
by the COVID-19 (2021: approximately HK$923,000 in Z—1F [ 201973 X IR & A A F A AL AT
respect of COVID-19-related subsidies which are related B18923,0005T 2 4 R NE KX EFTHL S
to several subsidies schemes provided by the Canada EZ2019RmEREEITEZ H%E
government to support the enterprises which are severe BTttt 2 & F 85+ 2l)

disruption caused by the COVID-19).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

9. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. BR#MAT (B518) i F
(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after priET (B518) &I B3k, Gt
charging/(crediting) as follows: A) FAIIER :

2022 2021
—E-TH BT —
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B3 sE AT T BT T
(a) Finance costs (a) BAFE R &=
Interest on bank loans IRITERZHE 9,567 5,690
Interest on lease liabilities HEaFEZHE 10 17
Interest on loan from a —HEERER
director and controlling BRRERZHE
shareholder 35(a) 4,097 2,488
13,674 8,195
(b) Staff costs (b) ET A
Salaries, wages and other e~ TERHEAM
benefits (including &H (B1E
directors’ emoluments) EEME) 21,082 20,032
Contributions to defined TR FGR IR
contribution retirement sl Z &
plan 844 693
21,926 20,725
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

(CONTINUED)

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after
charging/(crediting) as follows:

(continued)

9. BRMRAN (B518) iEF ()

BRiRAT (B518) A B2k, (B

A THIEE @

2022 2021
- - 3 —E=—
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 BET T BT T
(c) Other operating () HAE SR
expenses
Write-down/(reversal of EEA b
write-down) of stock of (Bfh 332 [2])
properties 20 10,800 (500)
Impairment loss MBI EERR
recognised on intangible Z 1B 1EFRE
assets, net 16 5,730 2,811
Allowance for/(reversal of B E Z AR
allowance for) expected EHTBHAE &
credit losses on trade BB
receivables () 63 (652)
16,593 1,659
(d) Other items (d) Hth1EH
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEMEN &
— audit services — 2R 750 750
— other services —HMARFS 280 380
Depreciation e
— owned property, plant —BEEYE R
and equipment et 11,966 12,175
— right-of-use assets —EREEE 633 788
Operating lease rentals REHERE
— short-term lease — ISR E 781 1,595
— low-value assets —BREEEE 70 89
Net exchange gain AR W 7R (461) (1,398)
Gain on disposal of HEME -BREK
property, plant and Bo4i: P sk
equipment - (297)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Z""‘A
N7y s

AT R RMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

10. TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss represents:

10. Rz E18

m&RZHIE

() RMiREHEmRZIRE

2022 2021

ZEZCZHE “ET—fF

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT BT T

Current tax BERATR IR - -
Deferred tax IEIERR IR - -
Tax charge MIEFMASZ - -
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% EBNNEBROBBEAFEMGE

(2021: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable
profit for the year. No provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax has been made for both years as the
Group has no assessable profits in Hong Kong.

Canadian subsidiaries are subject to Canadian
Corporate Income Tax which comprises federal
and provincial income taxes. The net federal
income tax is calculated at 15% (2021: 15%)
and the provincial income tax is calculated at
the rates prevailing in the relevant provinces.
No provision for Canadian Corporate Income
Tax has been made as the Group has unutilised
tax loss for the year ended 31 December 2022
(2021: no provision for has been made as
the Group has no assessable profit arising in
Canada).

PRC subsidiary is subject to PRC Enterprise
Income Tax at 25% (2021: 25%). No provision
for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been made
as the Group has no assessable profits arising in
the PRC for the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is
calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant
jurisdictions.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

10. TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED 10. RiFEEERZKRE (&)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense (b) HERAMEAHEZRIER
and accounting (loss)/profit at zHgst (518) afzEH
applicable tax rates: iR :

2022 2021
—_E__F =BT —
HK$’000 HK$°000

BETT ABT T

(Loss)/profit before taxation B2 AT (B518) & F (287,072) 4,859

National tax on (loss)profit BN B BRI af)
before tax, calculated at the ~ ZIREFE Z AT
tax rates applicable to profit ~ (&518) /aA] % &ERIE

in the countries concerned (40,420) 8,738
Tax effect of share of results of FE{LEAE ANBIEE Y

associates RIBRE (6,952) (8,028)
Tax effect of share of results of FEh G (XSS

joint ventures RIBZE 103 113
Tax effect of non-deductible ~ REJIRFEASZ 2 RIB

expense e 42,355 16,255
Tax effect of non-taxable BEGFRU S 2 RIE

revenue T2 (331) (19,818)
Tax effect of unrecognised tax FKFERIRIERIE 218

losses & 4,587 1,972
Utilisation of tax losses EANIBEIE (373) (151)
Unrecognised temporary REERERELR

differences 1,031 919
Tax expense for the year AEERBERE - —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 1. 25z
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section RIFEQBHMERIFE383(1NE A F (K
383(1) of the Company Ordinance, Part 2 of the BEENRER) RE &BEHNE
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits 622GE) F2E K2 LR FLUIRE
of Directors) Regulation (Chapter 622G of the laws of ZEEWNEEIWT :

Hong Kong) and the Listing Rules are as follows:

Salaries, allowance and other ~ Retirement benefit

Directors' fee benefits scheme contributions Total
ESfig i EMREMER BIVER B At
2022 2021 2022 2001 2022 2021 2022 2001
Z$ZF CZT-F CE¥IZf CEC-F ZEIZE TIT-F ZEIZE CEC-F
Name HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
# ATn  AETn  ARTn  EETn ARt AETn ARTn BT
Brecutive Directors Hi7EZE
Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny BER (2R
(Chairman) - - 864 864 18 18 882 882
Ma Ho Man, Hoffman BEX )
(Deputy Chairman) - - 588 588 18 18 606 606
Non-erecutive Director FHTEE
Choi Kin Pui, Russelle B 144 144 - - - - 144 144
Independent Non-executive Directors — BL 31722
Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann R 144 144 - - - - 144 144
Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose ¢ 144 144 - - - - 144 144
Chong Ming Yu BoH 144 144 - = - = 144 144
576 576 1,452 1452 36 36 2,064 2,064
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11. DIR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no
directors waived any emoluments and no emoluments were
paid by the Group to any of the directors as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

Director’s material interests in transaction, arrangement or
contract is stated as below:

Pursuant to an agreement dated 1 December 2008 made
between the Company and Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny,
being a Director and a controlling shareholder of the
Company (“Mr. Yeung”), Mr. Yeung provided a HK$200
million term loan facility to the Company with interest at
the prime rate quoted for Hong Kong dollars loans by The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited. The
principal amount of the loan facility was increased up to
HK$290 million on 14 April 2009. The Company paid the
interest of approximately HK$4,097,000 for the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: approximately HK$2,488,000) in
relation to this transaction. Other details of the transaction
are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Save for contracts amongst group companies and
the aforementioned transaction, no other significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts to which the
Company was a party and in which a director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end

of the year or at any time during the year.

e M RERME (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE_T__F+_B=t+—HILEE

". EFME (@

Mz -

(@)

(b)

BE—E - FER T —F+_H
=+—H EEFRELAMNE K
EEF I TE RS (TETME
TEBINA KXEFLF A FEFFZ
12 BLTEA BERL 1S -

BERXG RGP ZEAE
wESATF -

RIFBFZAGHEEF LG EREK
BEEESLE (ML) RZEE
NE+ZF—HTUZ 7% B4 E
[B] 7K 1\ Bl & #EE #5200,000,00055 2
BFHIBEAHME  #%5E LB EZRT
BERAGFEZETENRERF
Kt B R -EFAFLA+IIH -
BEAHEZ AL BIEE R GHENE
290,000,0005T - B2 —F_— —F+—
B=+—HIFFE XRFERIER
B3R B 4B 4,097,000 (—F
T —1F I AEHE0,488,000T) e X 5.2
H M B8 47 S IR N1 5328

BEBREHZEHUR LTS
Sh o KRB BT L R M F AL B
KFEAFEFEIAREN  MEE
RETEZLFZFREEEA En 2 E
ARG ZHREH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

12. SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS AND INDIVIDUALS
WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

(a) Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group, two (2021: two)
were executive Directors, whose emoluments
are disclosed in note 11. The emoluments of
the remaining three (2021: three) individuals,
included one (2021: two) senior management,
are as follows:

12. SR EEAEMNERES

AL

(a)

hEEHAL

AEBRLRSHATH W
H(ZTEZ—F . WmB) AH
TEZ HMSERME11
BoHfp=% (CE_—%:=
2) ANETEFREE—% (T
T—F I WR) aREEAE
HNS4EREEHTI W T -

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000

BEFT  BETR

Salaries, allowances and other #7s 285 K HMMEF]

benefits 1,847 2,036

Retirement benefit scheme BRIRBRFT B
contributions 54 50
1,901 2,086

The emoluments of the three (2021: three)
individuals with the highest emoluments are
within the following band:

(CEZ—F:.=%2)&

Z=% :
SMmATZBMENF T EE
[z

Number of individuals
A#
2022 2021
—E-HF —E %

Nil to HK$1,000,000 ZZF %1%1,000,0007T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

12. SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 12. SREBAEMERES
EMOLUMENTS AND INDIVIDUALS AL (@)
WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(b) Senior management of the Company (b) ERESHREEAR
The emoluments of the senior management of KABIEHREEBABZMEN
the Company are within the following band: FRHEERA -

Number of individuals
A#
2022 2021
—E-THE TEC—F

Nil to HK$1,000,000 T ZF 11,000,000 1 2
13. DIVIDENDS 13. iR B
No interim dividend was paid during the year (2021: FATEKGHFHARE (T2 Z—
nil). The Directors do not recommend any payment F ) EETEZNBEZZE
of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December —THF+B=1+—HILFEIRN
2022 (2021: nil). ERRBERE CE2EZ—F 18 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. 8% (B8) &
The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share RABRERELERER (BB
attributable to the owners of the Company is based BHTLRBUTEESE -

on the following data:

2022 2021
—EICHE B —fF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT AT IT
(Loss)/profit: (#548) i&#
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable Z<A TR R E(EAEE
to owners of the Company (B548) wA] (287,072) 4,859
2022 2021
—EZF T4
‘000 ‘000
Tig T
Number of shares: RIp &R :
Weighted average number of STEEREAR (BB
shares for the purpose of basic BH Z D InHE
(loss)/earnings per share EHE 4,926,491 4,926,491
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the years ended BE_ T FRIBET—HF+T
31 December 2022 and 2021 were the same as B=+T—HLEFE SK#E (&
the basic (loss)/earnings per share. There were no B BIEERESRER (BB)
potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding for both S BF R W E R REE AR E
years presented. BITEIZBEHEE B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TRERRMIEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - R E Bt B

Furniture,
fittings and Motor
Land and Leasehold office Motor yacht and Right-of-
buildings improvements  equipment vehicles  equipment use assets Total
HiRE
TREF HERE RMAERE RE  EfRRE EREEE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BETT AT BT BRI AT BT

Cost %

At 1 January 2021 R-B-—£-F—H 250,688 8,546 1,430 5,843 20,737 11,825 299,069
Additions RE - 55 247 403 - - 705
Disposals HE (13,825) (1,802) (104) (854) - (9,864) (26,449)
Exchange alignment ERHE 99 45 43 - - 25 212

At 31 December 2021 and RIB-—#

1 January 2022 +ZB=+—8%
—E-_F#-H-H 236,962 6,844 1,616 5,392 20,737 1,986 273,537
Additions RE - 73 199 - - 483 755
Written-off/disposal sy HE - (1,483) (29) - - (914) (2,426)
Exchange alignment ERAR (120 (88) (74) - - (95) 377)
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZ&+ZA=1+-H 236,842 5,346 1,712 5,392 20,737 1,460 271,489

Accumulated depreciation ~ REHiFE

At 1 January 2021 R-B-—£-F—H 3,987 118 469 4537 9,757 10,193 29,061
Charge for the year ERZH 7,506 1,755 264 507 2,143 788 12,963
Disposals HE (3,681) (1,802) (64) (854) - (9,864) (16,265)
Exchange alignment ERER 18 Y] 39 - - 4 103

At 31 December 2021 and RIBZ—#

1 January 2022 +ZA=+—-8k

—E-_F#-H-H 7,830 113 708 4,190 11,900 1121 25,862
Charge for the year FRZH 7,224 1,730 362 507 2,183 633 12,599
Written-off/disposal sy e - (632) (29) - - (914) (1,575)
Exchange alignment ERAR (12) (76) (60) - - (65) (213)
At 31 December 2022 RZB-Z&#+-A=+-AH 15,042 1,135 981 4,697 14,043 775 36,673
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZ&+-A=+-AH 221,800 4211 731 695 6,694 685 234,816
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+ZA=1+—H 229,132 6,731 908 1,202 8,837 865 247,675
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

15. MZE BB Rz (&)

At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
w? i
“EICF =BT 4
+ZB=+—8B +=A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Freehold land and building held ~ R&EHBLIIMIEIFE 2
outside Hong Kong KAFERE T M RIEF 1,843 2,002
Leasehold land and building REAFBEZHEELI K
held in Hong Kong BF 219,957 227,130
221,800 229,132

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
has pledged the leasehold land and building with
carrying amount of approximately HK$220.0 million
(2021: HK$227.1 million) to secure bank loans
granted to the Group (note 26).

Lease liabilities of approximately HK$724,000
(2021: approximately HK$920,000) are recognised
with related right-of-use assets of approximately
HK$685,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
approximately HK$865,000).

Details of total cash outflow of leases are set out in
the consolidated statement of cash flows.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
leases some properties as office. Lease contracts
were entered into for fixed term of one to two
years. Lease terms were negotiated on an individual
basis and contained a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period,
the Group applied the definition of a contract and
determined the period for which the contract was
enforceable.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

BE_Z__#+"-HA=+—H
LEFEE > AEBEIKFREEENS
#220,000,0007c (B - —F : &
#£227,100,0007T) 2 FBE T K 1&
FroEAARERERIBITERZIK
i (ffsE26) ©

R_E__HF#+"_B=+—H"B
MESRA B HET724,00070 (Z B —
F  #93E15920,0007T) 2 EAE
4B 685,000 (ZE - —
F 494 1865,0007T) Z HERAMEE A
REEE o

%ﬂ Eﬁﬁlﬁ&nugaa/]zgiﬂﬁ%z "'iF
HFREMER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. BB E
Crypto-
Trademark Client list currencies Total
i1 XRLE nEg% A%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  BMTR  BMTR  BETR
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2021 R_EZ—F
—A—H 26,468 7,399 - 33,867
Addition RE = - 10,131 10,131
Exchange alignment b2 A 165 46 46 257
At 31 December 2021 and R_E_—F
1 January 2022 +ZA=1t—Hk
T "#—A—H 26,633 7,445 10,177 44,255
Fxchange alignment fE R AR (1,508) (421) 14 (1,915)
At 31 December 2022 RZEZ_F
+-BA=+—H 25,125 7,024 10,191 42,340
Accumulated amortisation ~ B:HEERRERSE
and impairment losses
At 1 January 2021 R_BT—F
—A—H 24,004 7,399 - 31,403
Impairment loss (note 9(c)) RIERE (Hz9(c) 1,130 - 1,681 2,811
Exchange alignment fE R AR 135 46 5 186
At 31 December 2021 and R_E_—F
1 January 2022 +ZA=+—8k
S
—A—H 25,269 7,445 1,686 34,400
(Reversal of impairment loss)  (Bi{EE5#ER ) /
impairment loss (note 9(c)) RIEESE (79C) (2,799) - 8,529 5,730
Fxchange alignment BB R HRE (1,322) (421) (24) (1,767)
At 31 December 2022 RZIZE__&
+-R=+—H 21,148 7,024 10,191 38,363
Carrying amount fREE
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZHF
+ZB=+—-H 3,977 - - 3,977
At 31 December 2021 RIZBZ—4F
+ZA=+—H 1,364 - 8,491 9,855
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Trademark

The trademark named as “Jade Tours” is a well-
known travel agency brand registered in Canada.
The Directors assessed that the trademark is having
indefinite useful lives because the trademark was
expected to contribute to net cash inflow indefinitely
and can be renewed by the Group at minimal cost.

In accordance with HKAS 36, the Group completed
its annual impairment test for the trademark by
comparing its recoverable amount to its carrying
amount as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. The
Group has conducted a valuation of the trademark
based on the value in use calculations. With reference
to the valuations carried out by the Valuer, the
recoverable amount of the trademark is higher than
its carrying amount. The recoverable amount of
trademark was increased equivalent to approximately
HK$3,977,000 (2021: equivalent to approximately
HK$1,364,000). Therefore, reversal of impairment
loss equivalent to approximately HK$2,799,000 has
been recognised for the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: an impairment loss equivalent to
approximately HK$1,130,000 has been recognised).
The recognition of reversal of impairment loss is
mainly contributed by the increase in revenue in
profit forecast of the travel business in Canada.
Any adverse change in the assumptions used in the
calculation of the recoverable amount would result in
change in the amount of impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_Z_F+"RA=+—HIFE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 6. ELEE (8)

R

lJade Tours ) EEATEHIIEKRA
LEEMRERERE BN BEE
A EBHAEMIRESRAFRE I
AHAEBRUMAREZ A E
o WESRTEEEZ A ERER
BER

RIEEB YT ERFE3I65E AEH
BEER S FRITZ—
F+—HB=+—HzZAWKExE%
HHEHREEFLER BUSEREE
BZEERENR ~EBEBRE
FTREEFE A ZABERETH
Bo-2EGEMETZHE BIE
ZHAWblEEEREEE -BEZ
AWESREEBMERERNBE
3,977,000 (Z&E = —% : *EfﬁA
#)78151,364,0007T) oML BE
T _F+ZR=+— EJtEFE
FESRARE IR 4978 152,799,0007T 2 78
BEEBELD(CE-_—% . BBT
MERAE1,130 ooomz,nz@tiﬁ
18) Eﬁuumaéﬁaﬁff@zgj@m
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Trademark (continued)

The valuation of the trademark is based on the
relief-from-royalty method and uses cash flow
projections based on financial estimates covering a
five-year period, the expected sales deriving from the
trademark in the travel CGU and a pre-tax discount
rate of approximately 27% (2021: approximately
25%). The cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using a steady 3% (2021: 2%)
growth rate. This growth rate does not exceed the
long-term average growth rate for travel markets in
which the Group operates. The values assigned to
the above assumptions reflect past experience and
are consistent with management plans for focusing
operations in these markets. Management believes
that the assumption is reasonably achievable.

Client List

The Directors assessed that the client list is having 15
years of useful lives from the date of acquisition. The
carrying amount of the client list was fully impaired in
the year ended 31 December 2014. The recognition
of impairment loss is mainly contributed by the
increase in contributory charge of fixed assets.

Cryptocurrencies

In 2021, the Group purchased an aggregate of
approximately 23.4 units of Bitcoin, a cryptocurrency,
at an aggregate consideration of equivalent to
approximately HK$10.1 million on an open market
cryptocurrency exchange platform. The Directors
consider the economic lives of cryptocurrency are
indefinite as they lack of physical form and there
is no limit to their useful life. The Group accounts
for all cryptocurrencies held as indefinite-lived
intangible assets in accordance with HKAS 38
“Intangible Assets” and adopts the cost model for
the measurement. The cryptocurrencies are initially
recorded at cost and are subsequently remeasured
on the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, net of any impairment losses incurred since
acquisition.

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

6. BEZEE (B

iR (48)
EEZEERENEFEERES
FEE MIRARBRERFERZ
M dst - THEARBREREESE
BUzEmEZHERBKMFRAIRIR
KL27% (CEBE_—F : 8925%) 18
HZREREERET - BARF
HZREREARBRETEREI%
TR —F12%) HEHE BRI
R A BB A E B & P kil
Mz RIFEIERR . EilRER
ZHRAEERMBELE WHAS
BEEINZEMHRER 221
F-EEEEEZRZITGEER

ERHE

EXTMERREZRAEAEN
R BRI FE - ERREY
REERBE_Z—NF+_A
= t+—BHLEFEEEmRE-ED
REBREEEREBEEEE BN
S B e

mEas

R -5 XEBRARTS
2B EBRZFEBAGHEN
23 4Bl 2 NZEE LR 481
BREFNLB10,100,00075 F
ERA MEEBHR T EERE
e BRI BB E IR A >
EHEERKEFH AERRRBES
S EREI8E (ML EEI BIFE
ZRMENEEEARSIEERIPE
FEE MEBRAERZ M
BREBNTERAAR EBNE
B ISR R R R B A 30 Bk B WS L
REEZERRERBEMTZ-
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Cryptocurrencies (continued)

In accordance with HKAS 36, the Group completed
its annual impairment test for the cryptocurrencies by
comparing the carrying amount with the recoverable
amount as at 31 December 2022. The recoverable
amount is determined in fair value less cost of
disposal. The Group has a balance of equivalent
to approximately HK$8.5 million cryptocurrencies
deposited in cryptocurrency exchange FTX (“FTX")
at the beginning of the year. During the year, a fair
value loss on the Group's cryptocurrencies equivalent
to approximately HK$5,290,000 was recognised
immediately before the Incident (to be defined
hereinafter). As FTX group entities, including FTX, had
filed a voluntary petition for bankruptcy protection in
the USA on 11 November 2022 (the “Incident”), the
cryptocurrencies were unlikely to be withdrawn from
FTX and thus, a further impairment loss equivalent
to approximately HK$3,239,000 was recognised.
In this connection, a total impairment loss on the
Group's cryptocurrencies equivalent to approximately
HK$8,529,000 was recognised for the year ended 31
December 2022. As at 31 December 2021, the fair
value was determined based on the prevailing market
prices quoted in an opening cryptocurrency exchange
platform.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 6. ELEE (8)

mEsg% (48)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. KEWZE
Fair value HK$'000
ATE BT
At 1 January 2021 N _ZE_—F—H—H 130,500
Increase in fair value recognised in the RiFEBmRAER 2 AT EE
consolidated statement of profit or loss 8,100

At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R_E_—F+_A=+—H&

2 F—HF—H 138,600

Decrease in fair value recognised in the RiFEBmikNER 2 A FERLD

consolidated statement of profit or loss (9,800)
At 31 December 2022 R-_2__f+”"H=+—H 128,800
A fair value loss on the investment properties of B#E_ T _F+"A=+—HI1t
approximately HK$9,800,000 was recognised in FE REMEZ AFEEBELSS
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the 9,800,000t N BB m RN &
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: fair value RBCE—F REYMWEZRTF
gain on the investment properties of approximately BEWm 4 & 18,100,0007T) KB
HK$8,100,000). The direct operating expense from KREVEZBEREKERXXNAE
investment properties is amounting to approximately #306,0007T (ZZEZ—4F 9B
HK$306,000 (2021: approximately HK$313,000) and 313,0007T) ' MKEREWE A
the rental income generated from the investment FWALNAE2,639,0007T (ZF
properties is approximately HK$2,639,000 (2021: Z—%F 1 £978%83,274,0007T) ©

approximately HK$3,274,000).
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(CONTINUED)

The Group's properties interest held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purpose are measured using the fair value model
and are classified and accounted for investment
properties. The fair value of the investment properties
for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021
have been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried
out on the respective dates by the Valuers who have
appropriate qualification and recent experience in
the valuation of similar properties in the relevant
locations. The management works closely with
the Valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to model. The management
reports the valuation report and findings to
the Directors half yearly to explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value of the investment
properties. The highest and best use of the
investment properties are its current use in estimating
the fair value of the properties.

The fair value of investment properties located in
Hong Kong is determined using combination of
income capitalisation method and direct comparison
method (2021: combination of income capitalization
method and direct comparison method) by reference
to recent sales price of comparable properties on a
price per saleable square foot basis and rental value
per saleable square foot.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
investment properties were classified as level 3 under
the fair value hierarchy (2021: level 3). There were
no transfers into or out of level 1, 2 and 3 during the
year.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out the fair value hierarchy levels as of the
date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transfer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_Z_F+"RA=+—HIFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. I BEYE (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

17. REYE (@)

(CONTINUED)
The following table illustrates the fair value TRELAERKREMEZ ATE
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s investment STEEAR
properties:
Fair value at
31 December Fair value Significant Range or
Description 2022 Valuation technique hierarchy unobservable inputs  weighted average
REZZ&
+-BA=+-H
it ZATE fhERE ATEER EXTURZBAAYE HEIMETH
HK$'000
BETT
Office No. 1001A, 49,300 Income capitalisation Level 3 Estimated price per HK$36,044 to HK$47,204
10th Floor, Tower 1, method and direct saleable square foot
Admiralty Centre comparison method
BEROE10E BABRERER F=H A RERERE  BUE36,0047E B 47,2047
1001ASEHIAE 97 B
Capitalisation rate 1.6%
B
Monthly rental rate per HK$59
saleable square foot
STAREAERAE BHESIT
Office No. 1004B, 79,500  Income capitalisation Level 3 Estimated price per HK$32,836 to HK$43,003
10th Floor, Tower 1, method and direct saleable square foot
Admiralty Centre comparison method
BEROIE10E BABRERER F=H Gt FARERERE HB1E32,836TEH 143,003
1004BSEHIAE 97 B
Capitalisation rate 1.6%
B
Monthly rental rate per HK$54
saleable square foot
STAREAERAE BT
128,800
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

17. REYE (@)

(CONTINUED)
Fair value at
31 December Fair value Significant Range or
Description 2021 Valuation technique hierarchy unobservable inputs weighted average
RZIE-—&
+ZBA=+—H
i ZRTE  fEERE ATEER EXTUBZEBAYE HEIMETH
HK$'000
BT
Office No. 1001A, 53,000  Income capitalisation Level 3 Estimated price per HK$45,848 to HK$46,367
10th Floor, Tower 1, method and direct saleable square foot
Admiralty Centre comparison method
BEFOIE02 WABRIEER B BE=M BT ARBRAEE  Hl545,848TEH 46,3670
1001ASRIR A LEBUE Bt
Capitalisation rate 1.5%
BAEX
Monthly rental rate per ~ HK$57
saleable square foot
BYFREAEBRAMR BT
Office No. 10048, 85,600  Income capitalisation Level 3 Estimated price per HK$41,776 to HK$42,216
10th Floor, Tower 1, method and direct saleable square foot
Admiralty Centre comparison method
BEFRLIE0E WABRIEERE#H E=M 8T AREREE A4, 77602 H42,2167T
1004BSRIFAZE LEBUE Bt
Capitalisation rate 1.5%
BAEX
Monthly rental rate per ~ HK$52
saleable square foot
BYFREAEBRAMR B2
138,600
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the valuations R_E__Fr_EBE_—F+_1

of investment properties were based on either the
income capitalisation method which capitalises the
rent receivables from the existing tenancies and the
potential reversionary market rent of the properties
or direct comparison method by reference to
comparable market transactions.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(CONTINUED)

A significant increase/(decrease) in estimated rental
value per saleable square foot in isolation would
result in a significantly higher/(lower) fair value of
the investment properties. A significant increase/
(decrease) in the capitalisation rate in isolation would
result in a significantly lower/(higher) fair value of the
investment properties.

A significant increase/(decrease) in selling price
per saleable square foot in isolation would result
in significantly higher/(lower) fair value of the
investment properties.

The Directors believe that any possible changes in
input values would not cause significant change in
fair value of the investment properties.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
had pledged all (2021: all) of the investment
properties with carrying amount of approximately
HK$128.8 million (2021: approximately HK$138.6
million) to secure bank loans granted to the Group
(note 26).

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

17. REYE (@)

Lt T REFERECEEER
BAREEM, (R BLREYE
ZRFEKRBEA (FME) ~EX
fEXBBEAEIEM (B &2
REMEZATFERETRE (L
Ft) o

BYHREABRBEREBARBIE
m/ (R E<REMEZATE
RigEF, (FF&) o

EERE BANE E TR
BT EHREN LS AT EER
EPS D

BHE_Z__F#+"“A=+—H1t
FE AEBECIKBREAENBE
128,800,0007C (ZE - —F : 4978
#138,600,0007T) ZFiE (Z“EE=—
F.MB REVE FALERE
RIRTTERZIEH S (fzE26) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

18. MEHERF 2w

7

At At

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

" "

—E-= s

+-B=+—H +Z-A=1+—H

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

B 5E BT T AT

Deemed capital contribution ~ fREEAHEH (b) 103,200 103,200

Goodwill S (© 19,409 19,409

Share of results of associate L= A %S 45,291 87,424

167,900 210,033

Amounts due from associates  FE U B = A B R0 IE (d), 35 367,504 337,019
Amounts shown under EREEERY I REEE

non-current assets 535,404 547,052
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18.

(CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interests
in associates recognised in the consolidated financial

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

REE ATz #Em (8)

EXBI M BER ARG GRS
WARPPTERNBE AR Z R mR
EEZHEK:

statements:
At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
" iy
et 2 -
+-—B=+—H +—B=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BT T
Net liabilities of the associates e s adERE (398,768) (312,783)
Proportion of the Group’s NEEZ R LA
ownership interests 49% 49%
Share of net liabilities of the it = NI =K =P =]
associates (195,396) (153,263)
Goodwill EES 19,409 19,409
Effect of fair value adjustments at UINEERF AT EHE
acquisition wE 240,687 240,687
Deemed capital contribution BRIEEAHE 103,200 103,200
Amounts due from associates & W B = A B R IE
(note 35) (H1&235) 367,504 337,019
535,404 547,052
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REtE ATz #xE (B)
(CONTINUED)
(a) The following list contains only the particulars (a) TREHIHAEREENE

of associates, all of which are unlisted corporate
entities, which principally affected the results or
assets of the Group:

EBRNIEXEZHMEATZ
HB REMEATEIARIE
EHEANEER -

Proportion of ownership interests

BEREERLLH
Particulars of
Place of issued and Group's Held
incorporation/  paid up effective by the Held by a  Principal
Name of associate operations share capital interests ~ Company  subsidiary  activity
AR, BETR TEE HEAH H—F
BERRRE EEME BRREHE BT BB MEBRRARE IEXE
% % %
Pier 16 - Property Development ~ Macau 100,000 shares of 49 - 49 Property holding
Limited ("Pier 16 - Property MOP100 each
Development”) (note)
TOBNEERRABRAT B 100,000 8 REE ESEE)
(HRMEER) (Wz2) 1008FI 2 R

Note: As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, Pier 16 —
Property Development held the equity interests of the
following companies with the details as below:

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

Kzt R B R -F - —4F
+ZA=+—H A+ EE
BIFHE TH| 2B R #1540
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18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(CONTINUED)

(a) The following list contains only the particulars
of associates, all of which are unlisted corporate
entities, which principally affected the results or

(b)

(9]

assets of the Group: (continued)

Particulars of

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

18. REVE QAT 2 m (48)

(a) TREFIEHEEFEXRENSE
EBREEXEZMEATZ
HB REME AT EERIF
EWEABRE (@

Place of issued and Proportion of effective
incorporation/ paid up interests held by Pier 16 -
Name of associate operations share capital Property Development Principal activity
AL R+ ENERRERE
MEAT R e BETRBRRAFHE BRI TERH
2022 2021
kS ZEI-fF
% %
Pier 16 — Entertainment ~ Macau 2 shares of MOP24,000 100 100 Provision of
Group Corporation and MOP1,000 management
Limited respectively services for casino
operations
TNAREEEERAT HF 2/ Rl EfE24,000 RUEREZEEL
RPITCR1,0008 M 7T EERH
Z B 1p
Pier 16 — Management Macau 2 shares of MOP24,000 100 100 Hotel operations
Limited and MOP1,000
respectively
TVEEEARAR R 2882 5 EE24,000 BEEE
APITCR1,0008 M 7T
Z B1p
The deemed capital contribution is referenced (b) RIFEAHEIELAERMBIE
to the financial guarantee contract (note 29) NEIREZMBIEFRELN (M
granted by the Group to the associates. 5%29) ©
Goodwill (0 M8

Because goodwill is included in the carrying
amount of the interests in associates and is
not separately recognised, it is not tested
for impairment separately by applying the
requirements for impairment testing in HKAS
36. Instead, the entire carrying amount of the
interests in associates is tested for impairment as
set out in note 18(d) below.

AR EEINARBE QAR 2
mZ MREE > WERILES
Bl SR A B 5 #5536
SRR BRI IR EEITIE LR
B RS o 28T > S0 T SRy 5
18(d)FF & IR E AT 2 m
ZIREEEREEZAER
A, °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

(CONTINUED)

(d) The amounts due from associates are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms
of repayment. Their carrying amounts are not
materially different from their fair value.

The Group completed its annual impairment
test for interests in associates by comparing the
recoverable amount of interests in associates
to its carrying amount as at 31 December
2022 and 2021. The Group has engaged the
Valuer to carry out a valuation of the interests
in associates as at 31 December 2022 based
on the value in use calculations. This valuation
uses cash flow projections based on financial
estimates covering a ten-year period, and a pre-
tax discount rate of approximately 7.4% (2021:
approximately 7.1%). The cash flows beyond
the above mentioned period are extrapolated
using a steady 2.2% (2021: 2.5%) growth rate
for the casino and hotel industries in which are
operated by associates. The values assigned to
the above assumptions reflect past experience
and are consistent with management plans
for focusing operations in these markets.
Management believes that the assumption is

reasonably achievable.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

7

18. REVE QAT 2 m (48)

(d) FEUERE AT RIBA T

RERLEETEER - %F
MEZREEEA T ETES
RER-

NEBBERBE R B 2
N _E T HFERE—

+ZB=+—RBzoWE&EE
BARMEEELL 8 #BLUSER Y
REE Bz R FERE
B o AEBEREMGEMME
BERABESEREART
T _F+"B=+—HZRK
BENBZHERETHE 2
THEFERRBRETFHRZ
R s AR BRI AT BG IR E A
7.4% (ZB-_—F 1 87.1%)
BHZBEERETANEIT B
B R IR RER)RA
B N B P AR IR %33 R
[EEZEBEEBREER22% (ZTF
T—F125%) #EHE LR
RZIEREBEE KRB ELER:
THREEBEINZEMSEE
BB -EEEMREZ
RERAIESESE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

(CONTINUED)

(e) The following is summary of aggregate amounts
of assets, liabilities, revenue, and results of the

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

18. R E QB 2 #Em (48)

(e) *&EBBMEATNZEE &
ERE W E S EER S Fug il

Group's associates: T

At At

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

iy i

—g-= —E-—&

+ZRA=+—H t=-RA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BB BT IT

Non-current assets ERBEE 608,314 623,986
Current assets MENEE 37,359 78,665
Current liabilities piE A=K (296,522) (326,292)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (747,919) (689,142)
Net liabilities BERE (398,768) (312,783)
2022 2021

HK$000 HK$'000

BT BIEF T

Revenue & 204,961 220,111
Other revenue and gains H U e B WA 11,987 11,199
Loss for the year REEEIE (85,985) (99,294)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19. REETEZ#ELS

At At

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

iy ®

—E-C B

+-A=+—H +-B=+—H

HKS$'000 HK$'000

AT T BT

Share of net assets R E EFE 6,180 5,553

Amount due from a joint venture ~ EW—RBI&EBERIE

(note 35) (H1a235) 8,970 8,970
15,150 14,523
Less: Recognised of impairment loss  J& : FESR B {E K518 (7.200) (7,200)
7,950 7,323
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19.

(CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interests
in a joint venture recognised in the consolidated

financial statements:

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

tEERREZ#ED (&)

EXBI M BER ARG GRS
WRPAAEINSGEEEZRIEIR
EEZHEK:

At At

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

i 7

T E TET—F

+ZB=+—H +ZA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT

Net assets of the joint venture BErEBEESE 19,104 17,536

Less: Non-controlling interests B IR (6,745) (6,431)
Net assets attributable to owners of SETEKRBEEEE

joint venture A 12,359 11,105

Proportion of the Group’s ownership 7<% B =~ ¥ 75 #£ 1 25 EE A5

interests 50% 50%
Share of net assets of the e ECEESETFE

joint venture 6,180 5,553
Amount due from a joint venture ~ FEUWN—M] & & B ERIE

(note 35) (B75£35) 8,970 8,970

Less: Recognised of impairment loss & : FESR R {E K518 (7,200) (7,200)

7,950 7,323
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

(a) Details of the Group’s interests in the
joint ventures are as follows:

19. REEEFEZEm (&)

(a) BEENAB LR MR
BT

Form of Particulars of Group's
business Place of issued and paid effective  Principal
Name of joint venture  structure incorporation up share capital interests  activity
BERITRAR R FEH
BECELE £BrEn Smmutds  FE BREDZ IEEH
%
Surplus Win Enterprises Incorporated BV 2 shares of USD1 50  Investment
Limited (note) each holding
REBETEERRAE Wit =B REREZEE 2REREEIER REER
Z i 1h

Note: As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, Surplus Win
Enterprises Limited held 80% effective interests in
Double Diamond International Limited (”“Double
Diamond”, a company incorporated in the BVI with
limited liability). The principal activity of Double
Diamond is pier operation in Macau.

(b) Aggregate financial information of the
joint ventures that is not individually

Wi R FR T —4F
+ZHA=+—H BELX*F
RAF#FADouble Diamond
International Limited (" Double
Diamond » — BT 54 22 /8 ik K EE
B2 BRLE) 280%
B[ 1# 7 o Double Diamond#+ -2
TEBPTE BN T o

(b) ERLEAFRERZEEEE
Z AR BRI

material:

At At

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

iy IS

—E-= BT —F

+-BA=+—H8 +=BA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

AT T BT IT

Non-current assets FERBEE 29,293 29,293
Current assets RENE E 8,270 6,632
Current liabilities mENEE (18,459) (18,389)
Net assets BEEFE 19,104 17,536
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(CONTINUED)

(b) Aggregate financial information of the
joint ventures that is not individually

material: (continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

19. REEEEZHEm (&)

(b) ERLEAFAERZEEEE
ZMBERR ()

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Revenue & 1,987 1,988
Expenses sz (419) (281)
Profit before taxation BRI AR F] 1,568 1,707
Taxation =] - _
Profit for the year NEEREF 1,568 1,707

The above amounts of assets and liabilities

tHEERERSEREUATS

include the following: 8¢
At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
iy A
—E-= —E- &
+ZA=+—B +-A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Cash and cash equivalents RERIFEEEEEB 7,912 6,272
Amounts due to shareholders — FE{T i& B 7R 1E (17,940) (17,940)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 3R 283



284

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19. i?
(CONTINUED)
(c) The amount due from a joint venture is (c)

unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms
of repayment.

(d) The Group has advanced HK$12 million to (d)
the joint venture to finance the acquisition of
certain assets. In the opinion of the Directors,
the Group will not demand for repayment
within twelve months from the end of the
reporting period and is therefore classified as
non-current assets.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying
amount of amount due from a joint venture
was approximately HK$9.0 million (2021:
approximately HK$9.0 million).

As at 31 December 2022, the accumulated
impairment loss of the interest in a joint
ventures was approximately HK$7.2 million
(2021: approximately HK$7.2 million), which
is considered to be adequate as there are no
indication for further impairment (2021: nil).

BEREZHED (B)

BR—HEaEEERERER
1 S B s 3t B [ T 2B R o

FEEDREE DERTBIEE
12,000,00070 AW EE T &
ERHES -BERA K&
B g ERPABREHRE
+ZEBEANER WEFZE
BRDBEAERBEE-

RZEZZTHF+ZA=+—
HrEK—HBaEgtERE
Z BREEAY % £ 1%9,000,000
T (ZE2EZ—F B
9,000,0007T) ©

RZEZZHF+ZA=+—
B ReagbtxrERz Rt
BB R 1EA A 7817,200,000
T (ZE2EZ—F B
7,200,0007%) ° R I SR EF R
BTRRE—TIELRE B
BARH (CE_—F 8-

20. STOCK OF PROPERTIES 20. MERES
HK$'000
BETT
At 1 January 2021 Ao —E—F—H 110,900
Reversal of write-down of stock of properties #2377 S #fs B2l (575£9(c))

(note 9(c)) 500

At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 B —F+"H=+—H
E_E__F—H—H 111,400
Write-down of stock of properties (note 9(c) ¥IZEFEMR (#15£9()) (10,800)
At 31 December 2022 RIE-Hf+"H=+—H 100,600
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

20. STOCK OF PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 20.

21.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
had pledged one of its stock of properties with a
carrying amount approximately of HK$86.1 million
(2021: approximately HK$95.3 million) to secure the
bank loans granted to the Group (note 26).

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

MEEFE (&)

ReEE_Z2-__F#+=-H=+—H
IEFEE  AEBBIRF—IBRES
RB4Y 7475 1586,100,00070 (- —
F | #9788£95,300,0007T) 2 ¥ F
5 FATERERNBRTERZ
HR R (EE26) ©

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. RN E 5 AR B Hfth FE IR
B
At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
iy ®
—E-= -
+ZRA=+—H t=-RA=+—H
HKS$'000 HK$'000
BB BT
Trade receivables FEUN & 57 BR =X 10,796 7,149
Less: Allowance for expected B TRREEREBEBE
credit losses (149) (2,243)
10,647 4,906
Other receivables HpE U ER =0 870 901
Trade and other receivables e B 5 BR = R H Ath FE UK
BRR 11,517 5,807
Prepayment and deposits TERRIB AR & 6,842 4,145
18,359 9,952

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to

be recovered within one year.

Including in trade receivables, the lease receivables
of approximately HK$407,000 (2021: approximately
HK$203,000) arise from properties rental income.

P A FE & 5 BR AU ELAth i U BR 7R
TRHAR —F k(e -

BB Z RN B ER Y EET I

A2 FEWFE &4 781407,0007T (Z
T —4F | 4971203,0007T) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

Aging analysis

Included in trade and other receivables, the aging
analysis for trade receivables, based on the due date
and net of allowance for expected credit losses, is as

21. RIS E 5 IR B H R Uk

ARTX (48)

BRGSO AR

BEERIWE Z R A H MR UER
M EUE Z AR (R EIAI R &40
RIEMEEBEZEE) ZRED

follows: Mo
At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
i iy
—EBCHF B —F
+-A=+—B +-A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Current EPHA 10,152 3,498
31 to 60 days 31E60H 35 552
61 to 90 days 61290H 460 135
Over 90 days #84890H - 721
10,647 4,906

The Group normally allows an average credit period
of 30 days to customers of travel business (2021:
average credit period of 30 days). For the customers
of property investment business, no credit period was
granted.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there

was no recent history of default.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in note 4(b).

286 SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BB{EIZEKAR/AT)
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23.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

22. AFERE

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

m 5l Bk 2 BA

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS HEE
At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
iy IS
—E-C _E
+-BA=+—H8 +=BA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BT
Listed equity securities in the USA R ERE LS ASE 93,429 266,804
Analysed for reporting MRS BEIEH D :
purposes as:
— Current assets —REEE 93,429 266,804

The fair value of the listed securities is determined
based on the closing prices quoted in active market in
the USA.

RESTRICTED/PLEDGED BANK
DEPOSITS

The Group released the pledged bank deposits
during the year. For the year ended 31 December
2021, the amounts are pledged to secure certain
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 37).
The pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest rate of
approximately 0.30% to 1.15% per annum.

As at 31 December 2022, bank balance of
approximately HK$549,000 (2021: nil) are restricted
as banking facilities for the operations of the Group.

RS2 RATFED RN EEEE
MIGARZ N EEE

23. Z[R#BIEWIRITER

AEBRFEFANRFRERFRTE
MoBE_E-_—F+H=+—
HIEFE > ZERBEFIRE
MEEBRFAER 2 ETRITHE
(M95E37) - ZZEEIEFRITER
REEEFZEL0.30%FE1.15%5t
Ho

é:v::EJr B=+—H" 1R
THEERAY A 549,000 (ZE - —
Eiﬂ)%&BE%JﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁlM Elprdic)
TRRE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24. REKRIRELEIER

R RIRITAEER

Cash and bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents in the 4 &SRR K
ReEngXRzRER

consolidated statements of
financial position and cash flows IB42E1EE

At At

31 December 31 December
2022 2021

" iy

—ECHE B
+-A=+—H +=-BA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
147,273 49,611
147,273 49,611

Deposits with banks carry interest at market rates
which is approximately 0.001% to 3.5% per annum
for current year (2021: approximately 0.001% to
0.35% per annum).

Included in cash and cash equivalents as at 31
December 2022, there has an amount denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB") of approximately RMB267,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$307,000)
(2021: approximately RMB40,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$49,000)). Remittance of RMB out
of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed
by the PRC government.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24. REKRIREEFEEE (@)
(CONTINUED)
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing MEEESFMELEZBEHER
activities:
Interest Loan from
payables a director and
(included in Bank Lease controlling
other payables) loans liabilities shareholder Total
BRI S —REER
GrAEA BRRR
FE{IF8) RITEM HE&B &R At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BT BT BT BT
(note 26) (note 27) (note 28)
(Hi3k26) (izk27) (Hi3828)
At 1 January 2021 R-E_—£-A-H 199 302,500 1,684 60,000 364,383
Changes in financing cash ~ RiEREHELE
flows:
Repayment of oan from a BE—LESRERRE
director and controlling &%
shareholder - - - (50,000) (50,000)
Loan from a director and —REERERREER
controlling shareholder - - - 50,000 50,000
Payment of lease rentals TRfAERE - - (802) - (802)
Interest paid BRFE (8,027) = = - (8,027)
Total changes in financing MERSRELHAE
cash flows (8,027) - (802) - (8,829)
Other changes: Hitrgg) .
Finance costs recognised BB BMA (129a)
(note 9(a)) 8,178 - 17 - 8,195
Exchange alignment ERHE - - 21 - 21
Total other changes HihEEi8a 8,178 - 38 - 8216
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities: (continued)

24. HERREEFEER (&)

MELTFFIELEZBEHER (B

Interest Loan from
payables a director and
(included in Bank Lease controlling
other payables) loans liabilities  shareholder Total
S —REER
(Gt AHf BRER
FEfIIE) RITEM HEaf B B3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
BT BT BETR BT BT
(note 26) (note 27) (note 28)
(KtsF26) (Hrsk27) (fff3k28)
At 31 December 2021 and BB
At 1 January 2022 +ZA=1+-8k
R_E__F—-F—H 350 302,500 920 60,000 363,770
Changes in financing MERERELE .

cash flows:

New bank loans raised MEESRTER - 10,000 - - 10,000
Repayment of loan from a BE—LESRERRE

director and controling &

shareholder - - - (86,000) (86,000)
Loan from a director and —HEERERREER

controlling shareholder - - - 242,000 242,000
Payment of lease rentals TRfAERE - - (657) - (657)
Interest paid BRFE (13,520) - - - (13,520)
Total changes in financing MERSRELHAE

cash flows (13,520) 10,000 (657) 156,000 151,823
Other changes: Hitrgg) .

New leases entered MAE - - 483 - 483
Finance costs recognised ERBHABRAE (17293)

(note 9(a) 13,664 - 10 - 13,674
Exchange alignment ERHEE - - (32) - (32)
Total other changes Hitt 28185 13,664 - 461 - 14,125
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZE

+-B=+-H 494 312,500 724 216,000 529,718
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. BB SR R EMER

BRFX

At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
i IS
—E-C “BET—F
+=ZB=+—H +=ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Trade payables FE{T B Z AR 13,462 5,148
Accrued charges and other payables f&5t & 3 K B FE (FBR X 8,945 12,134
22,407 17,282

Aging analysis ERES 2

BEERMNEZ R HMEMER
M BB SRR ZEHA) ~

Included in trade and other payables, the aging
analysis of trade payables, based on the due date, is

as follows: IRE DT -
At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
iy IS
—E-— —E—F
+-HA=+—H8 +=-B=+—4H
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BT 5T
Current BNEA 12,483 3,587
31 to 60 days 31£E60H 398 95
61 to 90 days 61290H 134 68
Over 90 days #84890H 447 1,398
13,462 5,148
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

26. BANK LOANS 26. $RITEM

At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
i i
—ECHE 4
+-—A=+—H8 +=-B=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BT
Bank loans, secured BEMBIRITER 312,500 302,500
Carrying amount repayable: AR T HAEEE
AREE -
On demand or within one year BERH—FN 312,500 302,500
Less: Amount shown under current 38 : JREW B &Y~ 28
liabilities (312,500) (302,500)
Amounts shown under non-current JE B & &5
liabilities - -
As at 31 December 2022, the Group had pledged all W_E__F+_HA=+—H"=XK

of its investment properties (note 17), the leasehold
land and building (note 15) as well as one of its stock
of properties (note 20) (2021: all of its investment
properties, leasehold land and building as well as one
of its stock of properties) to secure the bank loans
granted to the Group. The bank loans are carrying an
interest rate at HIBOR plus 1.7% to 2.0% per annum
(2021: 1.7% to 1.75% per annum). The weighted
average effective interest rate on the bank loans was
approximately 3.3% per annum for the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: approximately 1.9% per
annum).

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

%lE?&%ﬁﬂEFﬁ*ﬂ‘#ﬁ%ﬁ%% (B =%
17) ~HEE M REF FEEE15) U

—IE%%@ (Bf¥5£20) (_7
“—F . HmEREYMX -ME
MRIEFUR—BYEEFS) ’T’F#i:;
AREBERZBTERZEFER
IRITERZEARITRERENE
MEIT%ZE20% (CTE_—F F
FE1T%E1.75%) st R -HE_Z
T _HF+A=+—HILEFE>
IRITERZMEFHERFENE
HAE33% (CEZ—F  FHERY
1.9%) o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27. HE&E

The Group's lease liabilities arise from lease properties
in Canada and PRC for fixed term of one to three
years. Interest rates underlying the leases are fixed at
respective contract rates from 2.95% to 4.93% per
annum (2021: 2.95% to 4.75% per annum).

At 31 December 2022, the Group had lease liabilities
repayable as follows:

AREBZHAEEELKEMNEARF
BEFEHA—ZE=-FE2HEY
X -HEZHEXEBETEABESHNF
KEF2.95%F4.93% (ZFE_—
F I EFE2.95%F4.75%) ©

KRB _F+"A=+—H'=K
EEEREEZHAEERNT

At 31 December 2022 At 31 December 2021
RZEZZHE+ZA=+—-H RIZT—F+ZF=1+—H
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
REHRE REHE REHE REHE
TRRE ETEE] UMIRE Nt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT BETT
Within 1 year —ER 554 562 584 590
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMEAN 170 172 336 337
724 734 920 927
Less: total future interest expenses A : ARIA| 2R 4858 (10) )
Present value of lease liabilities HESERE

724 920
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

27. LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 27. HE&E (@)
Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies MT5E8HEZHEERESHW
are set out below: :

At At

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

i i

—E-C —EFET—F

+ZB=+—H +=A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT

CAD o 434 807
RMB AR 290 113
724 920
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

28. LOAN FROM A DIRECTOR AND

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

28. —HEFRIERIKRERM

At At

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

iy S

—E-= BT

+-A=+—H +=-BA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

AT BT

Loan from Mr. Yeung BhREER 216,000 60,000

On 1 December 2008, Mr. Yeung provided a HK$200
million term loan facility to the Company which is
unsecured and charged with interest at the prime
rate quoted for Hong Kong dollars loans by The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited. The principal amount of the loan facility was
increased up to HK$290 million on 14 April 2009
(the “Revised Mr. Yeung's Loan Facility”) and the
final repayment date of the loan and all other sums
owing to Mr. Yeung under the Revised Mr. Yeung's
Loan Facility was further extended from 31 October
2022 to 31 October 2024 by a supplemental letter of
agreement dated 30 September 2021.

In the opinion of the Directors, the borrowing of the
said loan from Mr. Yeung was for the benefit of the
Company and on normal commercial terms where no
security over the assets of the Company was granted.

R_EENE+_B—H#
TEBRXLBIREAEHBIE
200,000,000t EHRE AR E » %
EXRMEAEIRE BREBLE
EEIRITHERABFMBZBTER
REBAEFE-R_EENFMHE
B+HUBE  ZERMEZALLHE
1% 2= 3 #£290,000,0007T (MAE &1
TEERRE)) MmEBBAEEAT
T _—FNBA=Z+HZWEHTR
B RIBFIBEEETRMEEBE TN Z
BREFIBERGIE 2 HMthRRIE
JEREBEERAHBR_ZE-__F+A3
—t+—HE—FTEEE T _NF
+BA=+—H-

EERR LB REERETZ
BENEERAB M HIE—K&
BB EARET L BEARBEHER Y
EERIR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

29. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT MBIEREN

At At

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

i i

—ECHE B

+-A=+—H +=-BA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BB BT

Carrying amount REE

At the beginning of the year REH] 483 968
Amortisation for the year (note 8) Z<EE#EH (#7528) (322) (485)
At the end of the year RER 161 483
Current liabilities mENEaE 161 322
Non-current liabilities FEREE - 161
161 483

In 2017, the Company gave a corporate guarantee
(the "Guarantee”) to a bank in respect of the loan
facilities granted to Pier 16 — Property Development
(the “Loan Facilities”). The maximum guarantee
amount borne by the Company under the Guarantee
was HK$490.0 million.

The outstanding loan under the Loan Facilities as at
31 December 2022 was approximately HK$230.0
million (2021: approximately HK$230.0 million). The
contingent liabilities were disclosed in note 34.

296 SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED B/EIEEKARAT)

R ZE—tF ARBERTIEY
XLRERZZEREE TERE
B) m—REiRTIRHEEEER (&
ER)) c A ABIRBEZERAIEZ
ReRiE & A B1490,000,000
TTo

R-_E-__F#+-RA=+—H"'%
EREEXREEZETAABE
230,000,00070 (B - —4F 49758
#£230,000,0007T) ° A& B K
SE34IMEE o



29.

30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT
(CONTINUED)

The carrying amount of the financial guarantee
contract recognised in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position is in accordance with
HKFRS 9 and is carried at amortised cost.

No provision for financial guarantee contracts has
been made at 31 December 2022 and 2021 as the
Directors considered the default risk is low.

TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried
forward to the extent that the realisation of the
related tax benefit through utilisation against future
taxable profits is probable. At 31 December 2022,
the Group had tax losses of approximately HK$269.6
million (2021: approximately HK$230.4 million)
that are available to carry forward indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits. Estimated tax
losses of approximately HK$6.5 million and HK$39.0
million will expire within 5 years and over 5 years
respectively (2021: approximately HK$6.5 million and
HK$45.0 million will expire within 5 years and over 5
years respectively).

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the unused tax losses due to the unpredictability of
future tax profit streams.

30. 4

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

. MBHEAEEH (@)

RIEEBMBREERFENR > M5
ERENZREEENIERZER
BB R AIRESD o 1% 5 AL
A58k o

HRESTAEBNRARGE W
TR CERIE_—H+_"A
=+ —HUIERPTBFEREOER
B o

mEMBRRARAZHIE

MEBRMRBAN R EEBRIE
2R 2R FE SR R i A B3R > B BLPR
EEMIEBEBERRIEIERIEBEE
E-R_E__F+_-_B=+—
B AEBERBEBEROABE
269,600,0007 (ZEZ—F : L8
#230,400,0007T) > B] {4 #E (R HA4S
DU R 2R B SRR im A o i 5T AR
THE518 0 B 497 #6,500,0007T K &
#%39,000,0007T# 2 AR A A K
AEBIH(CE_—F B
6,500,0007T & & #&45,000,0007T#
DRREERNRAFEREE

FR 7% 2R SR A 755 0 ) B IR S BT TR -
B SR LR B R IR B S IR FE SRR
RIERTAE FE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. g7
Number Nominal
of shares value
8 E H{E
‘000 HK$'000
T BT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SRREEATE0.01752
=)

At 1 January 2021, 31 December * —_E_-_—%F—H—H+

2021, 1 January 2022 and —E-—F
31 December 2022 +=-BA=+—8-
—BE__F—-A—Bk
ZEZZF
+-HB=+—H 160,000,000 1,600,000
Issued and fully paid: BERITRHE :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each EREEE0.017T2
Zahg

At 1 January 2021, 31 December R —E-—%—HF—H

2021, 1 January 2022 and —_E—%
31 December 2022 +—-B=+—8-
“E_-F—HF—Hk
St - 3
+—-BA=+—H 4,926,491 49,265
The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to receive ZERTEANERESTREIRZ
dividends as declared from time to time and are KRERBERAATKRERG L%
entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of —B—BZ2AFABRB-FTEEZER
the Company. All ordinary shares rank pari passu in R IEEESF EEEE AR

all respects among themselves.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

32. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT

(a) Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group participates in a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the
Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong. The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
plan administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000
effective from 1 June 2014. Contributions to
the plan vest immediately.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant
authorities in the PRC, the Group participates in
the relevant social retirement benefit schemes
(the "PRC Schemes”) whereby the Group is
required to contribute to the PRC Schemes
to fund the retirement benefits of the eligible
employees. Contributions made to the PRC
Schemes are calculated based on certain
percentages of the applicable payroll costs
as stipulated under the requirements in the
PRC. The relevant authorities of the PRC are
responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to the retired employees. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the
PRC Schemes is to pay the ongoing required
contributions under the PRC Schemes.

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

32. R SR KEF

() EFEHEFRAKSE

AEERBETERFMELARE
S ENEG AR EEBREREK
flEEHERAREZEES
Hoadl Mt ABEEstE (Mafk
5t cRBETE AT
HIGRAREE HBILEEA
BE - REABEEHE  EBE
RERBEZBEBATEEH
" cEARERRBAZ
5% BABAMKBAZ LIRBE
“E—OFENA—HIEEABK
30,0007z © 51 & 14 7 BD Br 57
Eo

RIEREARREFI AR &
B2 EERA T RINEF
& (ThEErE)) @RIt A&
E7am R RSB R U
BEREE ZEBKEN - R
Rl Z X E o A P B 5t &I 1F
MRBBEBRIEERZETH
D EEEHE - EIA B £ B 86T
BEMRINEESZ AR
ToAEENPEFE ZME—
BERRETE 8 FES N

PREBHERR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

32. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT

(CONTINUED)

(b) Share option scheme
The retirement benefit schemes contribution
represents gross contributions by the Group
to the PRC Schemes operated by the relevant

authorities of the PRC.

The Company adopted a share option scheme
on 5 June 2014 (the “Share Option Scheme™)
which became effective on 10 June 2014.
Unless early termination by the Company in
general meeting or by the board of Directors
(the "Board”), the Share Option Scheme shall
be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from the date of its adoption.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
provide incentives or rewards to eligible persons
for their contribution to the Group or any entity
in which any member of the Group holds any
equity interest and any subsidiary of such entity

("Invested Entity"”).

Under the Share Option Scheme, the Directors
are authorised at their absolute discretion to
invite eligible persons to take up options to
subscribe for shares. Eligible persons under the
Share Option Scheme include (i) any employee
(whether full time or part time and including
executive director) of any member(s) of the
Group or any Invested Entity; (ii) any non-
executive director (including independent non-
executive director) of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity; (iii) any consultant,
adviser or agent engaged by any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity, who is eligible
to participate in a share option scheme of the
Company; and (iv) any vendor, supplier of goods
or services or customer of or to any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity, who is eligible
to participate in a share option scheme of the

Company.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT
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g IREK L BRIBRES
ZR ERMBEREE N T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

32. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT 32. EERAKREF (B)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Share option scheme (continued) (b) FERRHESTE (B

There is no provision in the Share Option
Scheme to require a grantee to fulfill any
performance target or to hold the option for a
certain period before exercising the option, but
the Board may at its absolute discretion from
time to time provide such requirements in the
offer of grant of options.

The maximum number of shares available for
issue under options which may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company
is 492,649,119 shares (being not more than
10% of the total number of shares in issue as
at the date of adoption of the Share Option
Scheme (the “Scheme Limit”), representing
approximately 10% of the total number of
shares in issue as at the date of this annual
report.

The Company may seek approval of its
shareholders in general meeting for refreshing
the Scheme Limit save that the total number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company under the Scheme
Limit so refreshed shall not exceed 10% of the
total number of shares in issue as at the date
of such approval (the “New Scheme Limit").
Options previously granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance
with the respective provisions of the scheme(s)
of the Company or exercised options) will not
be counted for the purpose of calculating the
New Scheme Limit.

RERe HE 5t 8 /U I 4 15 AR E 7K
RAETERBRENRZERE
ARFEER TEREHEET
EERENAFAZBRIES
THRE BEFSRARE2E
HIBERERRLBREZZH
P INZFRE

IR IR BB AR R St B K A4S A BT
HMBEREA TR 2 BER
A FRTZRNESHES
492,649,1198% (B R iEBARE K
ST EIRANE B B 1TIRH 4R
B 210% (518 £FRJ)) » 48
ENRAERHIAEBITRIDIE
##910% o

AT ARKREAG ESRHE
RERAESHETE LR
stE| LIREME  FAREER
s8I R AR B EFEMBR
TR TRz 280 ERRE
ETEMmA FETZRMDE
o NBAEEMETE L
REHBETROBEZ10%
(THr5t 8 EIR1) - BLEH BT
stE| LIRME @ ERREER
T A A B EREMEBR
REEEREZBRE (BF
RNV E L Es- 1N S ERIES
TE-BEE BERMRET
EZEREBAESHEEN-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

32. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT

(CONTINUED)

(b) Share option scheme (continued)
Notwithstanding aforesaid in above, the
maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company must not exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from

time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted
and to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option scheme(s)
adopted by the Company (whether exercised,
cancelled or outstanding) to each eligible person
in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of offer shall not exceed 1% of the
total number of shares in issue on the date
of offer, unless such grant is approved by
the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting at which such eligible person and his or
her associates shall abstain from voting.

The exercise price in respect of any option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall
be a price determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion but in any event shall not be
less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer
of the option, which must be a business day;
(i) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date on which the option is
offered; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.
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32. BEEKEF (B)

(b) FEARHESTE (B)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

32. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT
(CONTINUED)

(b) Share option scheme (continued)
The offer of a grant of share option must be
accepted not later than 28 days after the date
of offer, upon payment of a consideration of
HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise period of
the share option granted is determined by the
Board, save that such period shall not exceed
a period of 10 years commencing on the date
upon which the share option is granted.

No share options had been granted under the
Share Option Scheme since its adoption and up
to 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).

33. COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2022, the Group had contracted
with the tenants for the following future minimum
lease receivables:

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

32. BEEKEF (B)

(b) FERR#EStE (B)
RUBREZZOREANE
MEHBER -+ N\HRABER
ANBBZ BB I TZAEBE
e PR MR R Z 1T HA
EXgET EZMEEER
REHEHEAFTSBE T
o

B RAR I A 1 5t Bl DASR R B
EE T FFT A=+
B 1E - B AR IR A A i 51 B 3%
HERBKRE (CTZ—F .

) ©

33. KiE

RIE__HF+_-_HB=+—H 4
EEEEL TN Z AR REEWA
FUTF

The Group as lessor EEEASHBEA
At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
i N
g BT —F
+ZA=+—8 +ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AT T
Within one year — &R 4,050 3,180
After one year but within —FBRERFERN
two years 847 1,173
4,897 4,353
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

33.

34.

COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

Property rental income earned during the year was
approximately HK$5,692,000 (2021: approximately
HK$5,989,000). All of the Group's investment
properties are held for rental purpose and two of
its stock of properties is rented. It is expected to
generate rent yield of approximately 2.4% (2021:
approximately 2.3%) on an ongoing basis. The
Group’s rental property has committed tenant for the
next one to two years.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company gave the Guarantee to a bank in
respect of the Loan Facilities in 2017. The maximum
guarantee amount borne by the Company under the
Guarantee was HK$490.0 million (notes 18 and 29).

The outstanding loan under the Loan Facilities as at
31 December 2022 was approximately HK$230.0
million (2021: approximately HK$230.0 million).

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

33.

34.

A (B

FABRRZYERSWALNE B
5,692,00070 (Z& ——F : 4981
5,989,0007T) - AEBEFFTBEREY
XL EFEHEERR BEYMIE
MEGETERKHME B FE
B K2.4% (CBE - —F1492.3%)
ZHELHR - AEFBZHEYE
EMRKR—EMEHRBLITL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances detail
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
the Group had the following material transactions
with related parties during the year:

(@) The Group had the following

transactions with the related parties

during the year:

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

35. RAEK 7532 5

%Fé\ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂﬂﬂﬁﬁfiz
R AEERSN » A S B I A P9 £ R e

Eﬁbﬂtiiﬁ?&%

(a) ZAEENFAERRSE

TUTRS :

2022 2021
- — —E—F
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
b5 AT BIEFIT
Interest expenses EN—R%EERIER
paid to a director IRERZHBERX
and controlling
shareholder 9(a), 28 4,097 2,488
Rental income received B UK FEUWRAELEA S
and receivables from ZHEEWA
related companies (e), (f) 2,515 2,961
Management fee 2 U e P Wt — R B i
income received and NEZEBEEWA
receivable from an
associate 8, (i) 1,085 -
Note: et -

() The management fee was charged on actual cost

incurred by the Group for provision of management

and technical services.

() EBEENREIEFHGIEREE
R RFS T ELZ B
WER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR B ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

35. RELATED PARTY TRAN
(CONTINUED)

(b) The outstanding balances with related

SACTIONS

parties at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

35. Bt AR5 (&)

(b) MEREHARERAM S 2K
EEASRWT

At

31 December
2022

i

—E-_F

At

31 December
2021

S

B —F

+=A=+-B +=A=+—¢

HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T BT T
Amounts due from JE WS B A B) 7R IE
associates 367,504 337,019
Amount due from a FElW—REaE
joint venture FRIE 8,970 8,970
Loan from a director —REEFER
and controlling B
shareholder 216,000 60,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(c) Key management personnel
compensation
Compensation for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the Directors as
disclosed in note 11, senior management of
the Company and certain of the highest paid
employees as disclosed in note 12 is as follows:

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

35. Rl AR 5 (48)

(0 FEEEAEMHE

TEEEABZAE (BFER
1B BN EERIER
12 B B ES AT Sk
BEAEBRETREHEEZ
FIE) W

The Group
TEE
2022 2021
T F T —F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B =% BETT BETT
Salaries, allowance and e R R EAM
other benefits =l 3,299 3,487
Retirement scheme BRIRETEIHFR
contributions 50 85
Total emoluments are HRBNABER S A
included in “staff costs” BEENN 9(b) 3,349 3,572
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

(d) On 1 December 2008, the Company entered
into a letter of agreement with Mr. Yeung
regarding a term loan facility of up to HK$200
million, the loan is unsecured and charged with
interest at the prime rate quoted for Hong Kong
dollars loans by The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited. The principal
amount of the loan facility was increased up
to HK$290 million on 14 April 2009 and the
final repayment date of the loan and all other
sums owing to Mr. Yeung under the Revised
Mr. Yeung's Loan Facility was further extended
from 31 October 2022 to 31 October 2024
by a supplemental letter of agreement dated
30 September 2021. The said loan from Mr.
Yeung constitutes a connected transaction for
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, but is fully exempt from shareholders’
approval and all disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

35. Bt AR5 (&)

(d)

SZEBNEFZA—B &
NERABEER—BEBERS
¥ 78 1200,000,0007T 2 A HA
EXRE L — 1D HE R
ZERA®BIKE BRESL
BEEIRITERABIMBKZ A
TERREBEMNEFE R
ZRANFNBE+UH ZEWX
MEZAETEEEE RSB
290,000,0005c > Bi@BHEA
—E-—FAA=+HFFFIIL
ZERBBERE  RIEBEIGET
EXRMEBETNZERKRFR
BEXIBLEEZHMRIBZ R
BERHPRE S "F1+A4
—+—HE—FPEEE_ZT
“HWE+A=Z+—H RBEL
MREFE14AE ) LK E15
REZEREREARE—1B
RER S ERE EmRAIS
UAEEEZERRETRER
ERFIBIREZRE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(e)

In June 2021, the Group entered into
two tenancy agreements (the “Tenancy
Agreements”) for a term of two years to
renew the tenancy agreements which were
signed in June 2019 in respect of the leasing
of all investment properties of the Group to
a company which is wholly and beneficially
owned by Mr. Yeung, the tenant is therefore a
connected person of the Company. The rentals
chargeable under the Tenancy Agreements
were determined after taking into account
of the opinion letters issued by the Valuer in
connection with the fairness and reasonableness
of the rentals chargeable under the Tenancy
Agreements in respect of the said properties.
The entering into the Tenancy Agreements
constitute continuing connected transactions of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules but are fully exempt from shareholders’
approval, annual review and all disclosure
requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1)(c) of
the Listing Rules as all the applicable percentage
ratios calculated on an annual basis pursuant to
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules are less than 5%
and annual cap is below HK$3,000,000.

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

35. Rl AR 5 (48)

(e)

A _E_—FRA FK&EH
SN AEMEZAERHE
(TMMEEW=l) " UEERZ
E-—NWEFEARNBEILZHEW
EHOBRISRBAEEMAER
BYMELBET—BEAE M&
NEIHBEELREELRER
At ZHE AR AT ZREE
AT -FHEHBETHWERZHE
SRS BEEMM L%
REEWHZE T2 WERESE
EAFREBELAZEREME
TEoiRIE EMRAIFE14AF > 5T
UHEREBRAAR ZIFE
RAERR 5 ERE EHRAE
14078 B EAEZFBEED
BRLEEHERS% BEFEE
L BRIEA A #3,000,0007T > #1
R EHREIE14A.76(1)()E
E2EARETREHMEF
EEZKBIRERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_Z_F+"RA=+—HIFE

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(f)

In April 2022, the Group entered into a tenancy
agreement (the “2022 Tenancy Agreement”)
for a term of one year in respect of the leasing
of one of the Group's stock of properties to a
company (the “Tenant”), which is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Yeung and Mr. Ma
Ho Man, Hoffman, being the Deputy Chairman
of the Board and an executive Director, is a
director of the Tenant. The Tenant is therefore a
connected person of the Company. The rental
chargeable under the 2022 Tenancy Agreement
was determined after taking into account of
the rental valuation report issued by the Valuer
in connection with the market rent of the said
property in April 2022. The entering into of the
2022 Tenancy Agreement constitutes continuing
connected transaction for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but is fully
exempt from shareholders’ approval, annual
review and all disclosure requirements pursuant
to Rule 14A.76(1)(c) of the Listing Rules as all
the applicable percentage ratios calculated on
an annual basis pursuant to Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules are less than 5% and the annual
caps are below HK$3,000,000.

The continuing connected transactions
mentioned in note 35(e) should be aggregate
with the continuing connected transaction
mentioned in this note 35(f) according to the
Listing Rules. After aggregation, all continuing
connected transactions under notes 35(e) and
(f) are fully exempt from shareholders’ approval,
annual review and all disclosure requirements
pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1)(c) of the Listing
Rules as all the applicable percentage ratios
calculated on an annual basis pursuant to Rule
14.07 of the Listing Rules are less than 5% and
the annual caps are below HK$3,000,000.
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35. Bt AR5 (&)

(f)

RIEZZFNA x&EH
S — 1 AEA— EZ%HE 7J7JD¥/:
(IZTE2EZZFHEwWEL

BRI RBAREBREP—IEY
XFEHAT—BEAR (A
Bl > M&ZMBEBEBEEERE
Efﬂi%ﬁﬁ E%/DX&‘EE (Eﬂ
EEREFERPITESR A
ZHEzEE AL ZMBE
BERBZHEEANL ZF
::E%ﬂ‘fﬁ%ﬁTTuﬁﬁyZ%ﬂ

ThE& 2 R (hERMRL a2
Eé_v__ﬁm)%zﬁiiﬂﬁ
SHEZHASTFHREME
EoiRE LHHRBEI14AF
IR FHEREEN
KRB ZFHERAERS  ER
B EHRAE14.0718 L F 5t
B2EBRBDLEEHE
R5% BEE LRER B
3,000,0007% > iR R LR Al
F14A.76(1)()EEREEA R IE
TREME - FEEZKME
WERTE -

IR ERA s BYsE35(e) PRt
zﬁﬁaEﬂL X 5 FE B K Y 5
35(F Al 2 IS BRAERR e
HFE - KREEHER HARR
B EHRBE14.0718 % F
ﬁzﬁﬁﬁzjﬁﬁ S EEERHYR
25% > BEE ERENRBIE
3,000 0007z » H M 5E35(e) K (f)
THEFERERS REL
HRAIE14A.76(1)(Q)IEHE S
HEARETREME - FES
ZRFTBINERE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

36. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholders returns that might
be possible with higher level of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose the Group
defines debt as total borrowings which are bearing
variable interest rate such as bank loans (note 26),
lease liabilities (note 27) together with loan from a
director and controlling shareholder (note 28), and
net of cash and cash equivalents (note 24). Capital
represents total equity attributable to owners of the
Company in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The Group's strategy was to maintain the debt-to-
capital ratio as low as feasible. In order to maintain
or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt. As at 31 December 2022, the debt-to-capital
ratio is approximately 53% (2021: approximately
31%).

36.

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

BEXERERE

FEBEEEAZTEZHMNTLRE
AEEENFTFELE WM #@E
HIRER G R B KA E M E S
FMm WHERERERRE U
AR B A s o

FEBRBKREREN REERE
REB LIEEFBRBRREIR (7
FER R SEEKT) BRRRER
A TP 6 3R 2 UF B S AR B 2 R ES
7 LAk R A 75 iR i 88 4 T 5
BEARE-

AREBREEHEREEETFHE
KREE B REBBEHERE
A FEFIEFE WIRTER (Y
5326) HHEAE (MsF27) ERF—
LEERIERREBER (IE28) o
NEReEABSEEER (M
24)) 2 BEEHBEE - BERIERET T
HRRTAZ AN B IR R ELRE = 4R
Ho

REBZREARNDBEBRHELKR
EEEAEFREKF - BB
ZEE > AEE T SERE MR RIK
NZRELE BREREE A
BRI HEEEREBERE -1
BT HE+"RB=+—H &%
HEAREERLAS3% (CTE - —F:
#931%) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

37. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has pledged the
following assets:

(a

the Group’s all of investment properties, the
leasehold land and building as well as one of its
stock of properties totally with carrying amount
of approximately HK$434.9 million (2021:
approximately HK$461.0 million) were pledged
to secure against bank loans (note 26) and a
standby letter of credit granted to the Group;

World Fortune Limited (“World Fortune”)
pledged all (2021: all) of its shares in Pier 16 —
Property Development to a bank in respect of
the loan facilities granted to Pier 16 — Property
Development; and

the Group’s a pledged deposit of approximately
HK$558,000 was released during the year
(2021: a pledged time deposit of approximately
HK$558,000 to a bank for the issuance of
banking facility).

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

37.

BEEEM

A —
-

T F+R=+—H'%&

EECHEATIEE :

(a)

AEBEKFREEAGSTN
7 18434,900,00077 (Z B - —
F 1 #97E461,000,0007T) Z
FIEREYE--BE T KiE
FURET—BYEEFE F
BEAEBERETER HF
26) RERERE KRS ;

KB RAT (MEIK) FA+IX
B RERERZENEED
—RERITIIRE R 7R %
ERzE2MRHCE—F:
2ERMD) 5 &

REBREFERNERIFEIRIBE
YA ME558,0007s (ZE - —
F . E—ERTIKBEHRER
49718558 00077 » LUEEEIRTT
L) o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 38. xAE ZHAFE IR R R R (#

AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE HEE
COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the (a) TRTZHFEKRE
Company
At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
iy IS
=Sl - BT —F
+-A=+—H +=-A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BT
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RRBARZERE 1,195,024 1,197,041
Current assets MENEE
Deposits, prepayments and e TANRIER
other receivables HAh g W BR =h 800 912
Cash and cash equivalents REHIREEEER 125,575 27,052
126,375 27,964
Current liabilities mEaE
Other payables and accruals HAMETBRF R
fEST & 1,103 1,164
Bank loans RITER 150,000 140,000
Financial guarantee contract  BATSIER AL 161 322
151,264 141,486
Net current liabilities mEBaEFEE (24,889) (113,522)
Total asset less current BEAERREBEAE
liabilities 1,170,135 1,083,519
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  38. ZNA T Z IAF KRR B fi#
AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE s (&)
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(a) Statement of financial position of the (a) AT ZHIBRRAE (B)
Company (continued)
At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
iy i
—E-C B —F
+ZA=+—B +-B=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BT IT
Non-current liabilities ERSEaE
Financial guarantee contract MBEREN - 161
Loan from a director and —HEERER
controlling shareholder RERER 216,000 60,000
216,000 60,161
Net assets BEFE 954,135 1,023,358
Capital and reserves BARRK#EE
Share capital (&N 49,265 49,265
Reserves (note 38(b)) B (BEE38(b)) 904,870 974,093
Total equity EmiRE 954,135 1,023,358
Approved and authorised for issue by the board BEFEEgER_E_=F=B=+H
of directors on 30 March 2023. HUE IR RETEE o
On behalf of the board NREEG
Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny Ma Ho Man, Hoffman
R0 BiEX
Director Director
EE 0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  38. "2 B ZHAFE IR R R R (#

AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE HEE (8)
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
(b) Reserves movement of the Company (b) AT Z{HEEEE)
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
RIDEHE ZEtESiE =X
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT BT

At 1 January 2021 RZE_—F—HA—H 1,418,963 (420,907) 998,056
Loss and other comprehensive A< 518 &
loss for the year Hith2mEEE - (23,963) (23,963)

At 31 December 2021 and N2 —%F

1 January 2022 +ZA=1+—8K
- _#—HF—H 1,418,963 (444,870) 974,093
Loss and other comprehensive ~ ZAEEE5HE K&
loss for the year Hit>mEE - (69,223) (69,223)
At 31 December 2022 NZB__F
+-A=+—H 1,418,963 (514,093) 904,870
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_E__F+_B=+—HLFE

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 39. T EM{EB AT

(a) The following list contains only the particulars
of subsidiaries which principally affected the
results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The
class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise
stated.

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as
defined under note 2(c) and have been
consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

(a) THREHFIHAERXE B

ENEERUEIEXEZNE
NEIFB BRI BIIRN > Fr
RBRO\REESER-

FRAEZERRHERMEE2()Fr
REZRENB AT 1B
BSFAREBZEGGHMHR
*o

Proportion of ownership interests

EHERELE)
Particulars of
Place of issued shares Group's Held
incorporation/ and paid up effective by the Held by a
Name of subsidiary operations share capital interests Company  subsidiary  Principal activities
Bl BERTRMK TERE HAAHE B
WEAERE B BRREHE Bt e WEARRE TEXH
% % %
Macau Success (Hong Kong) ~ Hong Kong 10,000,000 shares/ 100 100 - Investment holding
Limited &8 HK$1,076,000 REEZR
EMEE (&R ARAT 10,000,008 115,/
#1,076,0007T
Macau Success Management  Hong Kong 100 shares/HK$100 100 - 100 Provision of
Services Limited &5 1008k 813 /A #1007 administration
services
RETERSE
World Fortune Hong Kong 1,000 shares/HK$1,000 100 - 100 Investment holding
K 5% 1,0008R%13,/ REZR
7B11,0007T
Jade Travel Ltd. Canada 15,000 class “A" non- 100 - 100 Wholesale and retail
MEX voting special shares of business of selling

CAD1,500,000 and 7
common shares without
par value
A801,500,0000075 2
15,0000 TA EEEG E1E

RRIRRIR I REEZ

ERER
Good Sun Development Limited Hong Kong 1 share/HK$1 100
REZERERAR BE 1RA1R/ A1
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airline tickets and

tour packages
HERERIKTESR

IHERTEER

- 100 Property investment
MERE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLFE

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

39. T EMBAT (&)

(CONTINUED)
(a) (continued) (@) @
Proportion of ownership interests
BREERLLH
Particulars of
Place of issued shares Group's Held
incorporation/ and paid up effective by the Held by a
Name of subsidiary operations share capital interests Company  subsidiary  Principal activities
BaATYe BEITRHK FEE HEAF H—f
L) YNGR R BRI BRiED BE  MERIRE IEEH
% % %
Total Gain Limited Hong Kong 1 share/HK$1 100 - 100 Property investment
2HERAR B 1R/ BT MERE
Powerful Concept Limited Hong Kong 1 share/HK$1 100 - 100 Property investment
BRIBRAT &% 1BR1H,/ H17T MERE
Famous Capital BVI/Hong Kong 1,000 shares/USD1,000 100 - 100 Property investment
International Limited HBEZEE/ 100085,/ MERE
&% 1,000% 7T
Perfect Top Property BVI/ Hong Kong 1 share/USD1 100 - 100 Property investment
Investment Limited (formerly RBREZEE,/ 1REH/1E7T MELE
known as Perfect Top 54
Development Limited)
Perfect Top Property
Investment Limited (5178
Perfect Top Development
Limited)
Better Talent Limited BVI 1 share/USD1 100 - 100 Investment holding
HREYHS 1R&H,/ 1% RELER
(b) Significant Restriction (b) EKIRH

RPEFEUARESHEZIR
EAREMINEEFIROIPAR
IR o 5% 35 & i 5N & B Hl %R B IR
FlIEPEBHER  EEBIE
B BRI o

Cash of RMB held in the PRC are subject to
local exchange control regulations. These
local exchange control regulations provide for
restrictions on exporting capital from the PRC,
other than through normal dividends.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

o)
T FHATEHE
RESULTS e |
Year ended 31 December
HE+-B=+—-HLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—EB-C 25 Z-%F  E-hE  E-N\E
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BT BETT BETT BETr
Revenue W 114,778 151,130 363,831 1,147,371 1,120,278
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRAT (B518) /67 (287,072) 4,859 (141,936) 74,194 54,213
Taxation I - - - _ _
(Loss)/profit for the year HEE (5B /5 (287,072) 4,859 (141,936) 74,194 54,213
Attributable to: AU TRIEMEL
Owners of the Company ENNGIEES (287,072) 4,859 (141,936) 74,194 54,464
Non-controlling interests FERER - - - - (251)
(Loss)/profit for the year KEE (58) /5 (287,072) 4,859 (141,936) 74,194 54,213
(Loss)/earnings per share EATRREGER
attributable to owners (518 /B .
of the Company:
— Basic and diluted —EAREE (5.83) 0.10 (2.89) 151 1.1
HK cents #fll  HK cents 1L HK cents Hfll  HK cents Ml HK cents 1L
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEKRERE
As at 31 December
®+ZB=+—H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
“E-CE C“E--& CE°ZE “E-HE "E-\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT T BT T BT T
Total assets BEHE 1,271,157 1,388,830 1,387,114 1,385,035 1,382,749
Total liabilities aEEE (551,792) (381,185) (384,758) (240,776) (314,628)
Net assets BEFE 719,365 1,007,645 1,002,356 1,144,259 1,068,121
Total equity i 719,365 1,007,645 1,002,356 1,144,259 1,068,121
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Particulars of Properties
YEEE3T

Particulars of the properties held by the Group at the end  RIREER > KEBIFENYEEFUW

of the reporting year are as follows: e
A. Investment properties A. BEME
Attributable
interest of
Location Use/Status Type Tenure the group
EE
2k B& R HEE THRFHA FE{L 1 55
1 Office No. 1001A Rental Commercial Medium term 100%
on the 10th Floor of building lease
Tower 1 of Admiralty Centre,
No. 18 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong
BBERE 185, g Gl FRERZZA
BEROVEE1018
T001ASEHF A E
2 Office No. 1004B Rental Commercial Medium term 100%
on the 10th Floor of building lease

Tower 1 of Admiralty Centre,
No. 18 Harcourt Road,

Hong Kong

BABERE 185 gl G FRERZEAY
EEHOEE1018
1004BEH A ZE
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Particulars of Properties (Continued)

M5 (&
B. Stock of properties B. MEEE
Tenure/ Attributable
Gross interest of
Location Use/Status Type Floor Area the group
HAEHR/ FEE
12k RE MR B BIEEER FEfh#Ea
1 34th Floor and Store Room On Sale Commercial Medium term 100%
of Sunshine Plaza, building lease/
No. 353 Lockhart Road, Approximately
Hong Kong 5,134 square feet
BERTE3535% FE EE hERERL
ZHARE3M BREDE #95,134 1R
2 Flat C and Flat D (now known as ~ On Sale Commercial Medium term 100%
offices 1905 and 1906) building lease/
on the 19th Floor of Approximately
Eastern Commercial Centre, 1,532 square feet
395-399 Hennessy Road,
Hong Kong
BB EHTB395E3995% FE EE hERERL

BHEBEANMECERDE
(28190558 2 19065 A E)
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